NOTICE OF THE
SPECIAL VILLAGE BOARD MEETING

The special meeting of the Village Board is scheduled for
Tuesday, September 29, 2020 beginning at 6:30 p.m.

A copy of the agenda for this meeting is attached hereto and
can be found at www.tinleypark.org.

NOTICE - MEETING MODIFICATION DUE TO COVID-19

Pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-07, Executive Order 2020-10, Executive
Order 2020-18, Executive Order 2020-32, Executive Order 2020-33, Executive Order 2020-39,
and Executive Order 2020-44, which collectively suspends the Illinois Open Meetings Act
requirements regarding in-person attendance by members of a public body during the duration of
the Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation, issued on June 26, 2020, the members of the Village
Board will be participating in the meeting through teleconference.

A livestream of the electronic meeting will be broadcasted at Village Hall. Pursuant to
Governor's Executive Order No. 2020-43 and CDC guidelines, no more than 50 people or 50%
of the maximum capacity will be allowed in the Council Chambers at any one time, so long as
attendees comply with social distancing guidelines. Anyone in excess of maximum limit will be
asked to wait in another room with live feed to the meeting until the agenda item for which the
person or persons would like to speak on is being discussed or until the open floor for public
comments.

Public comments or requests to speak may also be emailed in advance of the meeting to
clerksoffice@tinleypark.org or placed in the Drop Box at the Village Hall by noon on Tuesday,
September 29, 2020.

Kristin A. Thirion
Clerk
Village of Tinley Park



http://www.tinleypark.org/
mailto:clerksoffice@tinleypark.org

Special Village Board Meeting Agenda-September 29, 2020 |1

MEETING NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Special Meeting of the President and Board of Trustees of
the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois will be held on Tuesday, September 29,
2020, beginning at 6:30 PM in the Council Chambers at the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 South
Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois.

6:30 PM

ITEM #1
SUBJECT:

ACTION:

COMMENTS:

ITEM #2
SUBJECT:

ACTION:

COMMENTS:

ITEM #3
SUBJECT:

ACTION:

COMMENTS:

CALL TO ORDER

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Discussion - Consider approval of agenda as written or amended.

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL
VILLAGE BOARD MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.

Discussion: Consider approval of minutes as written or amended.

CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-093 RECOGNIZING FIRE
PREVENTION WEEK IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK FROM
OCTOBER 4 THROUGH OCTOBER 10, 2020 - Trustee Brennan

Discussion: Fire Prevention Week is to be held in the Village of Tinley Park
beginning October 4, 2020. All citizens are encouraged to do their share to
provide a safe place in which to live and work by eliminating those fire hazards
which cause the loss of life, property, and resources. Fire Prevention Week is
always scheduled to coincide with the anniversary of the Great Chicago Fire of
1871. This Resolution is eligible for adoption.




Special Village Board Meeting Agenda-September 29, 2020 |2

ITEM #4
SUBJECT: RECEIVE PRESENTATION OF THE TINLEY PARK BUSINESS
SPOTLIGHT - ANYTIME FITNESS AND BAILEY’S RESTAURANT &
BAR - Trustee Glotz and Clerk Thirion
COMMENTS:
ITEM #5
SUBJECT: RECEIVE UPDATE ON DISCUSSIONS WITH THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
REGARDING THE TINLEY PARK MENTAL HEALTH CENTER - Trustee
Mueller
ACTION: Discussion: Village Manager, David Niemeyer, will be giving an update on
discussions with the State of Illinois in regards to the purchase of the Tinley
Park Mental Health Center and clean-up of the site. No specific action
required.
COMMENTS:
ITEM #6
SUBJECT: CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE FOLLOWING CONSENT
AGENDA ITEMS:
A. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM ST. GEORGE SCHOOL, 6700 176TH
STREET, TO CONDUCT A QUEEN OF HEARTS RAFFLE THROUGH
OCTOBER 6, 2021, OR UNTIL A WINNER IS DRAWN, WITH THE
MAXIMUM VALUE OF THE PRIZE NOT TO EXCEED $250,000.
WINNERS WILL BE DRAWN WEEKLY AT SIP WINE BAR.
B. CONSIDER PAYMENTS OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE
AMOUNT OF $2,262,429.06 AS LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD
APPROVAL REPORTS DATED SEPTEMBER 18 AND SEPTEMBER
25, 2020.
ACTION: Discussion: Consider approval of consent agenda items.
COMMENTS:




Special Village Board Meeting Agenda-September 29, 2020 |3

ITEM #7

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2020-0-061 APPROVING A
SPECIAL USE FOR A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION OF THE PARK PLACE
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT WITH EXCEPTIONS FOR PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 16300 HARLEM AVENUE (PETE’S FRESH MARKET) -
Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The granting of this request will allow a warehouse/distribution use
as part of Phase 1. Phase 2 will construct a new Pete’s Fresh Market Grocery
Store, associated retail and renovation of the former Kmart store. The Phase 1
approval was recommended by the Plan Commission with an exception to allow
the overnight storage of five (5) delivery vehicles parked at the loading dock,
conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022,
prohibition of outdoor storage, and the planting of street trees prior to Phase 1
occupancy.

The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on September 17, 2020, and voted
8-0 to recommend approval of the Special Use and adopt the Findings of Fact.
The item is eligible for waiving of the first reading. This Ordinance is eligible

for adoption.

COMMENTS:

ITEM #8

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2020-0-062 GRANTING A FRONT
YARD VARIATION FOR A PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE ON CERTAIN
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 17549 66™ AVENUE - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioners, Teva and Holly Majchrzak, are seeking a Variation
to permit a residential home addition to be constructed with a front yard setback
of 25 feet, instead of the required 30-foot setback. The request allows for a
home addition to be constructed along the same front yard setback as the
existing home.

The Zoning Board of Appeals held a Public Hearing on September 10, 2020,
and voted 4-0 to recommend approval of the amended Variation request. This
Ordinance is eligible for Adoption.

COMMENTS:




Special Village Board Meeting Agenda-September 29, 2020 |4

ITEM #9

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2020-0-063 APPROVING A
SPECIAL USE FOR A VOCATIONAL EDUCATIONAL FACILITY
(MASSAGE SCHOOL) AT 18440 THOMPSON COURT, TINLEY PARK,
ILLINOIS - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: The Petitioner, Marilyn Monaco, SAVI Properties, LLC, on behalf
of Emmanuel Bistas, The New School for Massage is seeking a Special Use for
a Vocational Educational Facility to be located at 18440 Thompson Ct., Suite
10, in the Hickory Creek Planned Unit Development (PUD).

The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on September 17, 2020, and voted
8-0 to recommend approval of the Special Use and adopt the Findings of Fact.
This Ordinance is eligible for Adoption.

COMMENTS:

ITEM #10

SUBJECT: CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-094 APPROVING A
MODIFICATION TO AN EXISTING CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL
BUILDING REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS SERVICES WITH RICK
DANDAN (DBA LAKESIDE CONSULTANTS) - Trustee Mueller

ACTION: Discussion: Resolution 2020-R-094 approves a modification to an existing
professional service contract with Rick DanDan (DBA Lakeside Consultants) to
perform building permit review and inspections for the Building Department.
The modification will include plumbing inspections.

This was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held prior to this
Village Board meeting. This Resolution is eligible for adoption.

COMMENTS:




Special Village Board Meeting Agenda-September 29, 2020 |5

ITEM #11
SUBJECT:

ACTION:

COMMENTS:

ITEM #12
SUBJECT:

ACTION:

COMMENTS:

ITEM #13
SUBJECT:

COMMENTS:

CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-095 APPROVING A
SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY
PARK AND LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY REGARDING
ISSUES RELATED TO THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 80TH AVENUE
TRAIN STATION - Trustee Glotz

Discussion: The Village has had a dispute with the bonding company associated
with coverage under the performance bond received in connection with the
construction of the 80th Avenue Train Station. Numerous problems were
identified related to the contractor’s completed work that have required
correction. The agreement under this resolution between the Village and
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company provides the Village with a $175,000
settlement as a final payment under the performance bond. This Resolution is
eligible for adoption.

CONSIDER ADOPTING ORDINANCE 2020-0-060 AMENDING THE
MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK BY THE
ADDITION OF TITLE XI CHAPTER 129L IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL
CANNABIS RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX - Trustee Galante

Discussion: Since the Village Board approved an ordinance amending the
Tinley Park Zoning Code for the purpose of regulating adult-use cannabis
business establishments (2020-0-038), and also established a business license
and associated fee for an adult-use cannabis facility (2020-O-040), the final step
is to pass an ordinance imposing a Municipal Cannabis Retailers' Occupation
Tax (MCROT). This was previously discussed at a Committee of the Whole,
and the recommendation was to impose the tax in the full amount of 3%.
Following passage, the Village Treasurer will file the appropriate documentation
with the Illinois Department of Revenue (IDOR), so the MCROT goes into
effect on January 1, 2021. This Ordinance is eligible for adoption.

RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM STAFF -




Special Village Board Meeting Agenda-September 29, 2020 |6

ITEM #14
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD -

COMMENTS:

ITEM #15
SUBJECT: RECEIVE COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC -

COMMENTS:

ITEM #16
SUBJECT: ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS:

A. LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR ON
BEHALF OF THE PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN FILED
AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR ADMINISTRATIVE
TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY FINDS THAT AN
ACTION IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN WHICH CASE THE
BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE RECORDED AND ENTERED
INTO THE MINUTES OF THE CLOSED MEETING.

B. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE
OF THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE
PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A PARTICULAR PARCEL
SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.

ADJOURNMENT



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 7
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 1

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF THE TRUSTEES,
VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, HELD SEPTEMBER 15, 2020

The special meeting of the Board of Trustees, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the
Council Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 S. Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL on
September 15, 2020. President Pro-Tem Glotz called this meeting to order at 6:45 p.m.

At this time, President Pro-Tem Glotz stated this meeting is being conducted pursuant to Governor Pritzker’s
disaster proclamation and Public Act 101-0640, which amends requiréments of the Open Meetings Act due
to the COVID-19 pandemic. Pursuant to the same, the Village Board finds that it would be impractical to
conduct an in-person meeting with all members present. Elected officials confirmed they were able to hear
one another.

President Pro-Tem Glotz led the Board and audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Clerk Thirion called the roll. Present and responding to roll call were the following:

Village President Pro Tem: ~ Michael'W. Glotz
Village Clerk: Kristin A. Thirion

Trustees: Cynthia A. Berg (Participated Electronically)
William P.Brady
William A. Brennan
Diane M. Galante (Participated Electronically)
Michael G. Mueller

Absent: Jacob C. Vandenberg. Village President
Also Present:

Village Manager: David Niemeyer

Asst. VillagesManager: Patrick Carr

Village Attorney: Patrick Connelly

Motion was'made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to approve the agenda as written or
amended for this meeting. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays:
None. Absent: None:, Presidént Pro-Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Galante, to approve and place on file the
minutes of the regular Village Board Meeting held on September 1, 2020. Vote on roll call. Ayes: Berg,
Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-
Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 8
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 2

At this time President Pro-Tem Glotz and Clerk Thirion presented the Tinley Park Business Spotlight.

Clerk Thirion presented Pop’s Beef and Sausage. Pop’s was originally opened on March 24, 1980 in Palos
Heights and has since expanded to more than a dozen locations across the south suburbs and Indiana,
including a location right here in Tinley Park at 7301 West 183rd Street. Its menu includes sandwiches,
burgers, chicken, fish, hot dogs, shakes, gyros, soups and salads. She introduced Burke Matyas, owner of
Pop’s Italian Beef, 7301 West. 183" Street. Mr. Matyas thanked the Village Board and Tinley Park
community for their support of his restaurant during this time of pandemic. He stated the Village has been
supportive of his business now and in the past.

President Pro-Tem Glotz presented Union Bar and Grill a brand<new Tinley Park restaurant that opened on
July 29 of this year at 17821 South 80th Avenue. A family owned business, Union Bar and Grill provides
excellent food and full bar services. President Pro-Tem Glotz introduced Joe and Melissa Colucci, owners of
Union Bar and Grill, 17821 80™ Avenue. Mr. Colucci thanked the Villagéiboard and staff for the support
they have received. He stated his business supports the local community and businesses.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Galante,to APPOINT ANGELA ARRIGO TO
THE POSITION OF HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR. After the completion of a formal recruitment
process with over forty (40) candidates for the position of Human Resources Director, it was decided that
Angela Arrigo would be the best candidate for,the position."Angela Arrigo has over twenty (20) years of
professional level experience in various human reseurces roles; fostering organizational strategic objectives
and driving operational HR efficiencies.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asKed if there were any eéomments from'members of the Board. There were none.
Ms. Arrigo thanked theBoard and Mr. Niemeyer and the hiring committee for this opportunity to serve the
Village. President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-persons, Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received forthis,item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, GalanteyGlotz, Muellen! Nays: NonespAbsent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared.the motion cartied.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trustee Berg, to CONSIDER THE FOLLOWING
COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021. New members/commissions are noted
with an asterisk (*).

Plan Commission
Garrett Gray, Chair
Lucas Engel
Eduardo Mani
Angela Gatto
MaryAnn Aitchison
Stephen Vick

Jim Gaskill

Kehla West

Robert Forgue*

Marketing Commission
Garret Gray (Associate)

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 9
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 3

telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to consider approving the following
Consent Agenda items:

The following Consent Agenda items were read by the Village Clerk:

A. CONSIDER ADOPTING RESOLUTION 2020-R-087 AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND RORY GROUP,
LLC (LOBBYIST).

B. CONSIDER PAYMENT OF OUTSTANDING BILLS IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,387,312.77 AS
LISTED ON THE VENDOR BOARD APPROVAL REPORTS DATED AUGUST 21, AND
AUGUST 28, 2020.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyong from the Board would like to remove or discuss any items from the
Consent Agenda. No items were removed ondiscussed. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan,
Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz declared the
motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee'Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brenman, to adopt and place on file
ORDINANCE 2020-O-050 APPROVING A SPECIAL USE FOR A PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT WITH EXCEPTIONS RELATED TO PHASE I OF THE REDEVELOPMENT OF
TINLEY PARK PLAZA LOCATED AT 15903-16205 HARLEM AVENUE. Brixmor Property Group is
seeking a Special Use for a Planned/Unit Development with exceptions related to Phase I of the
redevelopmentzof Tinley Park Plaza. The project.ineludes the demolition of 87,000 sq. ft. of the existing
building and the construction approximately 66,600 sq. ft for retail uses and general improvements to the in-
line tenants, including fagade improvements, landscaping and parking lot improvements. The Plan
Commission held a Public'Hearing on August 20, 2020, and voted 5-0 to recommend approval.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adopt and place on file,
RESOLUTION 2020-R-085 AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A TAX INCREMENT
FINANCING REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITHIN THE 159TH AND HARLEM TIF
DISTRICT (BRIXMOR - TINLEY PARK PLAZA). This item would authorize a Tax Increment
Financing Redevelopment Agreement within the 159th and Harlem TIF District for the proposed
revitalization of portions of the Tinley Park Plaza shopping center on the east side of Harlem Avenue south
of 159th Street (15903-16205 Harlem). The owners of the shopping center, Brixmor IA Tinley Park Plaza,
LLC (Brixmor), have met the “But For” requirement necessary for consideration of this agreement to share



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 10
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 4

certain municipal revenues. Without the assistance, the renovation plans would not be able to be undertaken,
which would be expected to negatively impact the continued operation of the shopping center and Village
revenues received from it.

The agreement proposes Village financial assistance in an amount not to exceed $9.9 million, or 50% of the
actual project costs, whichever is lower. This assistance will be funded by a combination of TIF incremental
revenues generated by the shopping center properties alone, and incremental municipal sales taxes (1%)
generated by all the businesses located in the shopping center over a ten (10) year period. A maximum of
$8.1 million of TIF eligible costs are to be paid from the TIF increment generated, with the remainder ($1.8
million) to be paid from incremental sales taxes. The portion of the incentive to be funded between the TIF
eligible costs and sales tax can fluctuate based on actual expenses, butin addition to the overall $9.9 million
cap, the amount that can be provided from incremental sales taxes@€annot exceed $2.5 million. Achievement
of the maximum financial assistance under this agreement is heavily performance based, and dependent upon
the success of the proposed renovations in attracting new retailers to the center generating new sales taxes to
the community.

This item was reviewed and discussed at the Committee of the Whole meetingsheld on September 1, 2020.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the publictequested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Cletk Godette stated thefe were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this itemaNo one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Mueller. Nays: Berg, Glotz." Absent: President,\Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adopt and place on file, ORDINANCE
2020-0-051 APPROVING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 18017
SAYRE AVENUE TO THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK. Gamma Tinley LLC (d/b/a Fox College)
has petitioned to annex two.(2) parcels of property totaling approximately 1.74 acres at 18017 Sayre Avenue.
One (1) parcel has an existingshome/that will be demolished while the other parcel does not have roadway
frontage and.iswvacant. The property owner has.alsorequested rezoning, a variation, and a Plat of
Resubdivision related tona proposed,expansion of the Fox College parking lot.

At this time Community Development Director, Kimberly Clarke presented and update of concerns brought
up at the Committee of the Whole meeting held on September 1, 2020. At the meeting, there were a few
residents i the audience that voiced concerns about the proposed detention pond and light poles in the
parking lot.

A meeting with the residents'was held at Fox College on Tuesday September 9, 2020. One resident, the Fox
College President and his‘development team, the Public Works Director, Village Engineer, Community
Development Director and Trustee Glotz were present. After going over the plans in detail, all concerns were
answered to the resident’s satisfaction. In conclusion, the Fox College team will construct a fence that blends
in with the color of the existing landscape (brown). The light poles will remain at 25 feet as proposed in the
plans in order to remain in compliance with the Village’s minimum lighting levels for the parking lot. In
regards to the existing pond that is controlled by the School District, staff is contacting them about the
maintenance of the pond and potential blockage in the one restrictor that may be contributing to the flooding
in the resident’s rear yard. This issue will need to be resolved in order for Fox College to be able to connect
their drainage to this pond as shown in their engineering plans.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 11
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 5

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adopt and place on file,
ORDINANCE 2020-0-052 GRANTING A MAP AMENDMENT TO REZONE CERTAIN
PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 18017 SAYRE AVENUE UPON ANNEXATION TO THE NG
(NEIGHBORHOOD GENERAL) ZONING DISTRICT. Gamma Tinley LLC (d/b/a Fox College) is
seeking to rezone the properties located at 18017 Sayre Avenue, upon annexation, to the NG (Neighborhood
General) zoning district for the expansion of the Fox College parking lot. The parking lot expansion will net
a total of 88 parking stalls on the site and allow Fox College to expand its curriculum at its existing location.
The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on August 2042020, and voted 5-0 to recommend approval of
the Map Amendment (rezoning).

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the‘public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated\there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this;item. No one cameforward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee:Brennan, to adopt and place on file,
RESOLUTION 2020-R-086APPROVING AND'ACCEPTING A FINAL PLAT FOR THE FOX
COLLEGE RESUBDIVISION AT CERTAIN PROPERTY LOCATED AT 18017 SAYRE AVENUE
AND 18020 OAK PARK AVENUE. Gamma Tinley LLC (d/b/a Fox College), has requested Final Plat
approval for the Fox College Resubdivision associated with the proposed parking lot expansion. The Plat
will consolidate two (2) pareels at the existing Fox College site located at 18020 Oak Park Avenue and two
(2) additional.pareels proposed tobe annexedrand rezoned for the parking lot expansion. The Plan
Commission reviewed the Final'Plat of Resubdivision and recommended approval subject to Final
Engineéring Plan approval.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically orin-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephene received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Maeller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Mueller, seconded by Trustee Galante, to adopt and place on file,
ORDINANCE 2020-0-053 GRANTING A VARIATION FROM SECTION XIIL3.1.7. (LEGACY
CODE - LIGHTING STANDARDS) OF THE ZONING ORDINANCE AT THE PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 18017 SAYRE AVENUE AND 18020 OAK PARK AVENUE. Gamma Tinley LLC
(d/b/a Fox College) is seeking a Variation to permit a different light pole type and light fixture at a height of
25 feet, where the ordinance allows 20 feet, at the Fox College properties located at 18017 Sayre Avenue and
18020 Oak Park Avenue in the NG (Neighborhood General) zoning district. The lights are associated with



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 12
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 6

the parking lot expansion. The Plan Commission held a Public Hearing on August 20, 2020, and voted 5-0 to
recommend approval of the three (3) Variations.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically or in-
person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via telephone
received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz,
Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Berg, seconded by Trustee Brady, to adept and place on file, RESOLUTION
2020-R-088 AUTHORIZING A SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY. The Village of Tinley Park uses several
social media platforms as tools to communicate with residents, businesses and visitors. The Village has
created a policy to establish general standards and responsibilities for the acceptable use of these social
media tools which govern the use, administration, management, monitoring and retention of social
media, and social media content.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any €omments from members of'the,Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment €ither in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated thereswere no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for thisfitem. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None:, Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brady, seconded by Trastee Glotz, to adopt and place on file, ORDINANCE
2020-0-058 AMENDING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF THE TINLEY PARK VILLAGE CODE
PERTAINING TO THE OFFICE OF VILLAGE COLLECTOR AND AMENDING THE SALARY
OF THE VILLAGE CRERK TO REFLECT THE REMOVAL OF THE COLLECTOR’S DUTIES
FROM THE OFFICE OF THE VILLAGE CLERK EFFECTIVE MAY 1, 2021.

In the staffing level'study conducted in June of 2017, it was recommended that the financial functions
performed by the Village:.Clerk be transferred to the Treasurer’s Office. The Clerk’s Office subsequently
effectdated a complete transferal of all staff conducting financial functions to the Treasurer’s office in 2019.
Salaries of elected officials'cannot be changed while in office. This ordinance would eliminate the Clerk as
Collector Office from the Code of Ordinances, and eliminating the additional pay received by the Clerk for
Collector’s'duties effective May 1, 2021. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole on
September 1,2020.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Brennan, seconded by Trustee Galante, to adopt and place on file,
ORDINANCE 2020-0-059 AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF TINLEY PARK TOWING OF
MOTOR VEHICLES ORDINANCE. Any municipality may, consistent with the Illinois Vehicle Code,
provide by ordinance, procedures for the release of properly impounded vehicles and for the imposition of a



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 13
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 7

reasonable administrative fee related to its administrative and processing costs associated with the
investigation, arrest, and detention of an offender, or the removal, impoundment, storage, and release of a
vehicle. The administrative fee ($500) imposed by the municipality may be in addition to any fees charged
for the towing and storage of an impounded vehicle. The administrative fees will act as a strong deterrent and
will hold those accountable for their actions associated to criminal activity.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: PresidentsVandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Glotz, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adopt and place on file,
RESOLUTION 2020-R-089 APPROVING A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY
PARK AND UTILITY DYNAMICS CORP. FORSITE AND BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS AT
174TH ST. AND 67TH CT. During utility burial'in the area of the Boulevard Project (South St. & 174th
St. at 67th Ct.), a scope for secondary work within a newly acquired easement 1S required and was bid
accordingly. The Board considered awarding a contract to,Utility Dynamics Corp. in the bid amount of
$51,951.50. This item was discussed at the Committee of thedWhole meeting held on September 15, 2020,
prior to this meeting.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were,.any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-persons'Deputy Clerk Godette'stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephonedeceived for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz; Mueller. Nays: None. ‘Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried:

Motion was.made by, Trustee Glotz, seconded by Frustee Mueller, to adopt and place on file,
RESOLUTION 2020-R-090 APPROVING A'CONTRACT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY
PARKIAND INTEGRAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. FOR FREEDOM POND LANDSCAPE
ENHANCEMENTS - PHASE 2. Phase 2 of Freedom Pond Landscape enhancements includes site-wide
landscaping, lookout deck, provisions for connection for a future path and purchase of matching materials for
southern entrances. The Board considered awarding a contract to Integral Construction, Inc. at the bid
amount plus allowance of $233,820. This item was discussed at the Committee of the Whole meeting held on
September 15, 2020, prior to this meeting.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Glotz asked ifianyone from the public requested to comment either in writing, telephonically or in-
person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to comment via telephone
received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz,
Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Glotz, seconded by Trustee Brennan, to adopt and place on file,
RESOLUTION 2020-R-091 APPROVING A SOLE SOURCE PURCHASE OF MATERIALS
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND LYONS VIEW FOR THE LED STREET
LIGHTING REPLACEMENT - 159TH ST. PROJECT. Funds in the amount of $100,000 were included
in the current fiscal year for the LED Street Lighting 159th St. Replacement Project. Public Works seeks



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 14
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 8

authorization of a sole source purchase of new material and equipment from Lyons View of Illinois to
replace/retrofit LED fixtures onto existing light heads within the specified areas along 159th St. between
86th Avenue and Oak Park Ave. Lyons View is the GE Lighting products primary representative in the State
of Illinois. If products are purchased through another contractor / cooperative organization, the price to
furnish and deliver fixtures would include an approximate two to five percent increase. The Board
considered approving the sole source purchase order to Lyons View in the amount of $98,200. This item was
discussed at the Committee of the Whole Meeting that was held on September 1, 2020.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy Clerk Godette stated there weremo written comments or requests to
comment via telephone received for this item. No one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried.

Motion was made by Trustee Glotz, seconded by Trustée Brady, to adopt and place on file, RESOLUTION
2020-R-092 APPROVING A CONTRACT EXTENSION BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY
PARK AND JOHN BURNS CONSTRUCTION FOR THE LED STREET LIGHT REPLACEMENT -
PHASE 4, 4A & 4B. Funds in the amount of $310,000,(Phase 4)4$115,600 (Phase4A), and $226,000
(Phase 4B) were included in the current fiscal year for the:\L ED<Street Lighting Replacement Project. The
Village solicited public bids at Phase 3 fora three (3) year renewable contract in July 2019, with John Burns
Construction as the lowest responsible bidder.Staff is recommending the Village extend the contract with
John Burns Construction. This will be the first extension of the'contract. The board considered awarding a
service contract extension to John Burns Construction for.estimates as,quoted in the amounts of $309,243
(Phase 4), $114,584 (Phase 4A) and $225,690 (Phase 4B). This item was discussed at the Committee of the
Whole Meeting held on September, 1, 2020.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any'comments from members of the Board. There were none.
President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public requested to comment either in writing,
telephonically or in-person. Deputy/Clerk Godette stated there were no written comments or requests to
comment via telephone receivedifor this itemulNo.one came forward. Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady,
Brennan,Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President Vandenberg. President Pro-Tem Glotz
declared the motion carried:

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked.if there were any comments from Staff.

Village Manager, Niemeyer congratulated Angela Arrigo on her appointment to the position to Human
Resources Direetor:, He thanked Paula Wagener and Hannah Lipman for their work over the last few months
filling in while there was a vacancy in that position.

Hannah Lipman, Manager’s Assistant, presented an update on the cannabis discussion from the Committee
of the Whole meeting held on September 1, 2020. She noted that the applications for adult use cannabis
facilities is complete and has been shared with individuals who have contacted the Village so far.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if there were any comments from members of the Board.

Trustee Brady stated that the Tinley Park Park Dedication of Chief Mike O’Connell Park will be held on
Saturday, September 19, 2020, from 10 a.m. to 11:30 a.m. at 17501 Bristol Park Drive. Mike O’Connell was
a former Police Chief for the Village. Trustee Brady noted that one of Chief O’Connell’s many
accomplishments was the founding of Boy Scout Troop 911 which is sponsored by the Tinley Park Police



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 15
Special Meeting of the Board of Trustees — Minutes September 15, 2020 | 9

Department.

Trustee Mueller announced the retirement of two (2) Community Development Department employees:
e Jean Bruno, Officer Coordinator, who worked for the Village for 23 years; and

e Gene Lode, Plumbing Inspector, who worked for the Village for 17 years.

President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if anyone from the public submitted comments via in writing, in person, or
telephonically. Deputy Clerk Godette stated a public comment was received via email and was emailed to
the Board for its review. President Pro-Tem Glotz asked if everyone on the Board received this email from
the Deputy Clerk. The Board stated it was received. Trustees Galanté,and Berg noted that it was requested
by the commenter that his comment should be read. Trustee Galante was concerned that the commenter was
not given the opportunity to be heard at the meeting. Village Attorney Connelly stated that public comment
guarantees the opportunity to address the Village Board. He stated that the meeting notice did not indicate
that written comments would be read aloud at the meeting and this comment as been presented to the Village
Board.

Motion was made by Trustee Galante, seconded by Trustee Mueller, at 7:36 p.mato adjourn to Executive Session
to discuss the following:

A. THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OFREAL PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY,
INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A
PARTICULAR PARCEL SHOULD,BE ACQUIRED.

B. THE SETTING OF A PRICE FOR SALE OR EEASE OF PROPERTY OWNED BY THE PUBLIC
BODY.

Vote on roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: President
Vandenberg. President Pro=Tem Glotz declared the motion carried.

Motion was made,by Trustee Gletz, seconded,by Trustee Mueller, to adjourn the regular Board meeting. Vote on
roll call: Ayes: Berg, Brady, Brennan, Galante, Glotz, Mueller. Nays: None. Absent: None. President Pro-Tem
Glotz déclared the motion earried andvadjourned the special Board meeting at 8:13 p.m.

PLEASE NOTE: Where thereis no summary of discussion on any items in the minutes, this reflects that no
discussion occurred other than the introduction of the item.

APPROVED:

Village President

ATTEST:

Village Clerk



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 16
TINLEY PARK

RESOLUTION 2020-R-093
A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING FIRE PREVENTION WEEK FOR 2020
IN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

WHEREAS, it is the mission of the Tinley Park Fire Department and Fire Prevention Bureau to prevent loss of life
and property from the perils of fire through education, engineering and enforcement, and

WHEREAS, with the introduction of new means to construct buildings, new technology to meet today’s energy and
housing needs, it is imperative for all agencies and individuals to partner together to help prevent fire, and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park continues an unprecedented growth in high-risk populations that requires a
dramatic and concerted effort to minimize injury, loss of life, and property damage from the perils of fire, and

WHEREAS, the Tinley Park Fire Prevention Bureau recognizes the challenge to meet the fire safety needs of
changing demographic and more diverse community, and

WHEREKS, all professional members of fire service and other public and social agencies, coordinate their efforts
to provide coalitions to ensure a successful reduction in the risk of fire, and

WHERERS, each Village citizen is empowered to provide a safe place in which to live and work by practicing fire
prevention principles, and

WHEREAS, the personnel of the Tinley Park Fire Department and Fire Prevention Bureau are committed to
providing Public Education to the community and to those in need, and

WHEREAS, on October 8-10, 1871, the Great Chicago Fire consumed the City of Chicago where over 300 people

died and 17,500 buildings were destroyed, this fire began discussion which resulted in what we know today as Fire

Prevention, and

WHEREAS, statistically most fires that occur in the home are related to preparing and cooking food, and

WHEREAS, the 2020 Fire Prevention Week theme, “Serve Up Fire Safety in the Kitchen!” reminds us all about
the basic but essential steps to take to reduce the likelihood of having a fire in our homes due to cooking, and
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the President and Board of Trustees that the week beginning October 4,

2020 be designated as Fire Prevention Week in Tinley Park and urge all citizens to join with the coordinated effort of the
Tinley Park Fire Department and Tinley Park Fire Prevention Bureau to provide effective educational and related fire

prevention programs.

ADOPTED THIS 29th day of __October _, 2020.

Jacob C. Vandenberg, Village President

Kristin A. Thirion, Village Clerk

Trustee Cynthia A. Berg Trustee William A. Brennan

Trustee William P. Brady Trustee Diane M. Galante

Trustee Michael W. Glotz Trustee Michael G. Mueller



TINLEY PARK
BUSINESS SPOTLIGHT

Clerk Thirion and
Trustee Glotz




AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 18

Interoffice

Memo

Date: September 25, 2020

To: Village Board

From: David Niemeyer, Village Manager
cc: Pat Carr, Assistant Village Manager

Paul O’Grady, Village Attorney
Patrick Connelly, Village Attorney

Subject: Tinley Park Mental Health Center

At the September 29t Village Board meeting, | will be giving an update on the discussions with the
State related to the acquisition and clean up of the Tinley Park Mental Health Center.

¥

Life Amplified



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 19

RAFFLE LICENSE APPLICATION

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
16250 South Oak Park Avenue

DATE: September 11th 2020

1. NAME OF ORGANIZATION: St. George School - Queen of Hearts
2. ADDRESS: 6700 176th st Tinley Park, IL 60477

3. MAILING ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE:

4. ADDRESS OF PLACE FOR RAFFLE DRAWING
SIP- 17424 Oak Park Ave Tinley Park, IL 60477

5. CHECK TYPE OF NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATION: (MUST BE IN EXISTENCE FOR A
PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS AND ATTACHED DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE)

RELIGIOUS CHARITABLE I:l LABORI:l FRATERNAL g
EDUCATIONAL Q VETERANS D BUSINESS D

6. HOW LONG HAS THE ORGANIZATION BEEN IN EXISTENCE: / 1 years

7. PLACE AND DATE OF INCORPORATION: Tlnley Park, IL Estabolished 9/9/1949

8. NUMBER OF MEMBERS IN GOOD STANDING: All

9. PRESIDENT/CHAIRPERSON:JO€ Partacz

ADDRESS:

10. RAFFLE MANAGER: Jennifer Pierson

ADDRESS:
PHONE _ Email:

11. DESIGNATED MEMBER(S) RESPONSIBLE FOR CONDUCT & OPERATION OF RAFFLE:
NAME: Michael Lewis

ADDRESS:!PHONE

NAME: Patrick and Janine Sullivan

ADDRESS: PHONE:

(ATTACHED ADDITIONAL SHEET IF NECESSARY)
1



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 20

RAFFLE APPLICATION |2

RAFFLE INFORMATION
12. DATE(S) FOR RAFFLE TICKET SALES (INCLUDE DAYS OF THE WEEK)
October 1st 2020- October 6th 2021

13. LOCATION OF TICKET SALES:
SIP - St. George church and school

14. LOCATION FOR DETERMINING WINNERS:
SIP- 17424 Oak Park Ave Tinley Park, IL 60477

15. DATE(S) FOR DETERMINING WINNERS: (INCLUDE DAYS OF THE WEEK)
October 6th 2020- October 6th 2021 Drawing every Tuesday until a winner

16. TOTAL RETAIL VALUE OF ALL PRIZES: $250,000
(MAXIMUM PRIZE AMOUNT $250,000)

17. MAXIMUM RETAIL VALUE OF EACH PRIZE:  $250,000

18. MAXIMUM PRICE CHARGED OF EACH TICKET(CHANCE) soLp s 6 for $5.00

19. § 132.38 FIDELITY BOND REQUIRED

All operations of and the conduct of raffles as provided for in this subchapter shall be under the
supervision of a single manager designated by the organization. Such manager shall give a
fidelity bond in the sum of 8165,000 or two times the aggregate value of prizes, whichever is less,
in favor of the licensee conditioned upon his honesty in the performance of his duties. The bond
shall provide that notice shall be given in writing to the Village of Tinley Park not less than 30
days prior to cancellation. Bonds as provided for in this section may be waived provided the
license issued for such raffle shall contain a waiver provision and shall be approved only by
unanimous vote of the members of the licensed organization.

FIDELTITY BOND WAIVER OF BOND STATEMENT BY ORGANIZATION !

“The undersigned attest that the above named organization is an organized not-for-profit under the law of
the State of Illinois and has been continuously in existence for five (5) years, preceding date of this application,

and that during this entire five (5) year period preceding date of application, it has maintained a bona fide
membership actively engaged in carrying out its objections. The undersigned do hereby state under penalties

of perjury that all statements in the foregoing application are true and correct, that the officers, operators

and workers of the game are bona fide members of the sponsoring organization and are all of good moral
character and have not been convicted of a felony; that if a license is granted hereunder, the undersigned will
be responsible for the conduct of the games in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of
Illinois and this jurisdiction governing the conduct of such games.”

NAME OF ORGANIZATION: S}'. George School School Board

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR: . L S Moal baa d dresdeat




AGENDA - 9/29/2020, A -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 21

St. George School Spirit... Grace... Success...

6700 W. 176" Street phone (708) 532-2626
Tinley Park, 11 60477 fax (708) 532-2025
Village of Tinley Park

16250 S. Oak Park Ave.
Tinley Park, IL 60477

To Whom It May Concern:

We are writing this letter to inform you that St. George School board members have
decided to waive the fidelities bond requirement for the Queen of Hearts raffle. The
raffle will be from October 15t 2020 until October 6t 2021 at the SIP in Tinley Park

until the Queen of Hearts is drawn.
Kind Regards,

i (LsBef
ierson

&Leph Partacz Jennifer
hool Board President School Board Member




AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 22

vchlist Voucher List Page: 1
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park

Bank code : ap py

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount
126271 9/18/2020 003127 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-NA-PPPR100120 ILO65LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS E
86-00-000-20430 964.50
BCBS-NA-PR100120 IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS E
86-00-000-20430 1,930.00
Total : 2,894.50
126272 9/18/2020 019214 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-DA-PPPR100120 ILO65LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS E
86-00-000-20430 219.18
BCBS-DA-PR100120 0000ILLB1212 HEALTH INS EXP-SE
86-00-000-20430 60.09
Total : 279.27
2 Vouchers for bank code: ap_py Bank total : 3,173.77

Page: 1



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 23
vchlist Voucher List Page: 2
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188954 9/14/2020 005109 IL. DEPT. OF EMPLYMT SECURITY 091420 BENEFIT CHARGE REPORT Ul CLA
01-14-000-72445 3,490.00
Total : 3,490.00
188955 9/16/2020 005057 ICMA CONFERENCE REGISTRATION 091420 ICMA CONFERENCE D.NIEMEYER /
01-12-000-72170 498.00
Total : 498.00
188956 9/18/2020 014739 3M 9408703981 SIGN MATERIALS
VTP-018010 01-26-023-73830 434.19
Total : 43419
188957 9/18/2020 010955 AT & T LONG DISTANCE 827776689 CORP ID 931719 LB TIP LINE
01-17-225-72120 44 .31
Total : 44.31
188958 9/18/2020 002452 AMERIGAS 3111552673 PROPANE
60-00-000-73520 18.39
63-00-000-73520 18.38
64-00-000-73520 15.76
01-26-023-73520 52.53
01-26-024-73520 26.26
Total : 131.32
188959 9/18/2020 002470 AMPEST EXTERMINATION LLC 81954 TREAT AND REMOVE HORNETS NE
01-26-023-72790 175.00
82033 REMOVAL OF HORNETS NEST FRC
01-26-023-72790 175.00
82038 REMOVAL OF WASP NEST
01-26-023-72790 175.00
82043 REMOVAL OF HORNETS NEST
01-26-023-72790 175.00
Total : 700.00
188960 9/18/2020 014936 AQUAMIST PLUMBING & LAWN 106137 SPRINKLERS-171ST ST MEDIANS
VTP-017821 01-26-023-72790 604.82
106605 SPRINKLERS- LAGRANGE RD MED
Page: 2



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 24
vchlist Voucher List Page: 3
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188960 9/18/2020 014936 AQUAMIST PLUMBING & LAWN (Continued)
VTP-017821 01-26-023-72790 345.00
Total : 949.82
188961 9/18/2020 010953 BATTERIES PLUS - 277 P28913536 BATTERY SLA6-5F
01-26-025-73870 25.90
P30430181 BATTERY - SLA12-8F
01-26-025-73870 21.95
P30431316 BATTERIES SLA12-8F
01-26-025-73870 21.95
P30891526 BATTERY SLA12-8F
14-00-000-74150 140.00
P30925532 BATTERY SLA 12-8F
14-00-000-74150 140.00
Total : 349.80
188962 9/18/2020 002938 BEST TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS INC. BTL-20114-2 POLICE DEPARTMENT SHOOTING |
VTP-017918 01-26-025-72779 1,090.00
Total : 1,090.00
188963 9/18/2020 003127 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-NA-AP100120 IL065LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS E
63-00-000-72435 12.49
64-00-000-72435 33.45
01-12-000-72435 117.50
01-19-020-72435 248.00
01-26-023-72435 156.00
01-33-300-72435 111.50
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85
60-00-000-72435 65.56
Page: 3



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 25
vchlist Voucher List Page: 4
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188963 9/18/2020 003127 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD (Continued)

01-26-023-72435 335.00
01-33-300-72435 87.50
60-00-000-72435 54.68
63-00-000-72435 10.42
64-00-000-72435 27.90
60-00-000-72435 58.51
63-00-000-72435 11.14
64-00-000-72435 29.85

BCBS-NA-PPAP100120 ILO65LB000001212-0 HEALTH INS E
01-17-205-72435 964.50
Total : 2,622.50

188964 9/18/2020 019214 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD BCBS-DA-AP100120 0000ILLB1212 HEALTH INS EXP-SE
01-33-300-72435 60.09

BCBS-DA-PPAP100120 0000ILLB1212 HEALTH INS EXP-SE
01-17-205-72435 219.16
Total : 279.25

188965 9/18/2020 002960 BRANIFF COMMUNICATIONS, INC 0032951 ANNUAL PREVENTATIVE MAINTEN,
VTP-018036 01-21-000-72575 7,045.00
Total : 7,045.00

188966 9/18/2020 014148 CALL ONE 319835 VILLAGE LANDLINE PHONE SERV ¢
01-19-000-72120 2,483.77
60-00-000-72120 3,150.92
63-00-000-72120 350.10
64-00-000-72120 1,500.45
01-17-205-72120 1,897.48
01-12-000-72120 263.65
01-14-000-72120 620.00
01-11-000-72120 4.55
01-12-000-72120 10.48
01-17-205-72120 10.48
01-19-000-72120 2.28
01-26-023-72120 2.74
01-26-024-72120 2.74

Page: 4



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 26

vchlist Voucher List Page: 5
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park

Bank code : apbank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount
188966 9/18/2020 014148 CALL ONE (Continued)
01-33-310-72120 2.74
01-33-320-72120 2.74
60-00-000-72120 6.81
01-12-000-72120 53.14
01-14-000-72120 177.60
01-15-000-72120 32.16
01-17-205-72120 106.28
01-19-000-72120 47.54
01-19-020-72120 16.07
01-26-023-72120 20.97
01-26-024-72120 20.97
01-33-300-72120 32.16
01-33-310-72120 32.16
01-33-320-72120 20.97
01-35-000-72120 20.97
01-53-000-72120 11.19
60-00-000-72120 67.40
63-00-000-72120 7.48
64-00-000-72120 32.14
Total : 11,011.13
188967 9/18/2020 003243 CDW GOVERNMENT INC 1010136 SURFACE PRO CASE
01-16-000-72565 116.94
1046429 <PD> - FLASH DRIVES FOR EVIDE?
VTP-018028 01-17-205-73110 39.60
1068112 <IT> - ADDITIONAL NETMOTION LIC
VTP-018027 01-16-000-72655 419.00
1094486 PRINTER INK
01-12-000-73110 140.00
1116334 <PD> - FLASH DRIVES FOR EVIDE?
VTP-018028 01-17-205-73110 484.96
ZZ\0785 <IT> - WYSE MGMT SUITE - THIN C
VTP-018025 01-16-000-72655 3,105.00
Total : 4,305.50
188968 9/18/2020 003229 CED/EFENGEE 5025-534307 OPA-LIGHTBULBS

Page: 5



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 27
vchlist Voucher List Page: 6
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188968 9/18/2020 003229 CED/EFENGEE (Continued)
01-26-025-73570 186.66
Total : 186.66
188969 9/18/2020 015199 CHICAGO PARTS & SOUNDS LLC 210002484 SIREN,XCEL BRACKET, AND LABOI
01-17-205-72540 449.50
210002486 PARTITION MOUNT TRILOCK
01-17-205-72540 475.00
Total : 924.50
188970 9/18/2020 003137 CHRISTOPHER B.BURKE ENGINEERNG 160512 01.R160373.00006 POST3 STORM V
65-00-000-72525 845.50
160513 01.R160373.0003C LIGHTING PHAS
30-00-000-75500 1,454.00
160514 01.R160373.00002 INTERIM VILL EN
64-00-000-72840 2,151.00
160516 01.R160373.C0020 POST 7 FORCE
61-00-000-75305 589.00
Total : 5,039.50
188971 9/18/2020 017298 COMCAST BUSINESS 107451662 ACCT#930890410 VILLAGE HALL Al
01-14-000-72125 982.95
Total : 982.95
188972 9/18/2020 012057 COMCAST CABLE 8771401810010702 ACCT#8771401810784702 9/16-10/
01-35-000-73870 8.18
8771401810028977 ACCT#8771401810028977 7980 183
01-26-025-72517 47.87
8771401810296319 ACCT#877401810296319 17355 68T
01-14-000-72125 233.35
Total : 289.40
188973 9/18/2020 018311 CONNECTION 70346567 HP TONER
60-00-000-73110 341.91
70352091 MEMORY CARD
01-19-000-72565 28.66
70359889 LED MONITORS
Page: 6



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 28
vchlist Voucher List Page: 7
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188973 9/18/2020 018311 CONNECTION (Continued)
01-17-205-72565 327.50
Total : 698.07
188974 9/18/2020 015820 CREATIVE BRICK & CONCRETE 715682 VETERANS BRICKS
33-00-000-75610 758.13
Total : 758.13
188975 9/18/2020 012198 CRYDER ENTERPRISES, INC. 2586 SANDBLAST, PRIME AND PAINT Wt
VTP-018035 01-26-023-73560 2,426.00
2590 HYDRANT PAINTING PROJECT
VTP-017238 60-00-000-72790 4,980.00
Total : 7,406.00
188976 9/18/2020 014690 DARLING INGREDIENTS INC 11216245 TRAP FEE
01-26-025-72530 160.00
Total : 160.00
188977 9/18/2020 014232 DIGI-KEY CORPORATION 1453109 75872094 LTE CAT4 MODEM W/USB ACCESS!
60-00-000-72120 190.10
63-00-000-72120 21.12
64-00-000-72120 90.53
Total : 301.75
188978 9/18/2020 003770 DUSTCATCHERS INC 75860 MATS-VILLAGE HALL
01-26-025-72790 65.93
75863 MATS- PW GARAGE
01-26-025-72790 99.08
Total : 165.01
188979 9/18/2020 004152 ECOLAB PEST ELIMINATION INC. 304409 RODENT SERVICE
01-26-025-72790 474.44
3048410 RODENT SERVICE
01-26-025-72790 86.48
Total : 560.92
188980 9/18/2020 015058 FLEETPRIDE 59156367 CENTER MOUNT REFLECTOR
01-26-023-72540 25.12
Page: 7



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 29
vchlist Voucher List Page: 8
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188980 9/18/2020 015058 015058 FLEETPRIDE (Continued) Total : 25.12
188981 9/18/2020 011132 FORCE ENTERPRISES 050908 ENVELOPES
01-14-000-72310 111.50
050909 ENVELOPES
01-14-000-72310 103.48
Total : 214.98
188982 9/18/2020 004373 GALLAGHER ASPHALT CORP. 20206GE 03 PMT#3 FY21 PMP RESURACING 20
05-00-000-75405 650,564.96
06-00-000-75405 715,172.77
Total :  1,365,737.73
188983 9/18/2020 019349 GARVEY'S OFFICE PRODUCTS PINV1973494 PENS,FOLDERS,ENVELOPES
01-19-000-73110 49.06
PINV1973541 TRAY AND CLIPBOARD
01-19-000-73110 74.17
Total : 123.23
188984 9/18/2020 004538 GOLDY LOCKS INC 685935 KEYS FOR FACILITIES
01-26-025-73840 121.95
Total : 121.95
188985 9/18/2020 004438 GRAINGER 9638831686 ANTI-GRAFFITI AEROSOL AND BAFR
01-26-023-73550 274.07
9642253414 DRAIN VALVE,PIPE
60-00-000-73630 242.45
63-00-000-73630 26.94
64-00-000-73630 115.45
Total : 658.91
188986 9/18/2020 019595 HANSEN, HEATHER 083120 COST SHARE 6627 174TH COVERII
01-26-023-75200 974.45
Total : 974.45
188987 9/18/2020 001487 HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE 7126042 SWEEPINGS
01-26-023-72890 3,292.50

Page: 8



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 30
vchlist Voucher List Page: 9
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code : apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188987 9/18/2020 001487 001487 HOMEWOOD DISPOSAL SERVICE  (Continued) Total : 3,292.50
188988 9/18/2020 005127 INGALLS OCCUPATIONAL MEDICINE 290555 AUG'20 SCREENING
01-41-040-72846 479.00
290682 NEW EMPLOYEE HEALTH SCREEN
01-12-000-72446 124.00
01-21-000-72150 59.00
290771 NEW EMPLOYEE MEDICAL SCREE!
60-00-000-72446 359.00
Total : 1,021.00
188989 9/18/2020 005025 INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL INC 1001217743 SPRINKLER REVIEW - PR#013119-"
01-33-300-72844 2,008.00
1001225575 SPRINKLER REVIEW PR#013120-M
01-33-300-72844 2,059.00
Total : 4,067.00
188990 9/18/2020 005186 INTERSTATE BATTERY SYSTEM 287686 31-MHD BATTERY
01-26-023-72540 359.85
Total : 359.85
188991 9/18/2020 014190 LEHIGH HANSON 5842607 BACKFILL
60-00-000-73860 402.87
63-00-000-73860 44.76
64-00-000-73860 191.84
01-26-023-73860 319.73
70-00-000-73860 106.58
Total : 1,065.78
188992 9/18/2020 006074 MENARDS 92516 TAB TAPE
60-00-000-73410 2.06
63-00-000-73410 0.23
64-00-000-73410 0.98
92525 FLOOD LIGHTBULBS
01-26-025-73570 15.98
92572 SOAP,CLEANER,VINEGAR, BRUSH
60-00-000-73110 34.46
Page: 9



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 31
vchlist Voucher List Page: 10
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188992 9/18/2020 006074 MENARDS (Continued)
63-00-000-73110 3.83
64-00-000-73110 16.41
92590 TOOLBOX,ROPE,HANGER- TOWER
01-19-000-72140 11.61
92600 HANGING BRACKET,BUNGEES,HO
01-26-023-73870 14.83
92699 SCRUB BRUSH AND STABIL CHLOF
01-26-023-73870 33.65
92701 FLY RIBBON
01-26-025-73870 3.92
Total : 137.96
188993 9/18/2020 011724 METROPOLITAN MAYORS CAUCUS 2019-250 2018-2019 CAUCUS DUES
01-11-000-72720 2,551.64
Total : 2,551.64
188994 9/18/2020 009483 MOLINARE, DEBRAD. 091620 PURCHASED DUPLICATE STICKER
06-00-000-79005 75.00
Total : 75.00
188995 9/18/2020 005856 MONROE TRUCK EQUIPMENT,INC. 329857 (35) 5/8" X 8" X 11' CENTER PUNCH
VTP-017956 01-26-023-72540 6,265.00
330010 SWITCH,CIRCUIT BREAKER
01-26-023-72530 65.70
Total : 6,330.70
188996 9/18/2020 010810 MUNICIPAL SERV. CONSULTING INC TPCN-08-20 CONSULTING SVC CIMP FOR VTP |
30-00-000-75812 10,962.00
TPLR-08-20 CONSULT SVC CIMP FOR VTP LOG
11-00-000-74245 6,961.50
Total : 17,923.50
188997 9/18/2020 014443 MURPHY & MILLER, INC SVC00028395 REPAIRS TO EXHAUST FANS IN PU
60-00-000-72520 1,573.00
63-00-000-72520 1,573.00
60-00-000-72520 475.71

Page: 10



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 32
vchlist Voucher List Page: 1"
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

188997 9/18/2020 014443 MURPHY & MILLER, INC (Continued)
63-00-000-72520 475.70
Total : 4,097.41
188998 9/18/2020 015844 NELSON SYSTEMS INC 11709 E-911 EQUIPMENT
11-00-000-74245 22,657.56
Total : 22,657.56
188999 9/18/2020 006475 PARK ACE HARDWARE 064238/1 ACCT#891431 SUPPLY HOSE
60-00-000-73630 7.21
63-00-000-73630 0.80
64-00-000-73630 3.43
Total : 11.44
189000 9/18/2020 019592 POPOCA, ENRIQUE VILLALOBOS 091420 REIMBURSE OVERCHARGE FOR F
01-14-000-79099 25.00
Total : 25.00
189001 9/18/2020 014412 RAINS, SCOTT 091420 K9 FOOD REIMBURSEMENT
01-17-220-72240 56.99
Total : 56.99
189002 9/18/2020 006361 RAY O'HERRON CO INC 2038771-IN BADGES AND WALLETS
01-17-205-73610 244.80
Total : 244.80
189003 9/18/2020 006870 RELIABLE FIRE EQUIPMENT 29384 MAINTAIN SYSTEM DURING CLEAN
01-26-025-72535 399.75
Total : 399.75
189004 9/18/2020 015230 RIDGE LANDSCAPE SERVICES LLC 7368 MOWING MULTIPLE LOCATIONS Al
VTP-017836 01-26-023-72881 32,215.12
Total : 32,215.12
189005 9/18/2020 007049 RYDIN DECAL 373566 2021 TEMPORARY HCHT
01-13-000-72330 175.45
Total : 175.45

Page: 11



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 33
vchlist Voucher List Page: 12
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code : apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189006 9/18/2020 007629 SAM'S CLUB DIRECT 004939 GQOHKP VENDING MACHINE SODAAND TIS
01-14-000-73115 86.54
01-26-025-73580 81.62
Total : 168.16
189007 9/18/2020 019596 SANCHEZ, KATIE 091420 COST SHARE REIMBURSEMENT 1€
01-26-023-75200 506.50
Total : 506.50
189008 9/18/2020 007092 SAUNORIS 637544 PLAY SAND
01-26-023-73770 47.93
Total : 47.93
189009 9/18/2020 019593 SEPUTIS, THOMAS 091420 COST SHARE FOR 8907 MEADOWL
01-26-023-75200 897.50
Total : 897.50
189010 9/18/2020 007453 SERVICE SANITATION, INC. 7919761 PORTABLE BATHROOM
01-35-000-72923 605.00
Total : 605.00
189011 9/18/2020 017378 SIKICH LLP 460840 AUDIT FYE 4/30/20 SERVICES REN|I
01-14-000-72845 5,519.22
12-00-000-72845 2,861.82
16-00-000-72845 511.04
18-00-000-72845 613.25
20-00-000-72845 613.25
27-00-000-72845 613.25
60-00-000-72845 4,640.43
63-00-000-72845 1,546.81
64-00-000-72845 2,651.68
70-00-000-72845 429.25
Total : 20,000.00
189012 9/18/2020 013043 SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. 7482PH2-37 LANDSCAPE PLANNING
VTP-017897 01-26-023-72847 853.75
7698-58 NATURALIZED STORMWATER MAIM

Page: 12



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 34
vchlist Voucher List Page: 13
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189012 9/18/2020 013043 SITE DESIGN GROUP, LTD. (Continued)
VTP-017852 01-26-023-72847 972.67
7946-40 FIELD INSPECTIONS 7/26-8/22/20
VTP-017834 01-26-023-72847 1,341.13
7947-19 LAWN TREATMENT AREAS
VTP-017842 01-26-023-72847 440.00
7955-23 SPRINKLERS
VTP-017816 01-26-023-72847 78.75
8081-30 PLANTERS
VTP-017892 01-26-023-72847 558.75
8322-24 FAIRFIELD GLEN POND RESTORAT
VTP-017820 30-00-000-73681 623.75
8323-25 APPLE LANE POND RESTORATION
VTP-017819 30-00-000-73681 807.50
8498-20 URBN FORESTRY PROGRAM
VTP-017837 01-26-023-72847 3,439.95
8802-02 LANDSCAPE PLANNING
VTP-017897 01-26-023-72847 20.00
8803-06 MAINTENANCE OF LANDSCAPE BE
VTP-017847 01-26-023-72847 1,030.00
Total : 10,166.25
189013 9/18/2020 007224 STANDARD EQUIPMENT COMPANY P24380 RIGHT FRONT BROOM PARTS UNI1
VTP-018029 01-26-023-72530 792.81
Total : 792.81
189014 9/18/2020 012238 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3456076129 STAPLERS,CORRECT TAPE,POST |
01-14-000-73110 117.68
01-15-000-73110 41.05
Total : 158.73
189015 9/18/2020 015452 STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY S006712623.001 LIMIT SWITCH WHISKER HEAD
60-00-000-72520 10.58
63-00-000-72520 10.58
S006715267.001 MILWAUKEE 8PIECE TOOL SET
60-00-000-73410 269.92
63-00-000-73410 29.99
Page: 13



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 35
vchlist Voucher List Page: 14
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code : apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189015 9/18/2020 015452 STEINER ELECTRIC COMPANY (Continued)
64-00-000-73410 128.54
Total : 449.61
189016 9/18/2020 007297 SUTTON FORD INC./FLEET SALES 511117 BEARING AND SHAFT REPAIR KIT
01-26-024-72540 89.96
Total : 89.96
189017 9/18/2020 019560 THE STANDARD COMPANIES 134286A 3M CHEMICAL SUPPLIES
VTP-018015 01-26-025-73580 326.32
Total : 326.32
189018 9/18/2020 019597 TINLEY VENTURES, LTD 091520 UTILITY EASEMENT 2020-R-060
27-00-000-75300 12,500.00
Total : 12,500.00
189019 9/18/2020 007955 TRAFFIC CONTROL & PROTECTION 105101 ALUMINUM BLANK STANDARD RAL
01-26-023-73830 301.15
Total : 301.15
189020 9/18/2020 019006 TRAFFIC CONTROL COMPANY 18210 PAVEMENT STRIPING
VTP-017855 01-26-023-75802 4,161.40
18220 PAVEMENT STRIPING
VTP-017855 01-26-023-75802 18,035.88
18566 PAVEMENT STRIPING
VTP-017855 01-26-023-75802 9,071.59
Total : 31,268.87
189021 9/18/2020 013200 TRIBUNE PUBLISHING COMPANY CuU00027575 AUG'20 CLASSIFIED LISTINGS
01-33-310-72330 213.00
16-00-000-72330 241.51
27-00-000-72330 337.09
01-33-310-72330 384.00
Total : 1,175.60
189022 9/18/2020 004106 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-314624 <FIN> - ADDITIONAL CASHIERING \
VTP-018013 60-00-000-74128 1,530.00
045-315022 EXECUTIME LICENSE INCREASE

Page: 14



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 36
vchlist Voucher List Page: 15
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code:  apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189022 9/18/2020 004106 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC (Continued)
VTP-016786 30-00-000-74139 570.00
VTP-016786 60-00-000-74139 190.00
Total : 2,290.00
189023 9/18/2020 008085 VERMEER MIDWEST/VERMEER IL PF3898 MOTOR-HYD 32.2
01-26-023-72530 899.28
Total : 899.28
189024 9/18/2020 012368 VISION INTEGRATED GRAPHICS,LLC 539388 AUG'20 WATER INVOICES
60-00-000-72310 1,298.75
64-00-000-72310 556.60
539407 AUG'20 LATE NOTICES
60-00-000-72310 759.61
64-00-000-72310 325.54
Total : 2,940.50
189025 9/18/2020 010165 WAREHOUSE DIRECT WORKPL SOLTNS 4757167-0 HANGING FOLDER
01-26-025-73110 16.36
4760251-0 WALL CLOCK
01-26-025-73110 68.99
4760871-0 PAPER
01-26-025-73110 428.40
Total : 513.75
189026 9/18/2020 011055 WARREN OIL CO. W1335903 N.L. GAS USED 8/18/20-9/4/20
01-17-205-73530 6,716.73
01-19-000-73530 431.93
01-19-020-73530 59.76
01-21-000-73530 140.56
60-00-000-73530 684.67
63-00-000-73530 17117
64-00-000-73530 366.79
01-26-023-73530 1,177.26
01-26-024-73530 472.99
01-33-300-73530 186.42
01-12-000-73530 109.93

Page: 15



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 37
vchlist Voucher List Page: 16
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code : apbank
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

189026 9/18/2020 011055 WARREN OIL CO. (Continued)

01-14-000-73532 17.22
01-14-000-73531 65.73
14-00-000-73530 33.28
01-42-000-73530 275.81

W1335904 DIESEL USED 8/18/20-9/4/20
01-19-000-73545 814.26
60-00-000-73545 197.23
63-00-000-73545 49.31
64-00-000-73545 105.66
01-26-023-73545 1,003.71
01-26-025-73545 159.00
01-14-000-73531 468.18
Total : 13,707.60
73 Vouchers for bank code : apbank Bank total : 1,614,794.05
Page: 16



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 38
vchlist Voucher List Page: 17
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code : ipmg
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2762 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006 PAYEE-ADVANET
01-14-000-72542 119.07
Total : 119.07
2763 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-2 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 251.24
Total : 251.24
2764 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-3 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82
Total : 268.82
2765 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-4 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 298.54
Total : 298.54
2766 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-5 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 268.82
Total : 268.82
2767 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-6 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORKS INC
01-14-000-72542 208.19
Total : 208.19
2768 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-7 PAYEE-ALIGN NETWORK INC
01-14-000-72542 243.42
Total : 243.42
2769 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-8 PAYEE-DUPAGE MEDICAL GROUP
01-14-000-72542 122.57
Total : 122.57
2770 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200515W005 PAYEE-INGALLS HEALTH SYSTEM
60-00-000-72542 48.62
63-00-000-72542 9.26
64-00-000-72542 24.81
Total : 82.69
Page: 17



AGENDA -9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY.... Page | 39
vchlist Voucher List Page: 18
09/17/2020 2:58:40PM Village of Tinley Park
Bank code: ipmg
Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

2771 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-9 PAYEE-PAMELA YOUNKER
01-14-000-72542 1,113.02
Total : 1,113.02
2772 9/15/2020 018837 INSURANCE PROGRAM MANAGERS GR 200803W006-10 PAYEE-PAMELA YOUNKER
01-14-000-72542 1,113.02
Total : 1,113.02
11 Vouchers for bank code : ipmg Bank total : 4,089.40
86 Vouchers in this report Total vouchers : 1,622,057.22
The Tinley Park Village Board having duly met at Village
Hall do hereby certify that the following claims or demands
against said village were presented and are approved for
payment as presented on the above listing.
In witness thereof, the Village President and Clerk of
the Village of Tinley Park, hereunto set their hands.
Village President
Village Clerk
Date
Page: 18



Page | 40

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

l :abed
12'295'9¢ ! [ej0) yjueg Ad—de :epo9 ueq 10} SIBYINOA ¥
89'685°' ‘lejor
89'G8S'C 0€+02-000-00-98
1INd 1d3S NOISN3d 30110d duvv 02100l dddd- ddvv dyvv 3HVOHLTVIH A3LINN €19200 0202/5¢2/6 9/29¢}
L1'8L1°CE -lejoL
12°125'v) 0€02-000-00-98
1INd LO0-SNI HLTVY3H-SS81 LZ#D/V 021001 ¥d-SOASOH
ov'959°LL 0€+02-000-00-98
Nd Ld3S-SNI H1TV3H-SS8L LZ#O/V 021001 ¥ddd-SOASOH NOILVYHOdHO0O JOIAYIS IHVYOHLIVIH 0¥9P00 0202/52/6 G/29¢L
88°6G¢€ - lejoL
88'6G€ 0€¥02-000-00-98
03Q - LO0/Ld3S'HLA-SNI HL1V3H 9162868210004d @13IHS 3N19 SSOYD 3AN19 WIHLNY #98910 020Z/SC/6 v.29¢Cl
vS'8eYy -lejoL
1281514 0€+02-000-00-98
030 - LOO/LINd Ld3S-SNI HLV3H €102.68210004d a13IHS 3N18 SSOYD 3N19 WIAHLNY #9891L0 020Z/SZ/6 €.29¢1
junowy junosayjuonduasag #0d 9210AU| Jopuap  ojeq 1849N0A
Ad de :apodjueg
yaed Asjuli) jo abejliA NV9L:L0:Cl 0202/52/60
b :abed JS177 J9YONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 41

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

Z :abed
(0] 0)4 G€YC/-000-00-€9
L9LLe S€¥2/-000-00-09
)/LNd 1d3S-3ISN3dX3 SNI HLTV3H 916286821000dV  A13IHS 3N19 SSOYD INT19 WIHLNVY #989L0 0202/52/6 G€0681
14°%:154 -lejoL
LSLEL G€YC.-000-00-¥9
L6y S€¥2.-000-00-€9
98°/G¢ S€¥2/-000-00-09
)/LNd 1d3S-3SN3dX3 SNI HLTV3H €102.6821000dV a13IHS 3N19 SSOYD ANT9 WIHLNY #989L0 0¢0¢/SC/6 £0681
00°S6 -lejoL
0066 06.¢.,-€20-92-10
J0IAY3S LS3N LINYHOH €028 077 NOILVYNINY3ILX3 LS3dNVY 0,200 020¢2/SC/6 €£€0681
0o'ocl ‘lejoL
00°0¢ct 0¥12.-520-92-10
101vd3dO 0/8/V SSV1D Tl TGP Oxxxs 08.0L JLNLILSNI NN3T0YL3d NVOIY3NY G0.S5L0 020¢/S2/6 ¢e0681
8LCLL ‘lejoL
66'S SLL€.-¥20-9¢-L0
66°LL S11€.-€20-9¢-10
09°€ SL1L€2-000-00-+9
6€'8 S11€2-000-00-09
OMd HOd 3344005 10xxsx G91€-02€060-6.9.08
Lces Sleel-s0e-LL-10
Y1d ANV SNIADVN H3dVd G P0xxxx 0cilie0 AVM3I4VS/SNOSLH3IgaTV 991LL0 020¢2/S2/6 1€0681
00'0.¢ ‘jejoL
00°0.¢ ¥09%.-000-61-10
J1vHgIvO "33 02091 ONI ‘LNJNdIND3 INO HIV ¥€.200 020Z/ST/6 0€0681
S8'€€LC : lejoL
G8'€EL'T L065/-000-00-€€
VYL /v#Qd 6V€ZL696Z0CLLY#LDJV 6V€CL696Z0CLLY 1% 1V 281510 020Z/52/6 620681
00054 :lejoL _
00°0S1 66502-000-00-09
2 uin} pull 02801 S00# 1SO punidy dn /8296€10043Y {HSV ‘dVLLVYHY NIINVH B HYTTVAVMY €09610 0202/v2/6 yyors
jJunowy junosay/uondussaq #0d 9210AU| Jopuap  djeq FETELTTY
jueqde :apodjueg
Nied Asjui] jo abejpa WV9L:1L0:Z)L 0202/52/60
Z :abed 3S17 19YONOA ISI|YOA



Page | 42

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

I :abed
H46-CLHHVS AY311vE €0.5S1Led 112 -SN1d S314311v8 €560L0 0202/52/6 6€£0681
00°SC jejol
00's¢C G006.-000-00-90
NO7T ON ¥3MOILLS -4VO ONILYNOd 028160 SINN3Q ‘L13¥Hve 8656L0 0202/52/6 8€0681
€6'895°9 jejoL
056l 06.2.-€20-9¢-10 128210-d1A
J3N @Y IONVYHOVT - SHIDINIYCS L09l0l
oocie 06.2/.-520-92-10 898/10-dIA
1NO MOT9 B dN LHVYLS S65L01
S6°CLS 06.¢.-520-9¢2-10 898/10-d1A
1NO MO19 B dN LYVYLS 886101
96'8L¥ 06.¢.-520-92-10 898/10-dIA
1NO MOT9 8 dN LHVLS 185101
00'L61 06.¢.-520-92-10 898/10-dIA
1NO MOT9 B dN LYVY1LS S/S10L
cL6vL 06.2.-520-92-10 898/10-d1A
1NO MOT9 B dN LYVYLS GoGL0L
00'€ge 06.2.,-€20-92-10 128210-d1A
00dHAVZ MHVd VO - SHIDINIYLS §SSL0L
0S°2es 06.2.-€20-92-10 128210-d1LA
SNVIAIN LSLZ) - SHIDINIYCLS 9eG1L0lL
oc'6lLE’l 06.¢.-€20-92-10 128L10-d1A
)S133YLS NITHVYH - SHIINIYAS 8¢5s1L0L NMVY1 8 ONIGWNTd LSINVNDY 9€61L0 0202/SZ/6 L€068L
00°0S.°L ‘lejoL
00°L¥I 02.2/-000-00-¥9
0S'LLL 02.2/-000-00-€9
0S'LLL 02.2/-000-00-09
00°0S€ 02.2.-¥20-92-10
000L6 0¢.2/-€20-92-10
21 TIYM3N3Y dIHSH3IgGN3IN YAV 20991 VMdY 0Z.LL0 0202/SZ/6 9€0681
88°6G€ ‘lejoL
16°201 GE¥2.-000-00-¥9
(penuguog)  @I3IHS IN19 SSOHD INTE WIHLNY ¥989L0 0202/SZ/6 SE0681L
jJunowy jJunovsayjuonduasag # Od 9210AU] Jopuap  9jeq FEOELTTN
yueqde : 9po9 jueg
yled Asjui] jo abejpa Wv9lL:L0:2l 0202/52/60
¢ :abed 3S17 JBYONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 43

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

4 :abed
141 MOV1g-133HMY 62€-0¢0290 "ONI LHIa MOv1g €26200 0c0c/Sc/6 cr068L
00°005°‘C . jejoL
06’81 189€/-000-00-+9
So'Ly 189€/-000-00-€9
g8'v.E 189¢€/-000-00-09
00°'GGC 068¢.-€20-9¢-10
1LS O9VIIHO OL1 ST10dS ONITNVH €G6100¢C
0s'Le 189€/-000-00-¥9
Ge'L 189€/.-000-00-€9
G199 189€/2-000-00-09
00'GSy 068¢.-€2¢0-9¢-10
43NOH OL SdIHO AOOM ONITNVH ¢5100¢
00'sEl 098¢€.-000-00-¥9
0S'LE 098€/.-000-00-€9
05°€8¢ 098€/-000-00-09
00'G.L 098€.-000-00-0L
00's¢ce 098€/.-€2¢0-9¢-10
L NOSNVH INOY4d INOLS ONITNVYH 1G100¢
0062 098€.-000-00-04
00°GEl 098¢€/-000-00-¥9
0S'LE 098€/-000-00-€9
09°€8¢ 098€.-000-00-09
00'9¢c 098€/-€2¢0-9¢-L0
1 NOSNVH INOY4 INOLS ONITNVH 051002 \Y3S NOILONYLSNOD NISNVHN3L139 v.6200 020Z/SC/6 L0681
0S°LSl . |eyolL
0G°/SL Geve/L-S0¢-LL-L0
VHNSNI HLIV3H SNIYH3FG AYH3r 02100LdVv AYY3r ‘'SN3IYH3IE SLOE00 0202/S2/6 0v0681L
08°'SLy . jejoL
oo'oviL 06G62.-000-00-¥1
48-CLV1S Ad3livd 9cescecelied
00'ovL 06G6¢/.-000-00-1
48-2LV1S AY3Lllva 1.508L1€Ed
08'GeElL 1¢12/.-G¢0-9¢-L0
(panuiuo)) 112 -SN1d S31Y3L1vdg €560L0 0202/SC/6 6€0681
junowy junodaysuondiaasaqg #0d 8910AU| JOPUdA ajeq JaYonoA
yueqde : apo9djueg
yded Asjuiy jo abejpa INV9L:10:ZL 0202/SZ/60
v :obed 3S17 19YONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 44

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

(o] :abed
"NOISSINNOO SNVYHILIA TSV 9uxxs 022060
clLle 02.2.-000-G€-10
NOILdIMOSENS ATHLHOW 2S5 9xxxx 022060
86'GY 0LL€2-000-¥1L-10
S3AINddNS F0I440 TGV xxxx 029280
00°'0S¢ €26¢.-000-5€-10
S3Z1dd HON3IE SLSILYUV TGP 9xxxx 025280
00°00¢C €¢6¢/.-000-G€-1L0
S3ZI4d HON3E SLSILHV CG1uxxx 025280
91°G¢c 02.c¢/-000-¥L-1L0
ATHLNOW ONILITNOLOD TSV xxxx 0clLeeo
66'6¢C G86¢/.-000-G€-1L0
MOOLS F90AYV SV Ouxxx 020z80
SL'vST 0v12.-000-€€-10
WNLHIA H3LdVHO TI-VdV CSP9 xxxx 020280
0005 0.8€/2-000-G€-10
1Z14d FONITIVHO OLOHd ZSV9xxxx 028180
05°L€ 0¢c¢c/-000-¢L-Lo
410 M3N HOd LSVAMVIHG TGV Oxxxx 028180
6809 €69¢/.-000-5€-10
| G3-YOSNOdS MOOG3AIV 2G5V 9uxxx 025180
16'88- 0¢S¢.-G2¢0-9¢-10
NYNLIH NOZVINY CGP9 xxxx 0CLEeL0
68'9.¢- 666%5-000-00-10
1 QHVYM3IY HSYO LIA3™D CSP9 xxsxx 02eLL0
€0’e- £€26¢/-000-G¢-10
I NOYd A3AONIY SAXVL CGVxxxx 118029201 93aM# ¥'N (W¥SN) ¥NvE INO TVLIdVD 626LL0 020T/52/6 0681
711 - jejol
00°50¢C 0S9¢/-000-91-1L0 8/8/10-dIA
S TVOINHO31 O0OHAV XIJLID - <L1I> LMO4-1€5990-Sd
GL'€SL 069¢/-000-91-10 8/8/10-dIA
S IVOINHO3L OOHAV XIYLID - <1I> €X.LZ-89.v0-Sd ONI dNOYO AOOMYNEG 952610 0202/5C/6 €v0681
00°08¥ |ejoL
00°08t 089€.-€20-9¢2-10
(panunuog) "ONI LYIQ MOV18 €26200 0202/52/6 Tv0681
junowy jJunodayjuondiiasag #0d 9910AU| Jopuap  ajeq FETELTTY
yueqde 1 9pod yueg
yled Asjui] jo abejjia INV9L:10:2l 0202/52/60
S :abed 3SI17 J9YONOA ISIIYoA



Page | 45

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

9 :abed
dIHS NMOIND Z579uxss /8Y8/9v05
0z oL 01122-000-L-10
dIHS NMOITD 257 usnx BEYIE8E0S
SL°L 01L22-000-¥L-10
dIHS NMOITO 267 9uxsx TELT8LE0S
SlL'L 0LLZ2-000-EL-10
JNOD TTIM - dIHS NMOITO 25V usax 86EY0YE0S
oriL 0112.-000-tL-10
NIOHINI U dIHS NADITO 257 Qunns 112658205
G812 02.2/-000-S1-10
dINVLS AYMVLON ZGH9uuxs 0S€Ll
00's2¢ Ov1Z.L-0ZE-EE-10
JONIFHTAINOD TIVH HIL ZGPuxax 6.20-G9%1
96'6€ 0¥SZ.-¥20-92-10
¥6'6. 0vSZ.-€20-92-10
¥6'6. 0¥52.-000-00-09
SANOHJHYT 2G5V ussx LS0LLEC-21Z00V6-VLL
26'S6- £262/-000-G€-10
23Q ONIONVLSIA TVIDOS 25V usnx Ov¥SS9.L-LPELOST-ELL
G672 0/8€.-000-5€-10
S319VYD 25 9unxs 879Y568-9€6/686-CL1
69°€91 0/8€/-000-S€-10
INOHJOHIIN ZGH9ssnx ¥08.660-G87.£99-CLL
66'819 6252/-000-00-%9
1417 404 NIIHOS HONOL 2G5V ussex Y0L6SZLL
Tad! ¥662.-000-5€-10
ISNIN YO SANVEV.LSIEMM ZG7xsnx £Y0SY.Z-5¥65085-LLL
6671 02.2.-02€-€€-10
149S9NS ATHLNOW WOOZ ZG¥xnxx 020160
00'8z¥'L 02.2.-000-S€-10
JIAYIAS ONILINYVIN VLVA GV xunx 026060
00'sZL £692/-000-6€-10
| 3YOSNOdS XOOFIOVS 2G5V usax 02060
¥€'95 €262.-000-G€-10
SHIAMOTH ININIOV1dIY 25V Qusnn 022060
¥8'€9 0./8€/-000-G€-10
(penuiuo)) ‘¥'N ‘(WSN) MNvE8 INO 1VLIdVD 626LL0 0202/52/6 70681
junowy junod2dyjuonduasaqg 9910AU| JOpUaA ajeq Jayonop
jueqde : 8podiueg
yed Aajuil jo abejjp INV9L:10:ZL 0202/52/60
9 :obed }SI7 J3YINOA ISIIYOA



Page | 46

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

A :ebed
ev'se 6962/-000-94-10
vav 3IAILOV VOA 01 44 14€ ddidL 0€0bEEL
10'88. 2862.-000-G€-10 LE08L0-dLA
ILVLSHHOM LNWO1d3Y - <OLMN> 81.92Z€1
¥8°Gl oLLeL-S02-L1-1L0 82¢0810-d1A
{3AIAT ¥O4 SIAINA HSY14 - <ad> 15G€E8LL ONI LNJWNYIA0O MAD €¥ZE00 0202/5Z/6 Lp0681
00'685°‘L - jejoL
00'Lee'L 08G6€/.-620-9¢-10
vO'STIMOL H3dVd ' '¥3dvd 131101 8v./.8
00'¥9¢ 0.8€.-620-9¢-10
S3AdIM TVIY3LOVEILNY G68.L ONI S101 3SVDO 96€€00 020¢/5¢/6 90681
0S°Lve . jejoL
0.'6¢C 0¥12.-000-00-¥9
€6'9 0v12¢.-000-00-€9
1€29 0¥122-000-00-09
SlLve ovL2.L-¥20-92-10
[V 24 0v12.-G2¢0-9¢-L0
0066 ovic2L-€20-9¢-1L0
ONIHIANOD H3SN HAVHOILHVO L C6900NIS 0711 SNILSAS HAVHOILYEVYD ¥65€00 0202/S52/6 Sv0681
18'60Z‘V . jejoL
00°0¥ 0ovL2.-0Ce-€€-10
HVYNIGIM WOOZ CSV9xxxx LL¥S9Y9EANI
G8'88 0v¥SC.L-+20-9¢-10
89°LL1 0¥G2C.L-€20-9¢-10
89°/LL) 0¥52.-000-00-09
ST3AMOL dOHS €GP xxxn 8Z81L09CONI
00°S1L 0v12.-000-00-¥9
0S'LL 0v1¢.-000-00-€9
0S'LL 0v1¢.-000-00-09
LIV 2 {04 NOILVHLSID3Y G 9xxsx 1193914
69°9¢t $662.-000-G€-10
MIVHO ONIdIYLS TSV 9uxss /€06
ov'Le 0LL2.-000-¥L-L0
(panunuo)) ‘V'N ‘(YSN) MNvg INO 1vLIdVYO 626LL0 0202/52/6 0681
junowy jJunovayjuondiosaqg #0d 9210AU| JOpUaA ajeq Jayonop
yueqde :apodjueg
yed Aajuiy jo abejjIA INV9L:10:ZL 0202/52/60
1 :abed 3SI17 J9YONOA ISI|YoA



Page | 47

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

] :abeqd
8.°89 015¢/-000-00-¥9
H3IGNIL M 0562 6£0650.LE90#LDDV 6€£06502€90
e dii% 0lG¢.-¥20-9¢-10
ISHIATIS 8¥661 STY900L LyO#LOOV 29001 2¥0
96°09 015¢/-000-00-v9
® AY 31H0dV1 9907901 2r0#LODV 990¥901 0
19'v.e 015¢/-000-00-¥9
3AISMO0YAd SS ¢200vYS8E0# LIV 2200vS8c0
LL6l2'C 016¢/-520-9¢-10
8 10081 NLS HYd 00018158€0#1L00V 00018158€0 NOSId3 HLTVaMNOWWOD - dJN0D 8/8€L0 020Z/S¢/6 £50681
vo'LEY'L - lejoL
vo'LEY'L 0LG¢.-¥20-9¢-10
4Vdl G21d 3117 2S0€9LL LL9#1 DDV ¢S0€91LLLL9 Q30D ¢68EL0 020¢/Se/6 250681
€0°029°6} jejol
€0°0,9'61 188¢/-€20-9¢-10 6¥8.10-dIA
3 3dVOSANV1 404 ONVNILNIVIN 15C8L S3dVOSANVT H¥3993M ALSIHHO S¥9rL0 020¢/52/6 1S0681
00°0€9 s lejoL
00°0€9 068¢.-€20-9¢-10
334 dANA 90961 071'a@d0 1334LS O9OVIIHO 6¥€LL0 020Z/ST/6 050681
£5°68.°6 tlejoL
€6°68.'6 0¥52.-000-6}-10
JLOLdV#NIA NO 30IAY3S F10IH3A GE€69C S3DIAY3S Y3TANVHD 920v1L0 0202/S2/6 60681
00°052°Ck - fejoL
oo'osz'zL 0.G€.-¥20-9¢-10
S10NAdo¥d 310d OOdVH €CEYES-GC0S J3ION343/a30 622€00 020C/SC/6 810681
62°065°L - jejol
€.°0C ¥09¥/-000-00-0€
190L€-W3A MNIT-a 619951
ccovs 8¢1¥.-000-00-0€
dM 8/95¢ L0056-G1 SO 00¥ 9S dH 80vv.ivL
(penunuo)) ONI LN3WNY3IA0D MAD €¥Ze00 020¢/S5¢/6 L0681
junowy jJunosayjuondiiasaqg #0d 9910AU| Jopusp  9jeq 13Yyonop
yueqde  : apodjueg
yaed Asjuiy jo abejpp INV9L:10:2L 0202/52/60
8 :abed 3S17 J9Y9NOoA ISIIYoA



Page | 48

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

6 :abed
00002'C €252.-5¢0-9¢-10
0Z/S1/6 NO SHIVd3d Y3AvVd 6.2€ "ONI LAINHOS YO 00910 0202/52/6 150681
8z'L2Z') ‘lejoL
89'GEL 0€9€.-000-00-%9
99'LE 0€9€.-000-00-€9
¥6'¥8¢C 0€£9€.-000-00-09
an ¥ivdad 'onid/m an /8S000N
oocel 1€9€/-000-00-19
00'80€ 1€9€.-000-00-09
NOILO3INNOD H313W 3ZNOoNHd 55956
05001 1€9€/-000-00-%9
05'¥€C 1€9€.-000-00-09
qdyl .2-2/1-1L 21/20 934 INWO 866G.LLIN d1 NIVIA 8 30O +¥€2810 0202/S2/6 950681
00°006 ‘lejoL
00006 0¥S2.-000-61-10
y31 MOT4 ANY 3HNSSIHd HIIVM 86000N020C ONI SOAYS 13374 d31valmloOSNOD 0.69L0 020Z/S2/6 GG0681
SZ'Ly ‘lejoL
Sc'ly 0€62.-520-9¢-10
HOLdvaV LNVHAAH 2068€099 "ONI ‘'S4 AY3SNOD 0LP2L0 0202/52/6 50681
16°0S1°S rlejop
¥6'GS 0152/-000-00-€9
AVHL08 S CLL6L €L0LL0EBESHIDV €10.10€86S
¥0°L61 016¢/-520-9¢2-10
3 QYe8l M 0862 000LELLEPS#LDDV 000LELLEYS
9€’Le 0162.-000-00-0
1a Y39NIL 0592 800€9LEVEY#LIIV 800€9lEV6Y
[A%°14% 0162.-000-00-%9
N7 d131439ald 850851 €08v#1L00V 850851 €081
009 01LS2.-¥20-92-10
VdO S 05291 LG0.ZL90V #1100V 1502190t
S6'€El 01S2.-#20-9¢-10
OMMI YV 2€6 £2066E02Z6C#LOOV €206€0¢226¢
(penupuo)) NOSIA3 HLIVIMNOWWOD - 3W0J 8/8€L0 0¢0Z/S2/6 €50681
junowy jJuno2ayjuondiasag #0d 9210AU| lopuap  3djeq Jayanop
jyueqde : 9po9 jueg
saed Asjui] jo abejjip NV9L:10:ZL 0202/52/60
6 :abed 3SI7 18YONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 49

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

oL -abed
oool S006.-000-00-90
| 404 "YIMOILS MONYL IONVYHOX3 0ceee0 39Y039 ‘OHONVAI 665610 020Z/52/6 G90681
00'v09 - jejoL
0z'i8l G98¢/-000-00-€9
08'¢ey G98¢/-000-00-09
SIATdNVS WHO4LITOD 99.¥€1-0C "ONI Sgv1dl3 600 0202/S2/6 790681
00°0LL ‘lejoL
000L} 019€2-000-61-40
SiINvd L0¥¥6C ONI OO0 WHO4INN 319V 60000 0202/52/6 £90681
00°s¢ LjejoL
00'G¢C G006.-000-00-90
IMDILS 40 ASYHOUNd 31vII1dNd 0ceee0 NOANVYg “HITINNIOYOA L096L0 020Z/52/6 290681
00°086 - jejoL
00086 G¢GC/-520-9¢-10 ¢v0810-d1IA
741 IAVY HL08 ONINVITO NIHOLIM 68681 HVINNVYA 9.G81L0 020¢/s2/6 190681
0009 Ljejol
00’8l 098¢.-000-00-¥9
ocol 098¢.-000-00-€9
08'LE 098¢.-000-00-09
‘N3O 100 J04 LNFNISHNGNITH 0cce60 MOIYY3A ‘YHHONZO 0€S€00 0202/S2/6 090681
00086t - jejoL
00°086'y 06.¢.-000-00-09 8€CLL0-dIA
103rodd ONILNIVd LNVHAAH G6S¢C "“ONI ‘S3SIYdYILNT ¥3AAYO 8612L0 020Z/ST/6 650681
S€'8. -|ejol
G9'9¢ 0L€C¢.L-S0¢C-LL-10
ayvd SS3NISNg 39avdg 30110d 89008
oL’y 0L1€.-000-€€-10
IMYUVYIOM SAYVO SSANISNG 61008 ONI ‘ONILNIYd MHVYINSSOHO S€9€00 02Z0Z/52/6 850681
00°002°‘C ‘lejoL (penunuo)) "ONI LAINHOS "0 040910 0,0910 0coc/se/e 150681
junowy junodsoy/uonduasaq #0Od 9910AU| Jopusp  9jeq FETELET
jueqde :apodjueg
Nied Aajui]l jo abejja INV9L:10:2) 0202/52/60
0l :abed }S17 419YONOoA ISIIYOA



Page | 50

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

Ll :abed
286 0¥5¢.-000-00-09
0€'9¢- 0¥5C.-€20-92-10
14 KA 0%52.-000-00-¥9
o’L- 0¥52.-000-00-€9
ovr'v- 0%52.-000-00-09
ov'9L- 0¥SC.L-€20-92-10
H3ILVM ANV LI3HLS ¥O4 11a3¥0 G2859Y-CS
09'SS 0vS2L-G02-LL-10
31714 NOISSINSNVHL L2vCy0E-0S
6v'eLl 0vSC.-G0C-L1-10
Y3SNIANOD 88G8€0€-05
G2'8¢ 0¥ScC.L-S0C-L1-10
d3Lid div 2¢/.8.€0€-0S
(4514 0¥SC.-S0¢-L1-10
MOANIM-ASY HO1O0N €18¢20€-05
€190} 0¥SC.L-G0C-LL-10
HO1VNLOV' MOANIM HO1V1NO3YH 196120€-0S dNd LY62L0 0202/52/6 040681
82’98 - |ejol
00'vy 0v52.-000-¢-10
JONVYId 052.886S
8C'LYy 0€G6¢.-€20-9¢-10
S1139 139v1a109 919 A10d 6€2¢82.6S 3Ardd13374 850510 020¢/s¢/6 690681
£€5°¢€ ‘lejop
€G'€C 0LL2.L-S0¢-LL-10
"HdVYHO ONITIVIN €-G658-28C9#1 00V y€08€-8L1-L (SS3¥dX3 1vd3aa3d) X3a3d 9.1¥00 0202/S2/6 890681
00°SSY -jejol
00'SSYy Ly82/-0LE-€€-L0
SANV1 HOd OAS 40dd L2'L2lolL0 EVEBLC dNOY9 HLYOMSNYV4 084810 0202/5C/6 190681
0L°€90°L€E1 cjejoL
0,'€90°L€1 9215/2-000-00-€€
€ ASVHd NOILVLS VHL3IN AV H108 ¢-0/€-0SS1 ® NISTAINN S ‘NIHOSVd H 4 ZL29L0 0202/52/6 990681
000} ‘lejoL (penunuo)) 394039 ‘OHONVA3 665610 665610 0202/S¢C/6 690681
junowy junosayjuondiiasag #0d 9910AU| Jopuap  ajeq FETELTYN
jueqde :apodjueg
yed Aajuil jo abejjip WVv9lL:10:2lL 0202/52/60
(1) :abed ISIT7 19YONOA ISI|YoA



Page | 51

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

Zl :abed
000V :|ejoL
00zL 011L€2-000-00-%9
08¢ 011L€2-000-00-€9
02'S2 011L€2-000-00-09
SAIN 31vOINdna £2.989 ONI SMO01 AQ109D 8£5¥00 0202/52/6 ¥10681
9Lyl i jejoL
0L°€LL 0LLEL-000-6L-10
$S317ddNS 321440 L0Y9/6LANId
99°¢E 0LLE2-000-6L-10
H3AT0H WHO4 2TTYL6LANId S10NA0¥d 321440 SAIAHYD 6¥€6L0 0202/52/6 £/0681
9Ll :|ejoL
9Ll 0252.-620-92-10
INLYVYHAA ONIQTING ¥O4 SY31TI4 v8142L "ONI “OD ¥3IWIFHMYIa ‘M 'O 228200 0202/52/6 210681
z9'cz8 :|ejoL
86'G8 0/8€/-€20-92-10
doOMA1d 61619
16'S0) 0/8€/-€20-92-10
ONILIIHS 'ANLS ¥IaNNT 81619
S6°SPC 0/8€.-€20-92-10
H3AI0H' LIg ‘M3Y0S H3gnNT 06¥719
8/'68¢ 0/8€/-€20-92-10
JOOMATd 68v19 ANVANOD ¥39NNT LSIHO4 S§8LP00 0202/52/6 120681
9¢°'v9P :|ejoL
88'€CL 0¥S2.-G0Z-L1-10
HIALYVYLS 162L9V-CS
662 0¥ST.L-G02-L1-10
) ¥ILVM'HALTIH HIV LVLSOWNHIHL 9/1.9v-2S
00'82- 0vSZ.-€20-92-10
ASY HOLVYNYILIV 19€99¥-25
19°G- 0v¥SZ/-000-00-79
LT¢ 0v52/-000-00-€9
(penunuo)) dNd L¥62L0 020Z/S2/6 020681
junowy junosayjuondiuiasaq # 0d 99210AU| Jopuap  3jeQ 13yonop
jueqde :apodueg
yded Asjuiy jo abejia INV9L:L0:ZL 0202/S2/60
2l :abed 3S17 49YIONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 52

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

el -abed
1o 0£¥2£-000-00-09
9v'596 SeEYC.-¥20-9¢-10
8610° SEVZL-€20-92-10
LGces Geye/L-G20-9¢-10
G809 §€¥2/-000-00-¥9
eLee S€¥Z.-000-00-€9
€61 S€Z.-000-00-09
18'20C SEVZL-520-92-10
19'9LE seveL0le-ielo
3SNIdX3 SNI HLTV3H G581 LZ#ONV 02100LdV-SOASOH NOILYHOJH0D 3DIAYIS IUVOHLIVIH 0v9r00 0202/52/6 8.0681
Sv'S19°'6¥L lejol
Sv'S19'6vL 00€52-000-00-2C
VLS TVHINIO 1V GATE JHL 0ZE-L 9 J1LIL SIONITTI ¥3ALYIUO €2v6L0 020Z/52/6 120681
(A% 4 lgjol
Lv'88 048€.-520-92-10
VOINIHO ANV HOLYYIdSTH YSVYI 8162£81596
8E'LY 0£52L-€20-92-10
JSOH J¥14 MOV Nid 0LL10v8Y96
VLT 0L¥€.-000-00-¥9
9’9 01¥€£-000-00-€9
6185 01¥€££-000-00-09
380¥d F1IL 215559996
6061 0L1€2-000-00-¥9
Sy 011€-000-00-€9
60°0¥ 011€.-000-00-09
3901414V 3dvL 138V £80€.00v96
56'85 §11€£-000-00+9
95° L€l G11€.-000-00-09
15961 §11€.-€20-92-10
52’86 SL1EL¥20-92-10
¥ALYM £669€18£96 ¥IONIVHO 8EV¥00 0202/52/6 9,068}
89'SSY'y - lejoL
89'G5v'y 06.ZL-0L€-€E-10
H1IVM VNV 02/0€/8 ANV 02/€T/8 0€9185¢€ 011 VYSNSJAW3LAODO L6€SLO 0202/S2/6 50681
junowy juno2oyjuonduasag #0d 9210AU| JOpUdA ajeq Jayonop
Jueqde :apodueg
ed Aejui jo abeln WV9L:L0:ZL  0202Z/52/60
el :abed 3SI17 I3YONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 53

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

Pl :abed
oecrl 0.8€.-€20-9¢2-10
NIVHO110'39a3am S§¥G9€€0 "ONI 3OIAY3S ANV S3TVS 4 ANV I LG25S00 0202/52/6 980681
SL'6L1 ‘jejoL
G.6L1 0¥S2.-G0Z-LL-10
S331ive ¥288¢ W3LSAS AY3IL1VYE 31VISHILINI 981500 0202/52/6 G80681
SL'1se'L ‘jejol
SL1LST §/8€/-G02-L1-10 6€0810-dIA
LIX 90V VNVNrIYVYIN NOISIA TV.LVd (o]3¢] 44 a1l d40O0NNI 685610 0202/52/6 780681
15'080°) ‘lejoL
15080} S¥€C.-G0C-L1-10 6¥0810-d1A
~ONINNVOS LNINND0A 0€61209v1 "ONI SW3LSAS 321440 ONIOVINI 968700 020Z/S2/6 €80681
00°00S°L 1lejor
00°00S°L G§G92/-000-91-10 €¥0810-d1A
INISN3OIT ALILNIANI dldVY - <LI> S.¥v0-ANI d1 ‘NOILYINOLNY ALILN3AI 6¥08L0 0202/SZ/6 28068}
00°001 1lejol
00°0S 068¢.-€20-9¢-10
SdIHO - 394VHO d0dd ZLSZsiLs
00°0S 068¢.-€20-9¢-10
SdIHO-39YVHO d0ydd 8.¥2SLS SAIFYLSNANI YIWOH 82€CL0 0202/52/6 180681
00°S. ‘fejol
0052 6650C-000-00-09
19Y¥0500# 1SO punjay gan £€8296€10048d ATHIGAIN B AMVYO ‘NVYWTIFH 209610 0202/52/6 080681
00°S61 ‘jejol
00561 0€GC/-50C-L1-L0
JSVAOIQHVYD NV3TO ANV ONILS3IL 6cLicl SINILSAS SSANLIH ININLYVIH €2€210 0202/S2/6 6.0681
68'6.2'8¢C ‘fejoL
99'9v.'22 GEYC.-G0C-L1-10
11N-Ld3S SNI HL1VY3H-GS81 L2#D/V 021001 dVYdd-SOASOH
(penupuod) NOILYHOLHOD IDIAYIS JHYOHLIVIH 0v9b00 0202/52/6 8,068l
junowy jJunodayjuonduasaqg #0d 9910AU| Jopuap  ajeqg 13YdnoA
jJueqde :apod jueg
dded Asjui] jo abejjip INV9L:L0:2L 0202/52/60
14" :abed 3SIT 419YINOA ISIIYOA



Page | 54

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

Sl :abed
66°Cy 0¥5€.-000-61-10
HI1LVM ANV NVO SYO 8616 SAYVYN3IW #20900 020¢/SC/6 £60681
68°0C 1 lejoL
68°0C 0¥52.-G02-L1-10
WIEL TVHINIO 9/926-0€0S 1 ‘dll'A1ddNnS OLNV ¥3LSVIN LESZLO 0202/S2/6 260681
98'v10°l :lejoL
12292 0¥5¢.-502-L1-10
S EINIE] 2/186.5-0v
vZ'eve 0¥SC.-S02-L1-10
Ad3llvd €198.25-0%
Ly’ 0Sy 0¥G2.-S0¢-L1-10
SIMvHg 1161150V
00'8P- 0¥S2/.-S02-L1-10
SADYVYHO FHOI ANN43YH 9€6..5-0v 09VIIHO 40 3AILONOLNY dVIN 696€L0 0202/52/6 160681
00's2¢ ‘fejoL
00'Gee 0%5¢.-020-61-10
Q73IHSANIM A3LNIL 2661LS ‘AYASTTOHAN ® SSY19 OLNVYIN® W 6€¥L00 020Z/SC/6 060681
00°0¢ - lejoL
00°0€ 0€5¢.-520-9¢-10
IONVYNILNIVIN NOILVLS NIVY1 VdO 0cLool 30N¥8 ‘IONIHO1 9v¥8YL0 0202/52/6 680681
vLLEE’) ‘fejoL
6.°0¥C 098€/-000-00-9
8195 098€.-000-00-€9
19'G0S 098€.-000-00-09
8L'EEL 098€.-000-00-02
[A %114 098€.-€20-9¢-10
T14X0ve a39 ¥20S18S NOSNVH HOIH31 06L¥L0 0202/52/6 880681
60'8L 1 jejoL
60'8. 0LL€2-000-G}-10
3Svd ANV dWVLS 31va 1922€9 ‘00 I}MOO0ID 'dT 0L¥SL0 020¢/52/6 180681
\rA 4% 1 lejoL (penunuod)  "ONI IDIAYIAS ANV STTVS ¥ ANV I 152500 1G2500 020¢/S2/6 980681
jJunowy jJunosayjuonduasag # Od 9910AU| Jopuap  adjeq 13YyanoA
jJueqde :apodueg
yed Asjui) jo abejiiA INV9L:L0:Zl 0202/52/60
Sl :abed )S17 18YONOA ISI|YoA



Page | 55

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

9l
00000} 0252.-620-92-10 €00810-dIA
DOHS ONILS3L av31 8 SOLS3dsy 2102 IVLNIWNONHIANT LSIMAIN ¥SS6L0 0202/52/6 960681
0z6zy'e ‘|ejoL
9/°820'L 0£52/-000-00-%9 0/6/10-dIA
11°009 0£52/-000-00-€9 0/6/10-dIA
£€°008'} 0£52/-000-00-09 0.6.10-d1A
HIVd3Y HO1VY3INID zs6el "ONI ¥3MOd OY13IN Z¥.S00 0Z0Z/S2/6 560681
69'526 : |ejoL
G9'GZ6 921¥/-000-00-0¢ G¥8.10-dIA
(N3Q3) HOLIMS LNIAWDTdY - <LI> ovSi8y ONI LI NVIQIY3IN ZLS2L0 020Z/52/6 60681
VX544 :|ejoL
9z'9¢ 0.G€/-620-92-10
13nNno¥o 96626
8L 2.8€.-020-61-10
86°LL G09€/-020-61-10
VIN XOGXONM ANV S311ddNS ¥dD 8626
0629 089€/-G20-92-10
3Qv193avig MvS ‘HOTNN £8626
YXAYA> 0¥8€/-€20-92-10
V12 'ONITdNOD ‘Idid NOILYDIHAI 21626
G6'L 0¥8€/-000-00-+9
S¥'0 0¥8€/-000-00-€9
80V 0¥8€2-000-00-09
SHOHONY 15826
0S¢ 0222/-000-12-10
S¥0L 0€£52/-000-12-10
Yaos™y3 1M LINYOH ‘ISv3Ho 50.26
86°¢ 0L1€2-620-92-10
3dvL @3ais 319noa 98526
66871 0L¥€.-000-61-10
(149 IT1ONV ANV ISIA JOHSHHOM G1£26
08zl S¥8€/-000-61-10
(penunuo) SAYVN3IW 20900 020Z/SZ/6 £60681
junowy jJunovayjuonduasag # Od 9910AU| lopuap  9jeq 13YydonoA
jueqde :apodjueg
Mded Asjui] jo abejpa INV9L:10:2} 0202/52/60
9l }S17 JI9YINOA ISIIYOA



Page | 56

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

Ll :ebed
ov's8l ‘jejoL
€96 S¥8€.-000-00-9
*rAY4 S¥8€/-000-00-€9
€2°0¢C S¥8€/-000-00-09
Lee S¥8€.-€20-9¢-10
9091 S¥8€.-¥20-92-10
SN3T AL34VS 8106¢C1¥06
Zl'sol 0./8€.-520-9¢2-10
AVHdS LINHOH ANV dSYM 06¥521106 "ONI '00 AL34VS NYIHLIYON 122900 0202/52/6 001681
oo'ovv'L ‘lejoL
00°0V¥'L ovLcl-022-L1-10
02/6/6 ONINIVHL ISNOH-NI €Cov.LT ONINIVYL 93Y-ILTNN LSY3 HLYON 912900 020¢/S2/6 660681
S8'8Ly ‘lejoL
/8'8¢ 1162/-520-9¢2-10
y 00,9 G€2080S 600£6¥€CC06#LOOV 600€6¥£2206
06'8€ L1G2/-520-92-10
)GLELL 9191€8C €001 LECYIB#LODV €0001L.€2V18
69691 1162/-520-92-10
. G289 86€8SEE 6000} LECTYYO#LODOV 60001} LECPY9
€6°LEL L162/-520-9¢-10
HLS.L M 1616 #0001 L¥C661#1LODOV ¥0001 L2661
9'6¢€ 1162/-000-00-+9
1 22€6 GSES8EY 99€8916/L0€E#LOIV 99€8916.0€€ HOJIN €2.S510 020Z/ST/6 860681
16°629 ‘lejop
€6°09 0¥52.-000-00-%9
¥G°G€E 0¥52/-000-00-€9
29901 0¥52/-000-00-09
60°€0C 0%5C/-€20-9¢-10
SSg'LolL 0v¥S2.-¥20-92-10
1 X3H'SdNV1D ‘S1¥VYd ‘'STOO0L Md 1000508601
8lL'ccl 0¥SC.L-S02-L1-10
S14yvd INVHE 100€2S600Y ‘00 A1ddNS VIYLSNANI OSW L5910 020¢2/52/6 160681
00°000°L ‘lejol (penunuoQ) IVLNIWNOYHIANT LSIMAIN 55610 ¥5S610 0202/S2/6 960681
junowy junoaayjuonduasaqg 9910AU| JOpusapA  ajeq 13YyanoA
Jueqde :apodueg
yied Asjuiy jo abejjia WV9L:10:2L 0202/52/60
Ll :abed 3SI17 18YONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 57

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

8l
08'0LL ‘jejol
00°Gs¢ 0.52.-000-61-10
3DIAY3S avod 011880069
08'GLS 0/52/-000-61-10
VSOdSIA ANV S3IL ¢l666.0LY ONI '3JIAY3S IHIL S.dINOd 082900 020Z/52/6 S0lL681
oLezsy :jejoL
§€'9¢C 05.2.-000-00-09
ge€'9ce 0§.¢2/-000-vL-L0
3S dIND3 6¥€.520¥00#LOVHLNOD ¢LeCLE9L0L ONI SIMO4G AINLId 667900 0202/5¢2/6 701681
05°968‘9 ‘lejoL
0002y’ 058¢/-000-¥1-10
J3S0¥d d1 40 IOV T11IA L000 09ty 6.Lccel
00292’ GG8¢.-000-¥1-10
1 H08V1dL 40 3OVTIIA LO00'LELY 8/zcelL
osvie 05$82.-000-¥1-10
LN3A NMOYE ‘A AFINIL 2E00°0ELY g/lzeel AVHYNN 8 NOSNHOIM NOSY313d 892/10 0¢0¢/S2/6 €0L681
LL'S0L ‘fejol
9zcel 0L.€.-€20-92-10
73S ANV NNOMTNVYO ZEVL68#LO0V LILLEYI0
99'9 0¥8€.-€20-92-10
IN0D 'ON1d 'dAIVTO ZEVLE8#LODY 1/882¥90
80°'G 0¥8€.-€20-92-10
N1 9NTd ANV dINVTO ZEVLE8#LOOV 1/S8Z¥90
6LV 0.8€/-€20-9¢2-10
) ¥3IMOd IJAISTHAV CEVLE8#LODV LI¥9Z¥90
¥6°LS 0.8€.-000-61-10
S3101 IOVHOLS YOv6#1L00V L/622¥90
86°€C 085€.-000-61-10
HSNYE ANV ANSSIL v0V6#1L00V L/22ey90 FJHVYMAYVYH 30V MdVd S.¥900 0202/52/6 20168l
00°5C lejoL
00'G¢ S006.-000-00-90
JINO SH3IMOILS OML d3SVYHIUNd 0C.160 IQI3H ‘INIYVd 009610 020Z/ST/6 LoL68L
junowy jJunodayjuonduasaqg #0d 3210AU| Jopuap  ajeqg 13Yyanop
jueqde  :apodueg
Med Asjuiy jo abejjiA NV9L:L0:2}k 0202Z/S2/60
8l }SI7 JoYanop ISHYoA



Page | 58

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

6l :abed
80°SS1 ‘lejoL
06'99 02S¢2.-G20-9¢-10
ANMOVE AY3LLVYE HLIM NOIS LIX3 100'805122900S
81'88 0€5¢2/.-G20-9¢-10
HVINAOW LHOd 2 13NVd HO1vd 100°2€502¢2900S ANVAINOD O1¥L03713 ¥3ANIFLS 2S¥SL0 0202/S2/6 1168l
00°200°}L :lejoL
00'vee 089€.-€20-9¢-10
aos €118€9
00'899 089€.-€20-92-10
aos G208€9 SIHONNVS ¢60.00 020c/Sc/6 0L1681
00°000°¢ - lejoL
00000'¢ 06.2.-000-L1-10
.d3S 334 ONILTNSNOD SSANISNE 14°12 071 'dNOYD AHOYH 260610 0202/52/6 601681
A4S - |ejol
Syl G€G6¢.-G20-9¢-10
NILX3 Z#NOILYLSTHId A411LH43D3Y 0086¢ 1ININGINO3 3414 319VvIT3d 028900 0202/52/6 801681
8.'616CL - |ejol
0L€9. 019€.-0¢2-L1-10
dv3ao AQog NI-#€1€50C
06°L01 009€.-0¢C-L1-10
1M AL34VS 30110d NI-€65250¢
81'8/8'L 819%/,-0¢2-L1-10 0S0810-d1A
N4 - YOWYY AQOg LNINIDV1d3d NI-26.150¢
000LL'Y 009€.-022-LL-10 $66.10-dIA
d131HS ANV L3N13H 1O NI-L65150¢C ONI OO NOYY3H O AvYd L9E€900 020¢2/5C/6 01681
99°0€C -lejoL
€19y 0€.€.-¥20-9¢-10
L2'C6 0€.€.-€20-92-10
89°LC 0€.€.-000-00-¥9
6Cce 0€.€.-000-00-€9
6¢'¢ce 0€.€.-000-00-09
INITALIOV IVIHLSNANI 6¥086186 ONI ‘NOILNGIYLSIA HIvXYdd 655900 0202/52/6 901681
junowy junods9oyjuonduosag #0d 9910AU| Jopuap  ajeq 13YINOA
yueqde :apodueg
yied Aajuil jo abejja INV9L:L0:ZL 0202/52/60
6l :abed )S17 J18YONOA ISIIYOA



Page | 59

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

(04 -abed
S1HOHS 6559/ S30
0069 019€/.-000-6L-10
1HIHS 9€96/ S30
00GLL 019€.-000-6L-10
1HIHSANIM 665,/ 30
0095 019€2-000-61-10
S1NVd ¢8LLLO
00'6€ 0L9€2-000-61-10
LYIHSANIM 0995/ 3
00°LS 01L9€.-000-6L-10
S1HOHS clillL dOHS ¥3aMO01 IHL ¥2/8L0 020¢2/5¢/6 9LlL68lL
00'859°9 :|ejoL
00'859'9 06.2.-€20-92-10 v16110-d.LA
SHILNV1d ONIYILYM B STYNNNY Z15025 ONI 3SNOHNIIYO S.a3L S¥9000 0Z0Z/ST/6 GLL68L
z0'0LE :ejoL
c0ole 0¥Sc.L-S0¢C-L1-L0
ASY 1L3aM00Ss 9/6019 S3VS 13314/°0NI AH04 NOLLNS L62.00 020¢Z/s¢/6 7681
00°061'p :lejoL
00°.L¥L G98¢/-000-00-€9
00'EVE $982/-000-00-09
SAOHLIN ENY PHINON 828..1
00°'LvL G98¢/-000-00-€9
00'62L'} 5982/-000-00-09
SAOHL13N SNV ¥HINON 98.L.L1
00°Z¥L §982/-000-00-€9
00°EVE 5982/-000-00-09
SAOHLIN ENY PHNON €691
00'¢cee §98¢/-000-00-€9
00'8LS §98¢/-000-00-09
S10NA0dd LNVLO34NISIa cv/l9/L "ONI S3IHO0LVH08VY1 NvadNgnsS S02.00 020c/sc/6 ciie8l
00°0SS . jeyol
00°0SS 0v¥S2.-v20-9¢2¢-10
JOYLNOD INvyg /80€1L "ONI ‘HOLIH ¥3TIvdL 9NS 8€¥200 020Z/SZ/6 ZL1681
junowy juno2dyuonduasag #0d 9210AU| lopuap  9jeq 13YyonoA
jueqde :apodjueg
yied Asjuiy jo abejpa INV9L:1L0:ZL 0Z0Z/SZ/60
0z :obed 3SI7 19YI2NOA ISIIYOA



Page | 60

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

12 :ebed
68'¢cc SeEYC.L-000-€L-10
G8'GEL GEYC.L-00€-€€-10
43A00 02 LOO HO4d LWAd 02 1d3S 021001 dV-ddvv ddvV 3YVOHLIV3IH A3LINN €19200 020¢/Sc/6 611681
00°00% cjejol
ooochk 0€9€.-000-00-+9
00'8¢ 0€9€/.-000-00-€9
00°¢se 0€9€/.-000-00-09
1100 L6870 090 INTVA ® Idld ANNOYOHIANN 00800 0202/52/6 811681
00'9L -jejol
0092 €68¢.-00€-€€-10
SNOILO3dSNI HOLVAT13 G9€C-0C NOILO3dSNI HO1VAI T3 NOSJdWOHL L/../00 020¢2/52/6 L1681
00°6LLL -|ejol
0095 019€.-000-61-10
S1NVd €€€8.S0
00cCLL 01L9€/-000-6L-10
S1INVd 9969/ SO
00ce 019€.-000-61-10
S1HOHS 8/9¥/.S30
007¢CLL 019€.-000-61-10
S1NVd g81./.S30
00°'s¢l 019€.-000-61-10
1HIHS ® SLHOHS .89/ S30
00'86 019€.-000-61-10
S1HOHS 094VYO 6€89/. S30
0095 019€.-000-61-10
S1INVd /189 S30
00'LYy 019€.-000-61-10
S1INvVd 9189/ S30
00¢cLL 019€.-000-61-10
S1INVd 6299/ S30
00'9S 01L9€/-000-61-10
1INVd 1299/ S30
00'6¥ 019€.-000-61-10
(penunuo)) dOHS ¥3IX001 IHL ¥TL8L0 020Z/5T/6 o168l
junowy Junovsayjuonduasag #0d 9910AU| Jopuap  9jeq FETELTTY
jueqde :apodyueg
yaed Aajuil jo abejjip INV9L:L0:Z)L 0202/52/60
(W4 :abed )SI17 49YINOA ISIIYoA



Page | 61

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

2 :abed
1844’ 1¢12/-00€-€€-10
90'9LC 1212/-G20-9¢-10
SL'ovs 121¢2/-€20-92-10
,0'2sT 1212/.-000-L¢-L0
€0'801 121¢.-020-61-10
SCovs 1212/-000-61-10
¥1'v0S 1¢12/-G02-L1-10
184 4" 1212.-000-91-10
08’8y 1212/-000-S1-10
olL9e 1212/-000-€L-10
1844’ 1212/-000-CL-10
90'91¢C 12l2/-000-LL-10
€L'EL 1212/-000-00-L1
i-71/8 Y1vad L0000-€€€18¥08C LODV 9G68/.//.2986 SS3ITIHIM NOZIY3A 9L¥LLO 0202/52/6 zclesl
€2'SLT :lejoL
€C'6.C 06.2.-€20-92-10
0¢/1€/8-02/L/8 LOOTINIL Al LSND 298602200000ASO ONI 4MN LO3INNOO NOZIY3A 0528L0 0202/52/6 Lziesl
00°002°L ‘lejop
00002} 129¢.-000-00-02
IVANIY ONIMYVd 02,100 0c100l HOYNHO 1SIAOHL3 a3LINN /86100 020¢/S2/6 0clL68l
05°€L9'V lejoL
06'988'C SevC/-502-L1-10
1INd 1Ld3S NOISN3d 32170d dHvv 021001 dVdd-dyvv
96091 GEVYC.-S0C-LL-10
14014 Sevc/-G20-9¢-10
al'ly S€t¢/-000-00-09
0€e'zs SevC.L-G0C-LL-10
85'¥0C S€¥2.-000-00-09
9l'vil Seyc/-€20-92-10
€0'GLe Sevel-¥20-92-10
S6°0LE G€¥2Z/-000-00-09
S8°GEL Seyc.l-50C-LL-10
eL'eet Ge¥2/-000-00-09
(penupuo)) dyvVv IHVOHLTV3IH @3L1INN €L9200 0202/52/6 611681
junowy juno2ayjuonduasaqg #0d 9910AU| Jopuap  ajeqg 13Yyanop
jJueqde :apodjueg
Med Asjuiy jo abejipA INV9L:L0:C)L 0202Z/S2/60
Y44 :abed 3S17 48YoNOoA ISIIYOA



Page | 62

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

[ :abed
00'0S- 02Z12.-000-2L-10
718 dIND3 £0000-€€€ 1 8¥08C#LIOV 1581112986 HO
00°00L- 0Z12.-000-2L-10
11a349 IAILNIONI 1119 dIND3 66610.0986 HO
688 1212L-S0Z-L1-10
HVY1NT13L L0000-220.E858Z#1 DDV 6926..2986
99vLe 02Z12/-000-00-€9
v¥'05C 0Z12.-000-00-%9
v¥'052C 0Z12.-000-00-09
iSrAra4 0212.-000-G€-10
iorAra4 0Z1Z.-0ZE-€E-10
69°LEL 0Z12.-0LE-€€-10
GL'LLe 0Z12.-00€-€€-10
08°90€ 0212.-620-92-10
0z'8lL 0212.-¥20-92-10
1G°/€T') 0212.-€20-92-10
69vLZ 0zizL0Lz-Lz-10
ov'8zlL 02Z12.-000-12-10
107212 02Z12.-020-61-10
85'92¢ 0Z1Z.,-000-61-10
85'260'v 0212.-S0Z-L1-10
€998 02Z12.-000-G1-10
€516 0Z12.,-000-¥1-10
ov'v8 0212.-000-€1-10
69921 0Z12/-000-2L-10
¥€°092 0212.,-000-LL-LO
LO¥EL 0Z12.-000-91-10
'8 37190 £0000-EEEE L8082 1OOV 1681112986
G5'969') 121TL-0T2-L1-10
11Tl 1212/-000-00-€9
99'L02 1Z12/-000-00-%9
99'L02 /Z12/-000-00-09
€0'80L /212/-000-5€-10
£0'80L 121T/-0ZE-€€-10
0L /2LTL-0LE-EE-10
(penuiuo)) SSITIHIM NOZIM3IA 9LvLL0 0202/ST/6 zeLesl
junowy juno2ayjuonduasaqg #0d 9910AU| JopuapA  ajeq Jayanop
jJueqde :apodueg
)ed Aajuly jo abejn INV9L:10:ZL 0Z02/S2/60
(4 :abed 3S17 J9YINOA ISIIYOA



Page | 63

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

ve :abed
v8'LLE‘OVI : SI8YINoA |ejoL uJodai siyj ut s1ayanopA 0L
1560809 : |e3o} jueg jyueqde : apod yueq Joj SIBYINOA 001
82°502°L - lejoL
8C'50T'L 0252.-G20-9¢2-10 6L2L10-dIA
1430 33170d 404 WOOJHILNI €81 SNOILYOINNNINOD AOOM 680610 020Z/SZ/6 12168l
167,08 fejol
16°208 002G5.-€20-92-10
NIITHLIYM €798 HO4 FHUVHS LSOO 0cvL60 NOLNIND “H3aIWH3IM ¥65610 0202/5T/6 9clL6e8l
88'6.L1 tlejoL
88'6.1 G11€2-G20-9¢-10
334400 0-21989/% SNLTOS 1dXHOM LO3HIA ISNOHIYVYM S910L0 0202/52/6 GClL681
vo'spe'izi - lejol
8L 1y9'L 122€.-000-00-¥9
S¥'698'C 122€.-000-00-€9
80°z.E'El 122€.-000-00-09
14 LNJWAVd ANOSG ¥31S009 vd3l oecL
68l Le 122€.-000-00-%9
€0969'LL 122€.-000-00-€9
8Y°L8G'VS 122€.-000-00-09
134 INJWAVd ANOSE H3INHVH Yd3I ceel NMVYTHVYO 40 IOVTIIA 29€900 0202/52/6 ycL68l
L8°¢CLl ‘lejoL
L8°ELL 0€GC/-€20-9¢-10
Hd3ddIHD v.evdd 11 ¥IFINHINLSIMAIN Y3IINH3A 80800 0202/S2/6 €clLest
6v'166°ClL 1lejoL (panuuo)) SS3ITIHIM NOZIY3A 9LvLL0 9l¥LLO0 020Z2/SZ/6 [44 %1%
jJjunowy junodayjuonduasag #0d 9210AU| lopuap  adjeq Jayonop
jyueqde :apod)ueg
yed Asjui] jo abejp INV9L:L0-2L 0202/5¢/60
vz :abed JSI7 J19YINOA ISIIYOA



Page | 64

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -...

S¢

:abed

ajeq

w910 abelIA

juapisald abejin

‘spuey Ji1ay} 19s ojunaiay “yed Aajuil jo abejiia auy
10 )19]D pue Juapisald abejjiA 8y} ‘Joaiay) ssaupm uj

‘Buns) anoge ay} uo pajuasaid se JuswAhed

10} panosdde aie pue pajuasaid asam abe(a pies jsuiebe
spuewap Jo swied Bumojjos auy yeyy Ajao Aqasay op (leH
abe|jiA 1e 1ow Ainp Buiney pieog abejiin Yied Asjuil ayL

junowy

junodayjuonduasag

# Od

9JI10AU|

Jopusp  3jeq 19U2N0A

jyueqde :apodyueg

14

:abed

yaed Asjui) jo abejiA
ISI7 48Y9NOA

INV9L:L0:cl 0202/S2/60
ISIIYaA



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, B -... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 65



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,...
P Village of

Petitioner

Petros Drimonas, Pete’s
Fresh Market, on behalf of
163rd & Harlem LLC
(property owner)

Property Location
16300 S. Harlem Avenue

PIN
27-24-202-020-0000 &
27-24-202-021-0000

Zoning

B-3 PD (General Business
and Commercial, Park
Place PUD)

Approvals Sought
Special Use for a
Substantial Deviation of
the Park Place Planned
Unit Development

Concept Site Plan
Approval

Project Planner
Paula J. Wallrich, AICP
Planning Manager

HISTORY

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
September 17, 2020 — PUBLIC HEARING
Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place Planned Unit

Development, Concept Site Plan Approval
16300 S. Harlem Avenue
REVISIONS TO WORK SHOP STAFF REPORT ARE NOTED IN RED

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

T T
- AT 1

| T

[ ey EEEREH
4
P ;

Paraan R

B S PERR

= &
ik
15
i
| &
| ]
=

| s o

Pete’s Fresh
Market (PFM)
recently purchased

the former K-Mart property at 16300 Harlem Avenue and have presented a conceptual
development proposal that includes new construction of a +76,000 sq. ft. grocery store and
443,000 sq. ft. retailer. They also propose to redevelop the former K-Mart store to provide an
additional +38,000 sq. ft. of retail space and +138,000 sq. ft. of accessory
warehouse/distribution space. The proposal will require an amendment to the existing Park
Place Planned Unit Development as a Substantial Deviation. The project will be developed in
phases, with Phase 1 comprising the re-use of the former K-Mart building for
warehouse/distribution uses. Phase 2 will include the construction of a Pete’s Fresh Market
grocery store and associated retail. Phase 2 will also include the renovation of the former K-
Mart store to include an additional 438,000 sg. ft. of retail and maintain the
warehouse/distribution uses as accessory to the grocery store.

Page | 66



AGENDA -9/ 29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@/gﬁ‘el 67

The proposed development for Pete’s Fresh Market is located in the North T
Park Place PUD, adopted November 7, 1989 (89-0-045). The ort
original planning for this property included Single Family (R-1) and
General Business and Commercial uses (B-3) with the hope of
attracting a hotel, restaurant, office and retail uses. Additionally,
there were hopes to build a 9-hole golf course as part of the mixed-
use PUD. The residential uses were constructed on the west side of
the property and in 1993 the Village amended the PUD (93-0-36)
to allow for the construction of the Aldi store. A PACE Warehouse
Store (a membership buyer’s club) was already constructed north
of Aldi and is now occupied by Sam'’s Club. Two years later in 1995,
the Village amended the PUD again to provide for the K-Mart store
(95-0-001) and outlot; the required stormwater management
essentially eliminated any future plans for a golf course. The
perimeter fencing, landscape berms and parking lot improvements
were all constructed with the development of the K-Mart store.
EXISTING SITE & PHASING

NV BLE NYLEE 308

m("“"‘”"'@@/umaﬁ;’l .

Page 2 of 13



AGENDA -9/ 29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@/gﬁ‘el 68

The proposed development comprises two of the four parcels previously owned by the K-Mart corporation. Parcel 1 (27-
24-202-020-000) comprises almost 26 acres and includes the former K-Mart Store with associated parking. Parcel 2 (27-
24-202-021-000) is just over an acre in size and is undeveloped (see graphics below.) There are two other parcels under
PFM ownership but they are located south and west and are undevelopable (contain floodplain and storm water detention
for the site) for a total of 52 acres. The Substantial Deviation will cover both parcel 1 & 2, however the proposed project is
primarily planned for Parcel 1.

.. 11 = - g/ 1 5 3 The
- & E

=
=
3
!
|

o i B R

[ammsaay (WRATEAR
o iR B AR

Po. mEnay R AmIET

P— T T

[ TR

[ WeaAm |

(AL L

-
R Rahm TR RN S HrERs L S
 § a

[AMRata (RAIEAR

o m ey AR

§
!

e wim RTINS

Patcet1

R gy R e
oo e L TR Rl SO PRI (RO 2 b

project will be developed in phases with the first phase involving the
use of the former K-Mart store for warehouse/distribution uses. Due to COVID-19, Pete’s Fresh Market has experienced
increased demand for warehouse space at their existing warehouse facilities. Currently, their warehouses contain dry goods
and some non-grocery related items such as fixtures and spare equipment for their stores. PFM proposes to use the vacant
K-Mart store to relocate these items to make room for more grocery related items in their existing warehouse facilities.
They have also stated that during this time of COVID-19 they have been presented with purchasing opportunities for items
of necessity that have been difficult to keep stocked in their stores. Therefore, they propose to use the Tinley Park property
to store some of these products as well.

PFM has committed to beginning construction for Phase 2 by June 1, 2021, therefore no physical alterations are planned

for the site or building for Phase 1 beyond continued maintenance and life safety requirements for occupancy of the
warehouse at this time.

Page 3 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/ 2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem Ap@/gﬁ‘el 69

Phase 2 will comprise the construction of a Pete’s Fresh Market grocery store (+ 76,000 sq. ft.) with an additional +43,000
sq. ft. of associated retail. This phase will also include the renovation of the former K-Mart store to include an additional
+38,000 sq. ft. of retail that will wrap around the northeast corner of the former K-Mart Store. Phase 2 will allow for the
continuation of the warehouse/distribution uses as accessory to the grocery store and will involve the construction of five
(5) additional loading docks on the west side of the existing loading dock. Discussions with the applicant have resulted in
an anticipated schedule for Phase 2 as follows:

November 15, 2020 Phase 2 PUD submittal by PFM

January 21, 2021 PC # 1 workshop - Pete’s PUD Phase 2

February 4, 2021 PC #2 Public Hearing - Pete’s PUD Phase 2

February 15, 2021 VB First Reading, Pete’s PUD Phase 2

March 1, 2021 VB Adoption, Pete’s PUD Phase 2

April 1, 2021 PFM submit for building permit

May 15, 2021 Village issue building permit

June 1, 2021 Groundbreaking

September 1, 2022 Grand opening of Pete’s Fresh Market

ZONING &

NEARBY LAND USES

The subject parcel is located in the Park Place PUD with the underlying
zoning of B-3. It is located along Harlem Avenue, one of the Village's
major commercial corridors.

The property to the north is also zoned B-3 PUD (Park Center Plaza PUD)
and is developed with commercial uses. The property to the west is
developed with two-family duplexes, zoned R-6. To the east, across
Harlem Avenue, the property is zoned B-4 (Office and Service Business ¢
District) and is occupied by a medical office building. Just north of the
medical office building is the Tinley Park Plaza retail center and is zoned

B-2 PUD. South of the subject property is an unincorporated and :
undeveloped parcel that has been used for various recreational uses @
(frisbee golf and dog park) that is operated by the Tinley Park-Park =
District.

Pete’s Fresh Market is seeking several approvals. They are requesting approval of the overall conceptual site plan and final
approval of the Special Use for the Substantial Deviation that will provide for the warehouse/distribution use in Phase 1 and
the construction of +119,000 Sq. Ft. of retail use and the renovation of +38,000 Sq. Ft. in the former K-Mart Store for retail
uses in Phase 2. As part of the Substantial Deviation they are requesting several exceptions to the Village Code as noted
below in “Open Items”.

SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION

Warehouse/Distribution Use:

Warehouse/distribution uses are permitted in the M1 (General Manufacturing) and MU-1 (Mixed Use Duvan Drive) zoning
districts. They are not a Permitted or Special Use in the B-3 district, which is the zoning of the subject parcel. Any
consideration of permanent, nhon-permitted uses on this site requires a Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the PUD.
Earlier this year the Village adopted an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance to allow warehouse/distribution uses as a
temporary use in a B-3 district with conditions. The Village Board approved a 6-month temporary use permit for a
warehouse/distribution use for PFM on May 19, 2020. However, after discussions with staff it was recommended they
follow the more permanent solution that aligns with their long-term goal of developing the site for a new grocery store with
associated warehouse/distribution uses. They are requesting the use of the former K-Mart store for the storage of dry
goods and equipment. They plan to occupy +138,00 sq. ft. of the existing structure and will not be installing any racking
or other permanent improvements as part of Phase 1. They are not planning on making any improvements to the exterior

Page 4 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@/gﬁ‘el 70

of the building as part of Phase 1; however, with Phase 2 there will be erecting demising walls to provide for the new retail
space that will anchor the northeast corner of the building. There will also be facade and site improvements to the existing
building with Phase 2.

Warehouse/distribution uses are defined as “ Warehouse, Distribution Plants and Wholesale Establishments (are) engaged
in the storage, wholesale, or distribution of manufactured products, supplies and equipment, excluding bulk storage of
material that are flammable or explosive.” The consideration of a warehouse/distribution use in the B-3 district necessarily
requires an analysis of potential negative impacts resulting from the use. Traffic volume and pattern, screening, hours of
operation, noise, overnight storage of delivery vehicles, and outdoor storage are all issues that require thorough
consideration and mitigation tactics. Each issue is addressed below:

T —

Traffic volume/pattern: Currently there are
5 docks on the east side of the dock area
at the south side of the store. In Phase 1,
PFM will continue to use these docks. In
Phase 2 they will construct 5 additional
docks on the opposite (west) side of the ¥ et e TR R WL nteal
dock area. PFM anticipates no greaterthan =, . = — By mi
15 trips per day in Phase 1. As a point of L% g NS RERRT e
comparison, deliveries are made at the Aldi " § MI ey 1
and Sam'’s Club as well as for the former K- S8 &= %

Mart store. The number of trips for Phase
2 will be reviewed upon that submittal;
staff will recommend a traffic study at that
time.

In Phase 1 the proposed route for delivery
truck traffic is as depicted in a counter
clockwise fashion around the building.
Routing will be reassessed with Phase 2
that will eliminate trucks traversing along
the front (north) side of the former K-Mart
store.

Open Item #1: Discuss the impact of anticipated delivery truck traffic volume and truck routing.
The Commission did not express concern for delivery truck volume and routing for Phase 1.
Concern was expressed for Phase 2 and it was noted that a traffic study will be required with Phase
2 with attention given to separating truck traffic from customer traffic.

Page 5 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/2020.,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem APages| 71

Screening of dock area: There is a berm just south of this area with mature landscaping that provides screening for
northbound traffic on Harlem Avenue. There is also existing landscaping along Harlem Avenue that provides screening

from the public ROW, except for the
opening at the right-in/right-out
access. (See below). There is a solid
wood fence along the west property
line. It is important to note that the
residential area does not abut the
former K-Mart store.

’ ol |

L1 \.“
? rl ‘{ula 15' 3

RN
mf 'qm-ﬁ
phzbe o

mamm,

o 50002 IARSEORNED B
LTS WR) S mm:ﬂ"_‘ " =

Bt

Page 6 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/2020.,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY. ... pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem APages| 72

The docks are screened from Harlem Avenue view except for the narrow opening for the right-in/right-out
ACCESS

Open Item #2: Discuss the ability to screen the loading docks from public view. The Commission
recognized the merits of existing berm and landscaping but felt that the parkway trees along Oak
Park Avenue could be planted in Phase 1.

Hours of operation: PFM is requesting deliveries be allowed between the hours of 5:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. These hours
conform to their operations and deliveries/receiving of product. In a review of deliveries for the Sam’s Club and Aldi’s the
following information was provided:

Sam'’s Club 7:00 a.m.- 10:00 p.m.
Aldi Liquor: 9:00 a.m.
Milk: 6:00 a.m.

Food: anytime after store closes
(drivers have keys)

It is important to note that Aldi and Sam’s Club border residential
uses; the loading dock for PFM is on the south side of the former
K-Mart store with a distance of over 500" from the dock to the
back of the nearest home. To allow for deliveries between the
hours of 5:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. will require an exception to the
PUD ordinance.

Staff noted 2 municipal ordinances the regulate loading
operations between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 7:00
p-m. within 300 feet of residential uses. The docks in
Phase 1 are 500’ from residential uses and therefore will
not require an exception as part of Phase 1.

= r.,-...“ -v-r-‘i_""“_}l'::-

i El
&

Open Item #3: Discuss the impact of requested
hours of operation for warehouse/distribution use
of 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. The Commission did not
express concern for the requested operational hours
as part of Phase 1; however it was noted that it will
become an issue that will need to be addressed in
Phase 2 when 5 additional docks will be constructed
and the new Pete’s Fresh Market will have loading
areas within 300’ of residential areas. Pete’s

Page 7 of 13



AGENDA -9/ 29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@/gﬁ‘el 73

representative noted that the docks for the grocery store will be interior and that loading will be
conducted in an enclosed area.

Noise: Per Section V.9.A. of the Village Zoning Ordinance there are maximum permitted sound levels at property
boundaries abutting residential districts. For commercial uses the maximum is level 55 dBA during the hours of 7:00 a.m.
and a maximum of 45 dBA during the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m. These standards will be enforced; however, until

the facility is operational the levels cannot be defined.

Open Item #4: Discuss the potential for noise impact from the loading area. This will be
monitored after occupancy.

Overnight Storage of Delivery Vehicles: PFM is requesting the storage of delivery trucks overnight. These will be parked
only at the docks; therefore, there would be a maximum of 5 trucks parked overnight on the south side of the structure as
part of Phase 1.

There are two code requirements governing the overnight storage of delivery vehicle: Per Section V.C.7.e.: “Parking of
trucks, when accessory to the conduct of a permitted use, shall be limited to vehicles having not more than 1 %2 tons
capacity — except for pick-up or delivery service during normal business hours. Any truck exceeding 1 2 tons capacity shall
be adequately screened from public view when parked.” Per the section discussed above regarding the screening of the

dock area, it is staff’s opinion that the dock area is adequately screen from public view.

In addition, per Section III.O., overnight parking of delivery vehicles defined as “Open Storage- Level 1, and over 8,000
pounds in weight” is prohibited in the B-3. PFM is requesting an exception to this requirement and will commit to limiting
the overnight storage of delivery vehicles to five (5) parked in the existing dock area. The approval of overnight storage of
delivery vehicles will require an exception to the PUD ordinance.

Open Item #5: Discuss the impact of overnight storage of five (5) delivery vehicles at the loading
dock. Approval will require an exception to the PUD ordinance. The Commission did not express
concern regarding this request that will be noted as an exception.

Outdoor storage: Per Section V. of the Zoning Ordinance “All business, service, storage, merchandise display and where
permitted, repair and processing, shall be conducted wholly within an enclosed building”. The outdoor storage of “goods,
products, materials or light equipment” is defined as “Open Storage- Level 2", which is prohibited in the B-3 district. Staff
has discussed this concern with the PFM and they have stated there will be no outdoor storage related to the
warehouse/distribution use. All materials and equipment will be stored inside. Staff recommends making this a condition
of approval for the Substantial Deviation.

Open Item #6 Discuss outdoor storage; conditioned approval on the prohibition of outdoor
storage. The Commission agreed with staff's recommendation to prohibit outdoor storage as a
condition of approval.

Approval of the Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place PUD: The Petitioner is requesting approval of a
non-permitted use (warehouse/distribution) in the Park Place PUD. Per Section VII.C. 3.b. ™ Uses permitted in a Commercial
Planned Unit Development shall be as prescribed by the Plan Commission and may include uses not permitted by the
use regulations of the district in which said development is located; however , the Plan Commission shall find that
the uses permitted by such exception are necessary or desirable and are appropriate with respect to the primary purpose
of the development." The primary purpose of the Park Place PUD is for commercial uses and the proposed construction
and renovation of retail space is consistent with that purpose. The proposed warehouse/distribution use is considered a
subordinate or accessory use to the retail uses. The warehousing of project will support the operations of the grocery store.
As such it is important that any approval of a warehouse/distribution use be conditioned upon the construction and operation
of a grocery store. This will eliminate the possibility of the warehouse/distribution use operating independent of a grocery
store. Due to the timing proposed by PFM there will be a period of time (2 years) that the warehouse/distribution use is
operating independently of the primary use (grocery store). Staff recommends any approval of the warehouse/distribution
use be conditioned upon the occupancy of a grocery store no later than September 1, 2022.

Page 8 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/2020.,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY. ... pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem APages| 74

Open Item # 7: Discuss recommending for approval the warehouse/distribution use conditioned
upon occupancy of a grocery store no later than September 1, 2022. The Commission agreed that
the warehouse/distribution use should be accessory to the grocery store and recommended that
approval be conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022.

CONCEPT SITE PLAN

The Petitioner is requesting approval of the
conceptual site plan as presented in the
adjacent graphic. Final landscaping, lighting
and parking ratios will be reviewed with Phase
2, along with architectural plans. The applicant
is not proposing any signage with Phase 1
however there currently exists a non-
conforming sign at the 16314 entrance that staff
is recommending be removed as part of Phase
1. A complete sign package proposal will be
required with the submittal for Phase 2 which
will allow for a conforming ground sign.

£
€

8
®

The plan provides for the redesign of the
parking field so that the drive aisles are
perpendicular to the main retail tenant (Pete’ s
Fresh  Market.) Staff supports the
reconfiguration of the parking lot; however,
the south aisle will need a landscape buffer to
avoid conflicts from cars backing into the main
drive aisle that runs along the north side of the
K-Mart building. (See diagram below.)

N

WA

- BTN |
G ————— |

T

A 6’ public sidewalk will need to be extended

from the 163 Street access to the south property line.
Staff discussed the 6’ sidewalk and the possibility of
installing it with Phase 1. Subsequent to the meeting staff
discuss the timing of improvements with the applicant -
who requested the sidewalk be constructed with Phase 2 i
along with other concrete work. It was noted that there
will be no pedestrian traffic generated with Phase 1 and
therefore the importance of the sidewalk is more
associated with Phase 2.

SIS

151,104 sf

Private sidewalks (6") will need to be installed from the
public walk east to connect with the internal walkway
system. (see diagram below). Crosswalks will need to be
installed where pedestrian access crosses drive aisles.

wEERRE

Open Item # 8: Discuss recommending for
approval the Site Plan Concept with
recommendations as noted by staff and
conditioned upon the removal of the non-conforming ground sign and the installation of a sidewalk
along Oak Park Avenue south of 1637 Street as part of Phase 2 improvements.

Page 9 of 13



AGENDA -9/ 29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@gﬁ‘el 75

MAINTENANCE OF SITE

As stated above, the warehouse will be operating approximately 2 years prior to opening of the new grocery store.
(Construction will commence in June 2021). The site has been vacant since 2017 and continues to deteriorate. Code
enforcement has been working with the property owner to ensure that the grass and weeds are maintained. There
continues to be some issues related to left over sign posts, litter, condition of the fence and areas of the building that
require maintenance and, in some areas, painting, and repair. Since these issues are fluid and will change over time, staff
recommends these issues remain under Code Enforcement jurisdiction.

Open Item #9: Discuss on-going maintenance issues on the site. The Commission concurred with
Staff's recommendation to allow Code Enforcement personnel to monitor site maintenance.

RECOMMENDATION

The following open items are recommended for discussion at the workshop:

Open Item | Recommended Action

#1 Discuss the impact of anticipated delivery truck traffic volume and truck routing.
The Commission did not express concern for delivery truck volume and routing for
Phase 1. Concern was expressed for Phase 2 and it was noted that a traffic study
will be required with Phase 2 with attention given to separating truck traffic from
customer traffic.

#2 Discuss the ability to screen the loading docks from public view. The Commission
recognized the merits of existing berm and landscaping but felt that the parkway
trees along Oak Park Avenue could be planted in Phase 1.

#3 Discuss the impact of requested hours of operation for warehouse/distribution use
of 5:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m.; approval will require an exception to the PUD ordinance.
The Commission did not express concern for the requested operational hours as
part of Phase 1; however, it was noted that it will become an issue that will need
to be addressed in Phase 2 when 5 additional docks will be constructed and the
new Pete’s Fresh Market will have loading areas within 300’ of residential areas.
Pete’s representative noted that the docks for the grocery store will be interior and
that loading will be conducted in an enclosed area.

#4 Discuss the potential for noise impact from the loading area. This will be
monitored after occupancy.
#5 Discuss the impact of overnight storage of five (5) delivery vehicles at the loading

dock. Approval will require an exception to the PUD ordinance. The Commission
did not express concern regarding this request that will be noted as an exception.
#6 Discuss outdoor storage; condition approval on the prohibition of outdoor storage.
The Commission agreed with staff's recommendation to prohibit outdoor storage
as a condition of approval.

#7 Discuss recommending for approval the warehouse/distribution use conditioned
upon occupancy of a grocery store no later than September 1, 2022. The
Commission agreed that the warehouse/distribution use should be accessory to
the grocery store and recommended that approval be conditioned upon
occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022. The
warehouse/distribution use is considered to be accessory to the grocery store
and therefore will not be allowed to operate independent of the grocery store.

#8 Discuss recommending for approval the Site Plan Concept with recommendations
as noted by staff and conditioned upon the removal of the non-conforming ground
sign and the planting of street trees as part of Phase 1. The installation of a

Page 10 of 13



AGENDA -9/ 29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@/gﬁ‘el 76

sidewalk along Oak Park Avenue south of 1637 Street will be required as part of
Phase 2 improvements.

#9 Discuss on-going maintenance issues on the site. The Commission concurred with
Staff's recommendation to allow Code Enforcement personnel to monitor site
maintenance.

STANDARDS FOR A SPECIAL USE

Section X.1.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan
Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request. The Special
Use request is for the Substantial Deviation that includes the warehouse/distribution use as Phase 1 with
exceptions and conditions and the construction of approximately 157,000 Sq. Ft. of retail in Phase 2 in
general conformance with the Concept Plan.

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find:

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or endanger
the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; The Special Use for the warehouse/distribution
use is conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022. The warehouse/distribution
use is considered to be accessory to the grocery store and therefore will not be allowed to operate independent
of the grocery store. The approval of the warehouse/distribution use is conditioned upon additional screening,
monitoring of noise levels and on-going property maintenance. The proposed retail uses proposed for Phase 2
are consistent with the original planning for commercial uses in the Park Place PUD.

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the
neighborhood; There currently exists, landscaping and a wood fence that provides screening of the property.
The site has previously functioned as a large commercial use with loading activities. There are performance
standards to monitor noise levels resulting from loading activities.

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; The majority of adjacent property is
developed in accordance with current zoning and the Comprehensive Plan. Existing access will direct future
development in the area.

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being
provided; The subject parcel previously operated as a large retail discount store with deliveries. Site
engineering for drainage and access exists and will support the proposed improvements.

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize
traffic congestion in the public streets; and The subject parcel previously operated as a large retail discount
store with deliveries with existing access points from Harlem Avenue. No other points of ingress/egress are
planned as part of Phase 1.

f.  That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it
is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board pursuant to the
recommendation of the Plan Commission. The Village Board shall impose such conditions and restrictions upon
the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to ensure compliance with the above
standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon other properties in the neighborhood, and to
better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance. Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall
constitute a violation of this Ordinance. As part of the Substantial Deviation the applicant is requesting the
warehouse/distribution use which is not a permitted use in the B-3 district. Possible impacts have been
reviewed and found not to be a negative impact on surrounding uses. The approval of the prohibited use is
conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022, removal of the existing non-conforming
sign, no outdoor storage, and the planting of the required street trees along Harlem Avenue as part of Phase
1. There will also be the construction of a 6" sidewalk along Harlem Avenue as part of Phase 2. Exceptions to
Village Code include the overnight storage of 5 delivery vehicles parked at the loading dock.

Page 11 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/ 2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem Ap@gﬁ‘el 77

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of the
community as a whole. The property tax resulting from the project and the proposed 157,000 Sqg. Ft. of retail
will contribute to the Village's property and real estate tax revenue.

It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use Permit is
tied to the Petitioner. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply to the property
to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the conditions where a
Special Use Permit will expire.

STANDARDS FOR SITE PLAN APPROVAL

Section III.U. of the Zoning Ordinance requires that the conditions listed below must be met and reviewed for Site Plan
approval. Specific findings are not required but all standards should be considered to have been met upon review from the
Plan Commission.

Site Design

a. Building/parking location: Buildings shall be located in a position of prominence with parking located to the rear or
side of the main structure when possible. Parking areas shall be designed so as to provide continuous circulation
avoiding dead-end parking aisles. Drive-through facilities shall be located to the rear or side of the structure and
not dominate the aesthetics of the building. Architecture for canopies of drive-through areas shall be consistent
with the architecture of the main structure. The parking field currently exists (as part of the former K-Mart Store)
which is on the side of the K-Mart building. There is little opportunity to design it differently and maintain delivery
access.

b. Loading Areas: Loading docks shall be located at the rear or side of buildings whenever possible and screened from
view from public rights-of-way. Phase 1 loading is on the south side (rear) of former K-Mart building; Phase 2 will
include loading at the rear of the new grocery store which will be enclosed inside the store.

¢. Outdoor Storage: Outdoor storage areas shall be located at the rear of the site in accordance with Section II1.O.1.
(Open Storage). No open storage is allowed in front or corner side yards and are not permitted to occupy areas
designated for parking, driveways or walkways. Outdoor storage is not permitted.

d. Interior Circulation: Shared parking and cross access easements are encouraged with adjacent properties of similar
use. Where possible visitor/employee traffic shall be separate from truck or equipment traffic. Shared access is
provided; safe pedestrian access if designed as part of Phase 2.

e. Pedestrian Access: Public and interior sidewalks shall be provided to encourage pedestrian traffic. Bicycle use shall
be encouraged by providing dedicated bikeways and parking. Where pedestrians or bicycles must cross vehicle
pathways a cross walk shall be provided that is distinguished by a different pavement material or color. This will be
designed as part of Phase 2.

MOTIONS FOR CONSIDERATION

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action on the Petitioner’s requests, the following motions are in the appropriate form.
The protocol for the writing of a motion is to write it in the affirmative so that a positive or negative recommendation
correlates to the Petitioner’s proposal. By making a motion, it does not indicate a specific recommendation in support or
against the plan.

Motion 1 (Site Plan):

"...make a motion to grant the Petitioner, Petros Drimonas, Pete’s Fresh Market, on behalf of 163rd & Harlem LLC
(property owner), Concept Site Plan approval in accordance with plans as noted in the List of Submitted Plans within the
Staff Report and attached to the Plan Commission Meeting Packet, to redevelop the property located at 16300 Harlem
Avenue.”

Motion 2 (Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place PUD with Exceptions and Conditions):

"...make a motion to recommend that the Village Board approve a Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place
PUD to allow warehouse/distribution uses as part of Phase 1 as an accessory use to a grocery store to be occupied by
September 1, 2022, and thereafter the warehouse/distribution use is prohibited as a use independent from the grocery

Page 12 of 13



AGENDA -9/ 29/2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Pete’s Fresh Market- 16300 S. Harlem AP@/gﬁ‘el 78

store use, in accordance with plans as noted in the List of Submitted Plans within the Staff Report and attached to the Plan
Commission Meeting Packet, and adopt Findings related to the Standards for a Special Use as outlined in the staff report
for Phase I of property located at 16300 Harlem Avenue with an exception to allow the overnight storage of five (5) delivery
vehicles parked at the loading dock, conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022, prohibition
of outdoor storage, removal of the non-conforming pole sign and the planting of street trees prior to Phase 1 occupancy.

LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS

Submitted Sheet Name LR 2ELIOT
3% Sheet

1 | Color Site plan ) 3.30.20

2 | Color Site plan- Staff recommendations CT 3.30.20

CT: Camburas & Theodore, Ltd

Page 13 of 13



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION
OF THE PARK PLACE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
LOCATED AT 16300 S. HARLEM AVENUE
(PETER DRIMONAS, PETE’S FRESH MARKET, ON BEHALF OF 163%° & HARLEM,
LLC.)

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606

Page | 79



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 80

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION
OF THE PARK PLACE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

LOCATED AT 16300 S. HARLEM AVENUE
(PETER DRIMONAS, PETE’S FRESH MARKET, ON BEHALF OF 163R* & HARLEM, LLC.)

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit,
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs,
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, a petition for the granting of a Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the
Park Place Planned Unit Development(PUD) located at 16300 S. Harlem Avenue, has been filed
by Peter Drimonas, Pete’s Fresh Market (PFM), on behalf of 163 & Harlem, LLC (“Petitioner™)
with the Village Clerk of this Village and has been referred to the Plan Commission of the Village
and has been processed in accordance with the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, said Plan Commission held a public hearing on the question of whether the
Special Use Permit should be granted on September 17, 2020, at the Village Hall of this Village
of Tinley Park (“Village”), and by teleconference per Gubernatorial Executive Order 2020-18 and
the “Village of Tinley Park Temporary Public Participation Rules & Procedures”, at which time
all persons were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said public hearing
by publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said public
hearing in the Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley
Park; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission has filed its report of findings and recommendations
regarding the Special Use with this Village President and Board of Trustees, and this Board of
Trustees has duly considered said report, findings, and recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and
its residents to approve said Special use; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 81

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as
if said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That the report of findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission are herein
incorporated by reference as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as complete
as if fully set forth herein at length. This Board finds that the Petitioner has provided evidence
establishing that they have met the standards for granting the Special Use Permit as set forth in
Section X.J.5 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the Site Plan as set forth in Section II1.U., and the
proposed granting of the Special Use Permit as set forth herein is in the public good and in the best
interest of the Village and its residents and is consistent with and fosters the purpose and spirit of
the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance.

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said
Commission shall find:

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general
welfare; The Special Use for the warehouse/distribution use is conditioned upon
occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022. The warehouse/distribution
use is considered to be accessory to the grocery store and therefore will not be allowed
to operate independent of the grocery store. The approval of the
warehouse/distribution use is conditioned upon additional screening, monitoring of
noise levels and on-going property maintenance. The proposed retail uses proposed
for Phase 2 are consistent with the original planning for commercial uses in the Park
Place PUD.

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property

in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish
and impair property values within the neighborhood;
There currently exists berming, landscaping and a wood fence that provides
screening of the property. The site has previously functioned as a large commercial
use with loading activities. There are performance standards to monitor noise levels
resulting from loading activities.

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the
district; The majority of adjacent property is developed in accordance with current
zoning and the Comprehensive Plan. Existing access will direct future development
in the area.

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have
been or are being provided;
The subject parcel previously operated as a large retail discount store with deliveries.

Site engineering for drainage and access exists and will support the proposed
improvements.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

€.

That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.

The subject parcel previously operated as a large retail discount store with deliveries
with existing access points from Harlem Avenue. No other points of ingress/egress
are planned as part of Phase 1.

That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations
of the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be
modified by the Village Board pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan
Commission. The Village Board shall impose such conditions and restrictions upon
the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to ensure
compliance with the above standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit
upon other properties in the neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of
this Ordinance. Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute
a violation of this Ordinance. As part of the Substantial Deviation the applicant is
requesting the warehouse/distribution use which is not a permitted use in the B-3
district. Possible impacts have been reviewed and found not to be a negative impact
on surrounding uses. The approval of the prohibited use is conditioned upon
occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022, no outdoor storage, and the
planting of the required street trees along Harlem Avenue. There will also be the
construction of a 6’ sidewalk along Harlem Avenue as part of Phase 2. Exceptions
to Village Code include the overnight storage of 5 delivery vehicles parked at the
loading dock.

The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic
development of the community as a whole.

The property tax resulting from the project and the proposed 157,000 Sq. Ft. of retail
will contribute to the Village’s property and real estate tax revenue.

SECTION 3: The Special Use Permit set forth herein below shall be applicable to the following
described property:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: :

PARCEL I:

LOTS 3 AND 4 IN SUPER-K SUBDIVISION, BEING A RESUBDIVISION OF
LOTS 4 THROUGH 11, IN PARK PLACE, A SUBDIVISION OF PART OF THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER AND PART OF

THE

SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF

SECTION 24, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 12, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

Page | 82



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 83

PARCEL 2:

NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENTS FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL 1 FOR
INGRESS, EGRESS, ACCESS AND PARKING FOR VEHICULAR OR
PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC, AS CREATED IN THE SHOPPING CENTER
RECIPROCAL EASEMENT AND OPERATION AGREEMENT RECORDED
JUNE 21, 1991 AS DOCUMENT 91303346, UPON AND ACROSS THE
PARKING AREAS, ENTRANCES, EXITS, DRIVEWAYS, WALKS AND
SERVICE DRIVES AS LOCATED WITHIN THE "COMMON AREAS", AS
COMMON AREAS ARE DEFINED IN SAID AGREEMENT, EXCEPTING
THEREFROM THAT PORTION FALLING WITHIN ABOVE DESCRIBED
PARCEL 1.

PIN: 27-24-202-020-0000; 27-24-202-021-0000
Commonly known as: 16300 S. Harlem Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois

SECTION 4: That a Special Use Permit for a Substantial Deviation to allow for the
redevelopment of Park Place Planned Unit Development located at 16300 S. Harlem Avenue,
Tinley Park (“Subject Property’), with the approval of a warehouse/distribution use in Phase I as
an accessory use to the grocery store as a principal use in accordance with the “List of Reviewed
Plans” attached hereto as Exhibit A, with the following exception:

1. Allow the overnight storage of five (5) delivery vehicles parked at the loading
dock

Subject to the following conditions:

1. Upon occupancy of the grocery store by September 1, 2022 and thereafter the
warehouse/distribution use is prohibited as a use independent from the grocery
store use,;

Prohibition of outdoor storage, and
The planting of street trees prior to Phase 1 occupancy.

“w N

SECTION 5: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and
approval.

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as required by law.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 84

PASSED THIS 29th day of September, 2020.
AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 29th day of September, 2020.

VILLAGE PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 85

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of Ordinance No.  , “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE FOR A
SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION OF THE PARK PLACE PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT
LOCATED AT 16300 S. HARLEM AVENUE (PETER DRIMONAS, PETE’S FRESH
MARKET, ON BEHALF OF 163RP & HARLEM LLC) ” which was adopted by the President and

Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on September 29, 2020.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of

the Village of Tinley Park this 29th day of September, 2020.

KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 86

Exhibit A
Submitted Sheet Name ;;epared g:::tOn
1 | Color Site plan CT 3.30.20
2 | Color Site plan- Staff recommendations CT 3.30.20

CT: Camburas & Theodore, Ltd

097205.000009 4824-5395-4761.2



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 87

TO: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FROM: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR MEETING

ITEM #1 Public Hearing — Pete’s Fresh Market — 16300 Harlem Avenue
Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place PUD

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant Petros Drimonas, Pete’s Fresh Market, on
behalf of 163 & Harlem LLC (property owner) a Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the
Park Place Planned Unit Development (89-0-048) for a phased development located at 16300 S.
Harlem Avenue, Tinley Park. The granting of this request will allow for the use of the former K-
Mart structure as a warehouse/distribution center in Phase 1. Phase 2 shall include the construction
of a new grocery store (Pete’s Fresh Market), associated retail (approximately 119,000 Sq. Ft.) and
renovation of the former K-Mart store for an additional 38,000 Sq. Ft. retail as Phase 2.

Present Plan Commissioners: Chairman Gray (Participated electronically)
Eduardo Mani (Participated electronically)
Lucas Engel (Participated electronically)
Mary Aitchison (Participated electronically)
Steven Vick (Participated electronically)
James Gaskill

Absent Plan Commissioners: Angela Gatto
Kehla West
Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Planning Manager (Participated electronically)

Dan Ritter, Senior Planner
Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary

Guests: Eugene Grzynkowicz, PM Realty, Inc. (Participated electronically)

John Bradshaw, Architect. (Participated electronically)

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted he had confirmation of the legal notice for this public hearing be published in the local
newspaper as required by state law.

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GASKILL, seconded by COMMISSIONER VICK to open the Public
Hearing for Pete’s Fresh Market

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.
NAY: None.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by voice vote.

Paula Wallrich, Planning Manager presented the Staff Report. This Staff Report has been distributed to the Plan
Commission, the Applicant and posted on the website. It is attached to these minutes in their entirety.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked the applicant for comments and swore in the Petitioner and Architect.

Eugene Grzynkowicz, PM Realty Inc. noted he had nothing to add to the presentation. He noted that Ms. Wallrich
did an excellent job on the presentation to explain phase 1 and phase 2. Phase 2 is currently being worked on and the



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 88

site development plan will be tweaked. We will be presenting that in the near future. He has been in contact with Ms.
Wallrich and he foresees no issues to the Village’s request.

John Bradshaw, Architect had nothing to add, but is open for any questions.
CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the Commissioners.

COMMISSIONER VICK inquired when the proposed grocery store opens, will it have the interior loading and
unloading docks? Mr. Wallrich replied that it would.

CHAIRMAN GRAY inquired if the proposed warehouse will have hours of operation from 5 a.m. to 5 p.m. Ms.
Wallrich replied that it would and 5.a.m. to 5 p.m. is for phase 1. Chairman Gray inquired if this would be revisited
if there is a need. Ms. Wallrich replied that is correct.

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted that repurposing the sign is okay. There would be no need to take the sign down if it can
be repurposed in the future. He has no issues with putting the concrete sidewalk in phase 2. The Commission would
concur with staff that all this is contingent on having a grocery store by September of 2022.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the Public.
CHAIRMAN GRAY swore in Jim and Lynn Romanenghi, neighbors on Lake Villa Avenue.

Lynn Romanenghi noted their concern is noise. When the K-Mart was there, the trucks would idle all day and all
night in the winter. She would like to make sure the trucks that will be there now will not be idling. She would like
to make sure the hours will be from 5 a.m. to 5 p.m. and it will not be in the middle of the night or the evening.

Dan Ritter, Senior Planner noted this is what is getting approved tonight and they will make sure that does not happen.

Jim Romanenghi inquired about the 43,000 sq., ft. retail store and the deliveries to that place. Their house is right
behind there. Mr. Ritter replied right now the municipal ordinance limits that deliveries would have to be between
10 a.m. and 7 p.m. If they want to change that, and it has been changed by Sam’s Club (7 a.m. to 10 p.m.) it could be
done. Pete’s would probably want the hours a little earlier so they would have to come back as part of phase 2 and
ask for that. As they do not have the retail space yet, they do not know what their needs are.

Lynn Romanenghi also noted they are concerned about the hours of the store. K-Mart was open 24 hours a day which
meant music was being blasted and the cars would do donuts in the parking lot. She was constantly calling the police.
They need to take into consideration that because they are building this right in front of them, the hours cannot be 24
hours. Pete’s should consider putting in speed bumps to contain the speed in the lot.

Eugene Grzynkowicz noted the hours of operation are from 7 a.m. to 10 p.m. for the store. The delivery hours are
from 6:30/7:00 a.m. to 5 p.m.

Jim Romanenghi inquired about the construction noise. Pete’s should soundproof the back windows.
Mr. Ritter noted there are ordinances for construction hours.

Eugene Grzynkowicz replied that the warehouse is proprietary to Pete’s Market. Its sole purpose is to feed the Pete’s
Market stores. We have complete control of the warehouse and the grocery store. He is always open to talk with the
Village police department and would sign an agreement with them regarding control to police this site. This would
include parking and being in the fire lane and also contributing to the problems they have had in the past to mitigate
those issues.

Mr. Ritter noted it will help when they flip the parking to the other direction.

Mr. Grzynkowicz noted they are condensing this large parcel of asphalt and densifying it with buildings. When this
happens you really start to close down the opportunity for people to run rapid.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 89

Mr. Ritter noted there will be more landscaping added. You can see islands being added. The landscaping will help
this issue.

Lynn Romanenghi inquired if Pete’s Market will own the retail space and rent it out. Her major concern is that they
do not get another 24 hour business. This is a problem when you are trying to sleep.

Ms. Wallrich replied that they will be leasing those out. As we move on to phase 2, you will receive another notice
and it will be addressed then.

Mr. Ritter noted they should feel free to contact staff. One of our biggest concern is the residential areas.
Mr. Grzynkowicz noted the construction would generally be from 7 a. m. to 5 p.m.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked the Commissioners if there were any further comments.

There were none.

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER MANI, seconded by COMMISSIONER AITCHISON to close the Public
Hearing for Pete’s Fresh Market.

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.
NAY: None.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by voice vote.

Ms. Wallrich presented the Standards for Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place PUD as noted in
the Staff Report.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked the Commissioners for comments on the Standards.
There were none.
Motion 1 (Site Plan):

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GASKILL, seconded by COMMISISONER VICK to grant the Petitioner,
Petros Drimonas, Pete’s Fresh Market, on behalf of 163rd & Harlem LLC (property owner), Concept Site Plan
approval in accordance with plans as noted in the List of Submitted Plans within the Staff Report and attached to the
Plan Commission Meeting Packet, to redevelop the property located at 16300 Harlem Avenue.

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.
NAY: None.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by roll call.

Motion 2 (Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place PUD with Exceptions and Conditions):

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER MANI to recommend that the
Village Board approve a Special Use for a Substantial Deviation of the Park Place PUD to allow
warehouse/distribution uses as part of Phase 1 as an accessory use to a grocery store to be occupied by September 1,
2022, and thereafter the warehouse/distribution use is prohibited as a use independent from the grocery store use, in
accordance with plans as noted in the List of Submitted Plans within the Staff Report and attached to the Plan
Commission Meeting Packet, and adopt Findings related to the Standards for a Special Use as outlined in the staff
report for Phase I of property located at 16300 Harlem Avenue with an exception to allow the overnight storage of
five (5) delivery vehicles parked at the loading dock, conditioned upon occupancy of the grocery store by September
1, 2022, prohibition of outdoor storage, and the planting of street trees prior to Phase 1 occupancy.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 90

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.
NAY: None.
CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by roll call.

This item will be heard at the Village Board Meeting on October 6, 2020.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 91

g Visace | ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

WW STAFF REPORT

September 10, 2020 — Public Hearing

?etitio?ﬂ v Maichrzak Front Yard Setback Variation - Majchrzak
eva an Olly lajcnrza th
(Property Owners) 17549 66™ Avenue

Property Location

17549 66th Avenue /
............... /
I L——U

PIN
28-31-202-009-0000 !

Zoning
R-2, Single-Family
Residential

I

T

Approval Sought

4t
)i

Variation i}

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Petitioners, Teva and Holly Majchrzak (Property Owners), are requesting a five-foot
Project Planner front yard setback Variation from Section V.B. Schedule Il (Lot, Yard, Bulk Regulations) of the
Daniel Ritter, AICP Zoning Ordinance to permit a residential home addition to be constructed with a front yard
Senior Planner setback of 25 feet instead of the required 30-foot setback on the property at 17549 66th

Avenue in the R-2 (Single-Family Residential) zoning district.

The proposed home addition and changes to the existing home exterior will continue to
match the existing home’s non-conforming setback of 25 feet. As a legal-nonconforming
structure, the existing home is permitted to remain at its current location, but the non-
conformity cannot be expanded or enlarged. The requested Variation will bring the existing
home into conformance and allow for the addition as well.

The proposed addition is fairly significant as it is larger than the existing home. The
alternative of meeting the code requirement would mean setting the addition back five feet
from the existing structure’s setback and will make the addition more apparent. The
Petitioner prefers that the home addition remains in character with the existing architecture
without the appearance of being a “tacked-on" addition. Maintaining the same setback for
the addition as the existing home is in keeping with the majority of the homes on the east
side of the block; only a few of the newer homes are constructed at the zoning district’s 30-
foot required setback. All other Zoning Code requirements will be met.




AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY .ty Sethack variation - 17549 66" Ave, Majdhaged 92

EXISTING SITE & HISTORY

The subject property is a 29,996
sq. ft. interior lot that is 110 feet
in width. The subject lot is similar
in size and width as most lots in
the Tinley  Park  Estates
neighborhood that have deep
backyards. The subdivision was
constructed in the early 1920-
1940s without sidewalks as was
typical of the time. The majority
of the area was developed prior
to the adoption of the Village's
modern Zoning and
Development Code
requirements.

The subject property’s two-story
home was constructed around
1931 and is ~1,960 sq. ft. The existing property has a detached garage, above ground pool, deck, and pergolas. All
accessory structures are expected to remain on the site as currently constructed.

.

e e

Page 2 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY .ty Sethack variation - 17549 66" Ave, Majdhaged 93

ZONING & NEARBY LAND USES

The subject property is zoned R-2 (Single-
Family Residential). All surrounding
properties also have single-family homes
located on them. The properties to the
north, south, and east are in the same R-
2 zoning district and subdivision. The
properties to the west across 66" Avenue
are zoned R-4 (Single-Family Residential).

N75th Pl 3
-y ]

As with many of the older subdivisions in
Tinley Park (near the downtown) the
properties were annexed and subdivided
in the 1890s and early 1900s, usually by a
single owner who built their home and
then slowly sold off the remaining lots for
development to other individuals. These
areas were developed over a longer
period of time and have a variety of
different architectural styles, building
codes, and zoning requirements. Due to
the changing code requirements over time, there are a variety of non-conforming aspects of properties that do not
conform to existing code requirements or zoning districts. The most common non-conforming aspects of residential
lots are in regards to front and side yard setbacks, as well as exterior masonry requirements (enacted in the 1960s).
However, while these aspects may be non-conforming to the current code, some of these non-conforming aspects
are unique in regards to being consistent with the overall nature of a neighborhood's development. This is especially
prevalent when being applied to additions on existing structures, as compared to a new structure that can more easily
comply with the current code requirements.

VARIATION REQUEST

The Petitioner is looking to construct an approximately 2,179 sq. ft. addition on the south side of the existing 1,960
sg. ft. home. The addition will include a large front porch and some facade work on the existing home. The resulting
home will be 4,139 sq. ft. in size. The addition is proposed to be constructed at the same setback line as the existing
home, which is setback at 25 feet. The area was developed prior to the adoption of the Village's current zoning code
requirements, which require a 30-foot front yard setback. Non-conformities cannot be expanded upon, a Variation is
required for an addition to encroach into the zoning district's required front yard setback.

To meet the code requirements, the addition would need to meet the 30-foot setback. However, this alternative
creates a 5-foot jog in the home's front elevation which impacts the alighment and utility of the front porch and is not
the preferred visual appearance for the Petitioner. Additionally, it accentuates the addition, instead of blending the
existing home and addition’s elevations together. The Petitioner believes meeting the code requirement is likely to
make the addition look more out of place than matching the existing setback.

e Porch - A front porch is being added to the front elevation of the home and is permitted to extend up to 35%
of the front yard setback. With a proposed front set back of 25 feet, this will allow up to an 8.75-foot deep
porch to extend into the required front yard setback, which is the amount being proposed. The porch would
be 16.25 ft. from the front property line. The porch encroachment is permitted to encroach porches with roofs
that tie into existing structures and provide a more traditional residential streetscape that encroaches
neighbor interaction.

Page 3 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY .ty Sethack variation - 17549 66" Ave, Majdhaged 94

(e e Fe A

T HoT e
10 WD Tk

AT oD Dl

SRR T ARD SIERE T

ettt 1

e
A SR
roct

R

: I b dat o R
COVERED
FRONT PORCH ALOWS
FRONT OF EXISTING ‘ o
| HOME AND ADDITION—] :
EXISTIMG BRICKE
PAVER WALE i | —
1 \
Z

L
Nl
nil
=

Vexismine Brick :
FAVER STERS x S
T6) REMAN &
E
s - I
ol ¥ L
| z b Iy
i 'Ell’ \ I 1
[a]
< 3 g 2 B!
z 3 8 EXTEND W00 DECK.
. E = I I 10FLL HeapP
b S, & o1 BETHERR ADDITION
o .y | g AND EXSTING DECE
| - ™~ |
=
T
3
x

.

[Leah

[y ry aar
| S

J

Page 4 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY .ty Sethack Variation - 17549 66" Ave, Majdhaged 95

|

e

!

[*‘:._3
——
—

M g

Above: Front Elevation

| T T IO I I TT

LTI ICTCI T TTOTCTE IO T T T
I ITTU [TICTE TP TL NI (I JTITT TV TTTT

=L =

—. IO IO T I I I I O L T oo

= [] | =LII=a=H H
\HIIH\HHHIHHIHHI\H“IHHIHHHHHHII\IIH\HHHIHHIHHIHHIHHIHIHHHHH\HHHHH\IHH ‘

L

il

I
il

'H

L
I ], 4
LI

EEENRII

e

Above: Rear Elevation

e Masonry/Exterior Materials - The requirement for new residential homes is that they are constructed of first-
floor brick or stone. With home additions, they are permitted to match the existing home’s materials or can
make any changes that come closer into compliance with the requirements for a new home. The existing
structure is constructed of CMU block wall around the base of the home and the majority of the exterior is
horizontal lap siding. The new elevations will include similar horizontal siding but will add stone piers, board
& batten style siding, trim elements, and a standing seam metal roof over the porch. The goal of their design
is to add architectural interest to the front elevation.

e Existing Block/Neighborhood Development - The majority (82% of properties) on the east side of the block
have homes with siding as the primary material. Masonry is used on only two homes that were constructed
later than the rest of the area (~1960s). There are only three homes on the block (27%) on the east side of this
block that have 30-foot front yard setbacks. All of the other homes (73%) have similar 25-foot setbacks as the
subject property. In this regard, the proposed setback and overall design of the home appear to match the
existing elements of this neighborhood.

Page 5 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY .ty Sethack variation - 17549 66" Ave, Majdhaged 96

STANDARDS FOR A VARIATION

Section X.G.4. of the Zoning Ordinance states the Zoning Board of Appeals shall not recommend a Variation of the
regulations of the Zoning Ordinance unless it shall have made Findings of Fact, based upon the evidence presented
for each of the Standards for Variations listed below. The Zoning Board of Appeals must provide findings for the first
three standards; the remaining standards are provided to help the Zoning Board of Appeals further analyze the
request. Staff prepared draft responses for the Findings of Fact below.

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under the
conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located.
e The subject site can yield a reasonable return; however, an expansion of the home is permitted and
will have a more attractive curb appearance by meeting the existing home’s front yard setback that
is similar to the established setback on the block.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.

e The existing structure has a legal non-conforming setback due to its development prior to modern
zoning code requirements. The setback is similar to other homes on the block developed at the same
time period. The proposal will make for a more attractive appearance than having a 5-foot jog in the
existing and proposed addition, as is permitted by-right.

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
e The reduced sethack is largely established on the block by homes constructed in the same time
period. The setback, home design, and materials fit into the surrounding neighborhood’s established
character.

4. Additionally, the Zoning Board of Appeals shall also, in making its determination whether there are
practical difficulties or particular hardships, take into consideration the extent to which the following facts
favorable to the Petitioner have been established by the evidence:

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the specific property
involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as distinguished from a mere
inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were carried out;

b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be applicable, generally,
to other property within the same zoning classification;

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more money out of
the property;

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property, or by a
previous owner;

e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or injurious to other
property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the property is located; and

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an adjacent property,
or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or increase the danger of fire, or
endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood.

Page 6 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY ry Sethack Variation - 17549 66" Ave, Majdaged 97

MOTION TO CONSIDER

If the Zoning Board of Appeals wishes to act on the Petitioner’s request, an appropriate wording of the motion reads
as the following:

“...make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant an five-foot setback Variation to the Petitioners, Teva
and Holly Majchrzak, from Section V.B. Schedule Il of the Zoning Ordinance, to permit a front yard setbhack of 25 feet
where the required front yard setback is 30 feet on the existing home and the proposed addition at 17549 66"
Avenue in the R-2 (Single Family Residential) zoning district, consistent with the List of Submitted Plans and adopt
Findings of Fact as proposed in the September 10, 2020 Staff Report, subject to the following condition:

e The approval is subject to final engineering, building, and fire department approvals of the structure
and site grading prior to issuance of any permits.”

[any conditions that the ZBA would like to add]

LIST OF REVIEWED PLANS

Submitted Sheet Name Prepared By \ Date On Sheet \
Standards for a Variation Responses Petitioner 7-30-20
(Submitted 8-18-20)
Plat of Survey JNT Land Surveying 5.18.20
T1-SP1 Majchrzak Residence, Single Family Home Aiello Architecture 7.29.20
(22 pgs) | Addition - Architecture Plans Design

Page 7 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 98

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE FRONT
YARD SETBACK VARIATION AT 17549 66™ AVENUE

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 99

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE FRONT YARD SETBACK
VARIATION AT 17549 66TH AVENUE

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit,
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs,
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, a petition has been filed with the Village Clerk of this Village and has been
processed in accordance with the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance by Teva and Holly Majchrzak
(“Petitioner”), to grant a five-foot (5”) Variation to permit the construction of a home addition on
the principal structure to be located twenty-five feet (25”) from the secondary front yard property
line instead of the required thirty foot (30’) front yard setback; and

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals (“ZBA”) held a Public
Hearing on the question of whether the Variation should be granted on September 10, 2020, at the
Village Hall and by teleconference per Gubernatorial Executive Order 2020-18 and the “Village
of Tinley Park Temporary Public Participation Rules & Procedures” at which time all persons
present were afforded an opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said Public Hearing
by publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said Public
Hearing in the Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley
Park; and

WHEREAS, after hearing testimony on the petition, the ZBA found that the petition met
the requisite standards enumerated in the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance for granting the Variation
and voted 4-0 to recommend to the Village President and Board of Trustees for the approval of the
Variation; and

WHEREAS, the ZBA has filed its report of findings and recommendations regarding the
Variation with this Village President and Board of Trustees, and this Board of Trustees has duly
considered said report, findings, and recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and
its residents to approve said Variation; and



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 100

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as finding of fact as if
said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That the report of findings and recommendations of the ZBA are herein
incorporated by reference as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as complete
as if fully set forth herein at length. This Board finds that the Petitioner have provided evidence
establishing that he has met the standards for granting the Variation as set forth in Section X.G.4
of the Zoning Ordinance, and the proposed granting of the Variation as set forth herein are in the
public good and in the best interest of the Village and its residents and are consistent with and
fosters the purpose and spirit of the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance.

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under
the conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located.

e The subject site can yield a reasonable return; however, an expansion of the
home is permitted and will have a more attractive curb appearance by meeting
the existing home’s front yard setback that is similar to the established setback
on the block.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.

o The existing structure has a legal non-conforming setback due to its
development prior to modern zoning code requirements. The setback is similar
to other homes on the block developed at the same time period. The proposal
will make for a more attractive appearance than having a 5-foot jog in the
existing and proposed addition, as is permitted by-right.

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
o The reduced setback is largely established on the block by homes constructed in
the same time period. The setback, home design, and materials fit into the
surrounding neighborhood’s established character.

4. Additionally, the Zoning Board of Appeals also considered the extent to which the
following facts are favorable to the Petitioner based on the established evidence:

a. The particular physical surroundings, shape, or topographical condition of the
specific property involved would result in a particular hardship upon the owner, as
distinguished from a mere inconvenience, if the strict letter of the regulations were
carried out;

b. The conditions upon which the petition for a Variation is based would not be
applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning classification;

c. The purpose of the Variation is not based exclusively upon a desire to make more
money out of the property;



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 101

d. The alleged difficulty or hardship has not been created by the owner of the property,
or by a previous owner;

e. The granting of the Variation will not be detrimental to the public welfare or
injurious to other property or improvements in the neighborhood in which the
property is located; and

f. The proposed Variation will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to an
adjacent property, or substantially increase the congestion in the public streets, or
increase the danger of fire, or endanger the public safety, or substantially diminish
or impair property values within the neighborhood.

SECTION 3: The Variation set forth herein below shall be applicable to the following described
property:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 24 IN BLOCK 2 IN ELMORE’S TINLEY PARK ESTATES,
BEING A SUBDIVISIONOF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST
QUARTER OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 28-31-202-009-0000
COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 17549 66" Avenue, Tinley Park, Illinois

SECTION 4: The following Variation is hereby granted to the Petitioners in the R-2 (Single-
Family Residential) Zoning District at the above-mentioned Property:

1. A five-foot (5”) Variation from Section V.B. Schedule II (Lot, Yard, Bulk
Regulations) of the Zoning Ordinance, to permit a principal structure front yard
setback of twenty-five feet (25’), where the required front yard setback is thirty feet
(30°). The Variation applies to the existing home and the proposed addition and
subject to the following condition:

a. The approval is subject to final engineering, building, and fire department
approvals of the structure and site grading prior to issuance of any permits.”

SECTION 5: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and
approval.

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as required by law.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 102

PASSED THIS 29t day of September, 2020.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 29 day of September, 2020.

VILLAGE PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 103

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE
I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of Ordinance No.  , “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A PRINCIPAL STRUCTURE
FRONT YARD SETBACK VARIATION AT 17549 66TH AVENUE,” which was adopted by
the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on September 29, 2020.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of

the Village of Tinley Park this 29" day of September, 2020.

KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 104

Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
September 10, 2020

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS, VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK,
COOK AND WILL COUNTIES, ILLINOIS

September 10, 2020

The meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals, Village of Tinley Park, Illinois, was held in the Council
Chambers located in the Village Hall of Tinley Park, 16250 Oak Park Avenue, Tinley Park, IL on
September 10, 2020.

At this time, CHAIRMAN SEPESSY, stated the meeting was being held remotely consistent with Governor
Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-07, Executive Order 2020-10, Executive Order 2020-18, Executive Order
2020-32, Executive Order 2020-33, Executive Order 2020-39, and Executive Order 2020-44, which
collectively suspends the Illinois Open Meetings Act requirements regarding in-person attendance by
members of a public body during the duration of the Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation, issued on June
26, 2020, the members of the Village Board will be participating in the meeting through teleconference.

A live stream of the electronic meeting will be broadcasted at Village Hall. Pursuant to Governor's
Executive Order No. 2020-43 and CDC guidelines, no more than 50 people or 50% of the maximum
capacity will be allowed in the Council Chambers at any one time, so long as attendees comply with social
distancing guidelines. Anyone in excess of the maximum limit will be asked to wait in another room with
a live feed to the meeting until the agenda item for which the person or persons would like to speak on is
being discussed or until the open floor for public comments. CHAIRMAN SEPESSY confirmed
Commissioners and Staff were able to communicate. All replied affirmatively. CHAIRMAN SEPESSY
then addressed ground rules for the effective and clear conduct of Plan Commission business.

Secretary Bennett called the roll.

ROLL CALL
Zoning Board Members: Steven Sepessy, Chairman
Jennifer Vargas
Robert Paszczyk (Participated Electronically)
Donald Bettenhausen (Participated Electronically)
Absent Zoning Board Members: None
Village Officials and Staff: Dan Ritter, Senior Planner
Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary
CALL TO ORDER

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS CHAIRMAN, STEVEN SEPESSY called to order the Regular Meeting
of the ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS on September 10, 2020 at 7:00 p.m.

Page 1 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 105
Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting

September 10, 2020
COMMUNICATIONS
None
APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Minutes of the August 13, 2020 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS Meeting was presented for approval. A

Motion was made by ZONING BOARD MEMBER PASZCZYK, seconded by ZONING BOARD
MEMBER BETTENHAUSEN, to approve the Minutes as presented.

AYES: COMMISSIONERS BETTENHAUSEN, PASZCZYK, VARGAS & CHAIRMAN SEPESSY
NAYS: None

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY declared the Minute approved by voice call.

Page 2 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 106

Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
September 10, 2020

TO: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES

FROM: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 10, 2020 REGULAR MEETING OF THE
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

Item #1 PUBLIC HEARING: TEVA AND HOLLY MAJCHRZAK, 17549 66™ AVENUE —

FRONT YARD SETBACK VARIATION

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant Teva and Holly Majchrzak (property
owners) a Variation from Section V.B. Schedule II (Lot, Yard, Bulk Regulations) of the
Zoning Code at the property located at 17549 66th Avenue in the R-2 (Single-Family
Residential) Zoning District. This Variation would permit the Petitioner to construct home
addition that is located 25 feet from the front yard lot line instead of the required minimum
setback of 30 feet. The addition would match the existing structure’s nonconforming
setback, which is at 25 feet.

Board Members: Steven Sepessy, Chairman
Jennifer Vargas
Robert Paszczyk (Participated Electronically)
Donald Bettenhausen (Participated Electronically)

Absent Zoning Board Members: None

Village Officials and Staff: Dan Ritter, Senior Planner
Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary

Guests: Teva Majchrzak, Petitioner

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER VARGAS, seconded by COMMISSIONER PASZCZYK, to
open the Public Hearing for Teva and Holly Majchrzak (property owners) a Variation from Section V.B.
Schedule II (Lot, Yard, Bulk Regulations) of the Zoning Code at the property located at 17549 66th Avenue
in the R-2 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.

AYES: COMMISSIONERS BETTENHAUSEN, PASZCZYK, VARGAS & CHAIRMAN SEPESSY
NAYS: None

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY declared the Motion approved by voice call.

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY noted that Village Staff provided confirmation that appropriate notice regarding
the Public Hearing was published in the local newspaper in accordance with State law and Village policy.

Dan Ritter, Senior Planner gave a presentation as noted in the Staff Report. The Petitioners, Teva and Holly
Majchrzk are requesting a Variation from Section V.B. Schedule II (Lot, Yard, Bulk Regulations) of the
Zoning Code at the property located at 17549 66th Avenue in the R-2 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning
District. This Variation would permit the Petitioner to construct home addition that is located 25 feet from
the front yard lot line instead of the required minimum setback of 30 feet. The addition would match the
existing structure’s nonconforming setback, which is at 25 feet.

Page 3 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 107

Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
September 10, 2020

The proposed home addition and changes to the existing home exterior will continue to match the existing
home’s non-conforming setback of 25 feet. As a legal-nonconforming structure, the existing home is
permitted to remain at its current location, but the non-conformity cannot be expanded or enlarged. The
requested Variation will bring the existing home into conformance and allow for the addition as well.

The proposed addition is fairly significant as it is larger than the existing home. The alternative of meeting
the code requirement would mean setting the addition back five feet from the existing structure’s setback
and will make the addition more apparent. The Petitioner prefers that the home addition remains in character
with the existing architecture without the appearance of being a “tacked-on" addition. Maintaining the
same setback for the addition as the existing home is in keeping with the majority of the homes on the east
side of the block; only a few of the newer homes are constructed at the zoning district’s 30-foot required
setback. All other Zoning Code requirements will be met.

Mr. Ritter displayed a photo of the existing home. The subject property is a 29,996 sq. ft. interior lot that
is 110 feet in width. The subject lot is similar in size and width as most lots in the Tinley Park Estates
neighborhood that have deep backyards. The subdivision was constructed in the early 1920-1940s without
sidewalks as was typical of the time. The majority of the area was developed prior to the adoption of the
Village’s modern Zoning and Development Code requirements.

The subject property’s two-story home was constructed around 1931 and is ~1,960 sq. ft. The existing
property has a detached garage, above ground pool, deck, and pergolas. All accessory structures are
expected to remain on the site as currently constructed.

The subject property is zoned R-2 (Single-Family Residential). All surrounding properties also have single-
family homes located on them. The properties to the north, south, and east are in the same R-2 zoning
district and subdivision. The properties to the west across 66" Avenue are zoned R-4 (Single-Family
Residential).

As with many of the older subdivisions in Tinley Park (near the downtown) the properties were annexed
and subdivided in the 1890s and early 1900s, usually by a single owner who built their home and then
slowly sold off the remaining lots for development to other individuals. These areas were developed over
a longer period of time and have a variety of different architectural styles, building codes, and zoning
requirements. Due to the changing code requirements over time, there are a variety of non-conforming
aspects of properties that do not conform to existing code requirements or zoning districts. The most
common non-conforming aspects of residential lots are in regards to front and side yard setbacks, as well
as exterior masonry requirements (enacted in the 1960s). However, while these aspects may be non-
conforming to the current code, some of these non-conforming aspects are unique in regards to being
consistent with the overall nature of a neighborhood’s development. This is especially prevalent when being
applied to additions on existing structures, as compared to a new structure that can more easily comply with
the current code requirements.

The Petitioner is looking to construct an approximately 2,179 sq. ft. addition on the south side of the existing
1,960 sq. ft. home. The addition will include a large front porch and some facade work on the existing
home. The resulting home will be 4,139 sq. ft. in size. The addition is proposed to be constructed at the
same setback line as the existing home, which is setback at 25 feet. The area was developed prior to the
adoption of the Village’s current zoning code requirements, which require a 30-foot front yard setback.
Non-conformities cannot be expanded upon, a Variation is required for an addition to encroach into the
zoning district’s required front yard setback.

Page 4 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
September 10, 2020

To meet the code requirements, the addition would need to meet the 30-foot setback. However, this
alternative creates a 5-foot jog in the home’s front elevation which impacts the alignment and utility of the
front porch and is not the preferred visual appearance for the Petitioner. Additionally, it accentuates the
addition, instead of blending the existing home and addition’s elevations together. The Petitioner believes
meeting the code requirement is likely to make the addition look more out of place than matching the
existing setback.

Porch - A front porch is being added to the front elevation of the home and is permitted to extend
up to 35% of the front yard setback. With a proposed front set back of 25 feet, this will allow up to
an 8.75-foot deep porch to extend into the required front yard setback, which is the amount being
proposed. The porch would be 16.25 ft. from the front property line. The porch encroachment is
permitted to encroach porches with roofs that tie into existing structures and provide a more
traditional residential streetscape that encroaches neighbor interaction.

Masonry/Exterior Materials — The requirement for new residential homes is that they are
constructed of first-floor brick or stone. With home additions, they are permitted to match the
existing home’s materials or can make any changes that come closer into compliance with the
requirements for a new home. The existing structure is constructed of CMU block wall around the
base of the home and the majority of the exterior is horizontal lap siding. The new elevations will
include similar horizontal siding but will add stone piers, board & batten style siding, trim elements,
and a standing seam metal roof over the porch. The goal of their design is to add architectural
interest to the front elevation.

Existing Block/Neighborhood Development - The majority (82% of properties) on the east side of
the block have homes with siding as the primary material. Masonry is used on only two homes that
were constructed later than the rest of the area (~1960s). There are only three homes on the block
(27%) on the east side of this block that have 30-foot front yard setbacks. All of the other homes
(73%) have similar 25-foot setbacks as the subject property. In this regard, the proposed setback
and overall design of the home appear to match the existing elements of this neighborhood.

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY asked for comments from the Commissioners.

COMMISSIONER PASCZCYK inquired if the home immediately to the south has a 25 ft. setback also.
He also inquired if the porch will extend to the existing pool area.

Mr. Ritter replied that the home to south has a 25 ft. setback and the home to the north has a 30 ft.
setback. The addition will meet in line with the home to the south. Mr. Ritter replied that the porch will
not extend to the pool, but the deck in back will come up to the house. The porch is in the front on the
west side of the house. The deck is in the back.

COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN inquired is the building behind to the east of the 25 ft. building
line. Will the porch be on the building line?

Mr. Ritter replied that the house will be on at the 25 ft. building line and the porch will go further west
than that, which is permitted by the code. Porches can go into the front yard closer to the property line.

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY asked Mr. Majchrzk to address the Commission. CHAIRMAN SEPESSY swore
in the Petitioner.

Mr. Majchrzk noted Mr. Ritter covered everything. Our addition is being done so his in-laws can move in.

Page 5 of 7

Page | 108



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 109

Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
September 10, 2020

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER VARGAS, seconded by COMMISSIONER
BETTENHAUSEN, to close the Public Hearing for Teva and Holly Majchrzak (property owners) a
Variation from Section V.B. Schedule II (Lot, Yard, Bulk Regulations) of the Zoning Code at the property
located at 17549 66th Avenue in the R-2 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.

AYES: COMMISSIONERS BETTENHAUSEN, PASZCZYK, VARGAS & CHAIRMAN SEPESSY
NAYS: None

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY declared the Motion approved by voice call.

Mr. Ritter noted the Standards for Variation.

1. The property in question cannot yield a reasonable return if permitted to be used only under
the conditions allowed by the regulations in the district in which it is located.
e The subject site can yield a reasonable return; however, an expansion of the home is
permitted and will have a more attractive curb appearance by meeting the existing
home’s front yard setback that is similar to the established setback on the block.

2. The plight of the owner is due to unique circumstances.

o The existing structure has a legal non-conforming setback due to its development prior
to modern zoning code requirements. The setback is similar to other homes on the block
developed at the same time period. The proposal will make for a more attractive
appearance than having a 5-foot jog in the existing and proposed addition, as is
permitted by-right.

3. The Variation, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality.
e The reduced setback is largely established on the block by homes constructed in the same
time period. The setback, home design, and materials fit into the surrounding
neighborhood’s established character.

PUBLIC COMMENT:
None

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER BETTENHAUSEN, seconded by COMMISSIONER
PASCZCYK to recommend that the Village Board grant an five-foot setback Variation to the Petitioners,
Teva and Holly Majchrzak, from Section V.B. Schedule II of the Zoning Ordinance, to permit a front yard
setback of 25 feet where the required front yard setback is 30 feet on the existing home and the proposed
addition at 17549 66" Avenue in the R-2 (Single Family Residential) zoning district, consistent with the
List of Submitted Plans and adopt Findings of Fact as proposed in the September 10, 2020 Staff Report,
subject to the following condition:

e The approval is subject to final engineering, building, and fire department approvals of the
structure and site grading prior to issuance of any permits.

AYES: COMMISSIONERS BETTENHAUSEN, PASZCZYK, VARGAS & CHAIRMAN SEPESSY
NAYS: None

CHAIRMAN SEPESSY declared the Motion approved by roll call.

Page 6 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 110

Minutes of the Village of Tinley Park Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting
September 10, 2020

This request will be heard at the October 6, 2020 Village Board Meeting.

Page 7 of 7



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,...
P Village of

Petitioner

Marilyn Monaco, on behalf
of Steve Vernon, SAVI
Properties LLC (property
owner)

Property Location
18440 Thompson Ct.
STE 10

PIN
19-09-01-101-012-0000

Zoning
ORI, Hickory Creek PUD

Approvals Sought
Special Use for a
Vocational Educational
Facility

Project Planner
Paula J. Wallrich, AICP
Planning Manager

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

PLAN COMMISSION STAFF REPORT
September 17, 2020 — WORKSHOP/PUBLIC HEARING

Special Use for a Vocational Educational Facility
18440 Thompson Court

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Marilyn Monaco, Project Manager, has applied for a Special Use on behalf of Steve Vernon,
SAVI Properties, LLC, for a Vocational Educational Facility to be located at 18440 Thompson Ct.,
Suite 10, in the Hickory Creek Planned Unit Development (PUD). The future tenant of this office
building will be a new educational center for the New School for Massage
(www.newschoolmassage.com ) which is headquartered at 747 N. LaSalle Street, Chicago. The
New School for Massage is a private, post-secondary, vocational school authorized by the
Illinois Board of Higher Education to train students in massage therapy.

The subject property is located in the Hickory Creek PUD with an underlying zoning district of
Office and Restricted Industrial (ORI). The proposed use meets the definition of a Vocational
Educational Facility which requires a Special Use in the ORI District.

HISTORY/ PROPOSED USE

Page | 111


http://www.newschoolmassage.com/

AGENDA - 9/29/ 2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... New School/ Massage- 18440 Thgm@@git 112

The subject parcel is located in the Hickory Creek PUD, approved in 2006 (2006-0-028). The PUD provided for a mix of
permitted ORI uses and certain B-3 permitted uses, yet specifically prohibited heavy industrial uses. The PUD comprises 99
acres; the buildings on Thompson Court developed with office and light industrial uses with modern attractive architecture.
The 18440 Thompson Ct. building is a two-story building with 8 tenants and 5 vacancies.

The proposed use, the New School for Massage, is part of a campus expansion planned for the school currently operating
out of Chicago. The school was founded in 2002 by Emmanuel Bistas, a licensed Massage Therapist, who founded the
school "fo create the proper learning environment for developing exceptional, compassionate massage therapists with a
solid understanding of basic and advanced technigues of massage and bodywork, professional ethics, and with the
necessary business and entrepreneurial training to assist in the development of a successful career”. 1In an effort to address
a market need in the Tinley Park area, Mr. Bistas, chose the Thompson Court site due to the quality of surrounding
development and ready access to future students. The tenant space is 2,461 Sqg. Ft. in area. The open design classroom
will accommodate up to 18 students, however the average class size he has experienced since 2006 is 6-10 students. There
will be an office area that will accommodate 2 staff members. Hours have not been established but currently he operates
weekday morning classes and evening classes. There is potential for weekend classes however this has not yet been
finalized. Mr. Bistas anticipates most classes will be held in the evening. At the Chicago office there is a clinic for students
to practice their lessons. There are no plans for a clinic at this location; the zoning also prohibits this use. Mr. Bistas and
the property owner have been informed of this.

ZONING & NEARBY LAND USES

Page 2 of 5



AGENDA - 9/29/ 2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... New School/ Massage- 18440 Thom/ggng‘/ 113

The subject parcel is part of the Hickory Creek PUD | s & Z i J
which comprises ~99 acres. The underlying zoning  ~  — " ek ,./' —
district is Office and Restricted Industrial (ORI). The __;:;;j;-_—-%“ 7; —
18840 Thompson Court building includes several health : o FI 1
care related offices and other professional offices. The —-4a j J
other buildings on the cul-de-sac include Schaff 7 s‘ é
Windows (Showroom at 18445), Eat Enterprises - gf L) )
(Vended Meal contactor at 18470 Thompson Ct.)anda __|‘ K |
multi-tenant building at 18475 Thompson Ct. that 2 ' = ;| -
includes a youth gymnastics facility. ] J |
=== e = j: — 1™
| g

The subject property is completely surrounded by ORI g5 Lk;—nr = i '_T—--:F—’—t——h—',—
zoning. The Hickory Creek PUD is bordered on the Ei% =7m Wil > \;‘l'};:&p;k;‘@l&mmem
south by another ORI PUD (Vernon/Tracy); on the =& = ! ] {.?.,\., )

west by The Tinley Crossings PUD (ORI); on the east
by the NorthCreek PUD (ORI); and on the north by
the Tinley Park Police Department and Fire Training
Center along with the former Tinley Park Mental
Health Center (unincorporated). There are residential
uses (R-3) northwest of the Hickory Creek PUD.

SPECIAL USE

Vocational Educational Facilities are defined as

“schools established to provide for the teaching of clerical, managerial, computer, or artistic skills. This definition applies to
schools that are owned and operated privately for profit and that do not offer a complete educational curriculum (e.g.
beauty school, modeling school, educational tutoring, and testing centers). Such a facility has a very low impact land use
and is similar to an office use.” The proposed New School for Massage most closely fits this definition. Vocational
Educational Facilities are allowed in the ORI as a Special Use.

Special Uses, because of their unique characteristics, cannot be properly classified in any particular district or districts
without consideration, in each case, of the impact of those uses upon neighboring land and uses. There are standards for
Special Uses that must be recommended by the Plan Commission (outlined below). In review of these standards Staff
provides the following information:

Site Plan: The subject parcel is located on a cul-de-sac that is fully developed with three other buildings. Two of the
buildings have a single user (Schaff Windows and Eat Enterprises) with two of the buildings comprise multiple tenants that
come and go.

Parking: Previously there has been parking issues with one of the tenants in the cul-de-sac, however a shared parking lease
has remedied the situation and the area no longer experiences parking issues. There are 130 parking spaces available for
the 18440 Thompson Ct. building. The property owner, who controls the leasing of the building,

provided the following breakdown of parking for the tenants in the building. The chart indicates that 12-18 spaces have
been allotted to the school. If the school were to function at maximum capacity there could potentially be a need for 20
parking spaces, assuming each student drove separately. Using a total of 20 spaces for the proposed use, the total parking
need for the building would be 137, with a deficit of 7 parking spaces. In discussions with the property owner and leasing
manager it was noted that PSA Healthcare only utilizes 10 spaces and CLEAResult works remotely (outside of COVID),
resulting in a surplus of 19 parking spaces. Mr. Bistas believes his classes will operate similarly to his Chicago office which
averages 6-10 students. He also plans to hold most classes in the evening which will not interfere with the daytime parking
demand of the other tenants. The site is self-monitoring and the property owner understands that future leasing will need
to be cognizant of the. availability of parking to attract and retain tenants.

Tenant Suite Number of spaces
Cmmm] BAArAmamabridsAms © Cimmmes e 400 e




AGENDA - 9/29/ 2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... New School Massage- 18440 Thom@@ng‘/ 114

Open Item #1: Discuss the availability of parking for the proposed use.

Hours of operation: Mr. Bistas will hold evening classes that will be scheduled for 5:30p.m. — 9:30 p.m. There is one other
tenant in the building operating with evening hours ( Chiariello Behavioural Health) which operates 10:00 a.m. — 7:00
p.m. Hours of operation are typically a concern if there are adjacent residential uses; there are no residential uses bordering
the subject parcel.

STANDARDS FOR A SPECIAL USE

Section X.1.5. of the Zoning Ordinance lists standards that need to be considered by the Plan Commission. The Plan
Commission is encouraged to consider these standards (listed below) when analyzing a Special Use request.

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said Commission shall find:

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be detrimental to or endanger
the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare; the proposed use is similar to other uses in the
established area.

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity
for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property values within the
neighborhood; the area is developed with similar uses. Parking and hours of operation do not pose a negative
impact to surrounding uses.

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly development and
improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; the immediate area is fully developed.

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been or are being
provided; this is a developed site with existing utilities, access roads and drainage. The proposed use does not
alter current conditions or needs.

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so designed as to minimize
traffic congestion in the public streets; and there is minimal traffic generation anticipated for the proposed use.

Page 4 of 5



AGENDA - 9/29/ 2020, VILLAGE OF TINLEY... New School Massage- 18440 Thom@@gejt 115

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the district in which it
is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be modified by the Village Board pursuant to the
recommendation of the Plan Commission. The Village Board shall impose such conditions and restrictions upon
the premises benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to ensure compliance with the above
standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon other properties in the neighborhood, and to
better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance. Failure to comply with such conditions or restrictions shall
constitute a violation of this Ordinance. There are no exceptions associated with the proposed use.

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic development of the
community as a whole. The proposed use eliminates a vacancy in the building.

It is also important to recognize that a Special Use Permit does not run with the land and instead the Special Use Permit is
tied to the Petitioner. This is different from a process such as a variance, since a variance will forever apply to the property
to which it is granted. Staff encourages the Plan Commission to refer to Section X.J.6. to examine the conditions where a
Special Use Permit will expire.

RECOMMENDATION

If the Plan Commission wishes to take action on the Petitioner’s requests, the appropriate wording of the motion is listed
below. The protocol for the writing of a motion is to write it in the affirmative so that a positive or negative recommendation
correlates to the Petitioner’s proposal. By making a motion, it does not indicate a specific recommendation in support or
against the plan.

Motion (Special Use):

"...make a motion to recommend that the Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Marilyn Monaco,

Project Manager, for a Special Use on behalf of Steve Vernon, SAVI Properties, LLC, for a Vocational Educational Facility to

be located at 18440 Thompson Ct., Suite 10, in the Hickory Creek Planned Unit Development (PUD) and adopt Findings of
Fact as proposed by Village Staff in the Staff Report.

Page 5 of 5



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 116

TO: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF TRUSTEES
FROM: VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK PLAN COMMISSION

SUBJECT: MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2020 REGULAR MEETING

ITEM #3 Workshop/Public Hearing - New School for Massage, Bodywork & Healing
18440 Thompson Court, Suite 10 - Special Use Permit

Consider recommending that the Village Board grant New School for Massage, Bodywork
& Healing (tenant), approval of a Special Use Permit for a vocational massage school at
18440 Thompson Court, Suite 10 in the ORI (Office & Restricted Industrial) zoning
district.

Present Plan Commissioners: Chairman Gray (Participated electronically)
Eduardo Mani (Participated electronically)
Lucas Engel (Participated electronically)
Mary Aitchison (Participated electronically)
Steven Vick (Participated electronically)
James Gaskill

Absent Plan Commissioners: Angela Gatto
Kehla West

Village Officials and Staff: Paula Wallrich, Planning Manager (Participated electronically)

Dan Ritter, Senior Planner
Barbara Bennett, Commission Secretary

Guests: Emmanuel Bistas, Owner of the school
Marilyn Monaco, Property Manager

Paula Wallrich, Planning Manager presented the Staff Report. This Staff Report has been distributed to the Plan
Commission, the Applicant and posted on the website. It is attached to these minutes in their entirety.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the Petitioner.

Marilyn Monaco, Property Manager noted Ms. Wallrich explained everything.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the COMMISSIONERS.

CHAIRMAN GRAY inquired if there would be people coming into the class rooms to be worked on.

Mr. Bistas replied that there would only be students in the school. No outsiders would be allowed for being practiced
on. Massage Therapy could be vulnerable and for safety, no one would be allowed other than students. Even during
the admissions tours, outsiders would not be allowed in the class rooms.

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted he would be now be proceeding to the Public Hearing.

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GASKILL, seconded by COMMISSIONER VICK to open the Public
Hearing for New School for Massage Therapy.

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.

NAY: None.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 117

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by voice vote.

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted he had confirmation of the legal notice for this public hearing be published in the local
newspaper as required by state law.

CHAIRMAN GRAY noted anyone wishing to speak will be sworn in.
CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the COMMISSIONERS.
There were none.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the Petitioner.

Mr. Bistas replied he had no comment other than being very excited for this opportunity to be here and speak with
the Commission.

CHAIRMAN GRAY asked for comments from the Public.
There were none.

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER GASKILL, seconded by COMMISSIONER VICK to open the Public
Hearing for New School for Massage Therapy.

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.

NAY: None.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by voice call.

Ms. Wallrich noted the Standards for Special Use as stated in the Staff Report.

A Motion was made by COMMISSIONER ENGEL, seconded by COMMISSIONER AITCHISON to recommend
that the Village Board grant a Special Use Permit to the Petitioner, Marilyn Monaco, Property Manager, for a Special
Use on behalf of Steve Vernon, SAVI Properties, LLC, for a Vocational Educational Facility to be located at 18440
Thompson Ct., Suite 10, in the Hickory Creek Planned Unit Development (PUD) and adopt Findings of Fact as
proposed by Village Staff in the Staff Report.

AYE: COMMISSIONERS MANI, ENGEL, GASKILL, AITCHISON, VICK and CHAIRMAN GRAY.

NAY: None.

CHAIRMAN GRAY declared the Motion approved by Roll Call.

This item will be heard at the Village Board Meeting on October 6, 2020.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 118

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A VOCATIONAL
EDUCATIONAL FACILITY TO SAVI PROPERTIES, LLC. ON BEHALF OF NEW
SCHOOL FOR MASSAGE (TENANT), AT 18440 THOMPSON COURT

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 119

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A
VOCATIONAL EDUCATIONAL FACILITY TO SAVI PROPERTIES, LLC.
ON BEHALF OF NEW SCHOOL FOR MASSAGE (TENANT),

AT 18440 THOMPSON COURT

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit,
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs,
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, a petition for the granting of a Special Use Permit for a Vocational
Educational Facility at 18440 Thompson Court, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 (“Subject Property”)
has been filed by Marilyn Monaco, SAVI Properties, on behalf of Emmanuel Bistas, New School
for Massage (“Petitioner”) with the Village Clerk of this Village and has been referred to the Plan
Commission of the Village and has been processed in accordance with the Tinley Park Zoning
Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, said Plan Commission held a public hearing on the question of whether the
Special Use Permit should be granted on September 17, 2020 at the Village Hall and by
teleconference per Gubernatorial Executive Order 2020-18 and the “Village of Tinley Park
Temporary Public Participation Rules & Procedures”, at which time all persons were afforded an
opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, public notice in the form required by law was given of said public hearing
by publication not more than thirty (30) days nor less than fifteen (15) days prior to said public
hearing in the Daily Southtown, a newspaper of general circulation within the Village of Tinley
Park; and

WHEREAS, the Plan Commission has filed its report and findings and recommendations
that the proposed Special Use Permit be approved with this President and Board of Trustees, and
this Board of Trustees has duly considered said report of findings and recommendations; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interest of the Village of Tinley Park and
its residents to approve said Special Use Permit; and



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 120

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of facts as
if said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: That the report of findings and recommendations of the Plan Commission are herein
incorporated by reference as the findings of this President and the Board of Trustees, as complete
as if fully set forth herein at length. This Board finds that the Petitioner has provided evidence
establishing that they have met the standards for granting the Special Use Permit as set forth in
Section X.J.5 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the proposed granting of the Special Use Permit as set
forth herein is in the public good and in the best interest of the Village and its residents and is
consistent with and fosters the purpose and spirit of the Tinley Park Zoning Ordinance.

X.J.5. Standards: No Special Use shall be recommended by the Plan Commission unless said
Commission shall find:

a. That the establishment, maintenance, or operation of the Special Use will not be
detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare.
The proposed use is similar to other uses in the established area.

b. That the Special Use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and
impair property values within the neighborhood.

The area is developed with similar uses. Parking and hours of operation do not pose a
negative impact to surrounding uses.

c. That the establishment of the Special Use will not impede the normal and orderly
development and improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in the district.
The immediate area is fully developed.

d. That adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or other necessary facilities have been
or are being provided.
This is a developed site with existing utilities, access roads and drainage. The proposed
use does not alter current conditions or needs.

e. That adequate measures have been or will be taken to provide ingress and egress so
designed as to minimize traffic congestion in the public streets.
There is minimal traffic generation anticipated for the proposed use.

f. That the Special Use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of
the district in which it is located, except as such regulations may in each instance be
modified by the Village Board pursuant to the recommendation of the Plan Commission.
The Village Board shall impose such conditions and restrictions upon the premises
benefited by a Special Use Permit as may be necessary to ensure compliance with the above



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 121

standards, to reduce or minimize the effect of such permit upon other properties in the
neighborhood, and to better carry out the general intent of this Ordinance. Failure to
comply with such conditions or restrictions shall constitute a violation of this Ordinance.
There are no exceptions associated with the proposed use.

g. The extent to which the Special Use contributes directly or indirectly to the economic
development of the community as a whole.
The proposed use eliminates a vacancy in the building.

SECTION 3: The Special Use Permit set forth herein below shall be applicable to the following
described property

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: LOT 7B IN THOMPSON COURT SUBDIVISION OF PART OF
THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 35 NORTH, RANGE 12 EAST
OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED
JAUARY 28,2003, AS DOCUMENT NUMBER R2003-19592, IN WILL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 19-09-01-101-012-0000
COMMONLY KNOWN AS: 18440 Thompson Court, Suite 10, Tinley Park, Illinois

SECTION 4: That a Special Use Permit to allow for a Vocational Educational Facility to be
located at 18440 Thompson Court, Tinley Park, Illinois 60477 (“Subject Property”) is hereby
granted to the Petitioner.

SECTION 5: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions
of this Ordinance shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 6: That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption and
approval.

SECTION 7: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Ordinance in
pamphlet form, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as required by law.

PASSED THIS 29t day of September, 2020.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 29th day of September, 2020.




AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 122

VILLAGE PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 123

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )

CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of Ordinance No.  , “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR
VOCATIONAL EDUCATIONAL FACILITY TO SAVI PROPERTIES, LLC. ON BEHALF OF
NEW SCHOOL FOR MASSAGE (TENANT), AT 18440 THOMPSON COURT,” which was
adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on September 29,
2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of

the Village of Tinley Park this 29th day of September, 2020.

KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020.,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY ... Page | 124
Interoffice

Memo

Date: September 29, 2019

To: Village Board
Dave Niemeyer, Village Manager

From: Kimberly Clarke, AICP
Community Development Director

Subject: Professional Service Contract-RickDandan dba (Lakeside Consultants)

Background:
The Community Development Department’s last full-time inspector (plumbing) will be retiring on Wednesday,

September 30%. The next steps for the department are to expand the existing professional services with its current
consultant Rick Dandan to include plumbing inspections. The Village has been using Rick Dandan for building
permit plan review and building inspections since 2017.

Discussion:
This was discussed at the Committee of the Whole Meeting held on September 29, 2020

Recommendation:
Adopt Resolution 20-R-094 approving a contract for professional building review and inspection services with
Rick DanDan DBA Lakeside Consultants

Attachments:
Resolution 20-R-094

¥

Life Amplified



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 125

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2020-R-094

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING CONTRACT
FOR PROFESSIONAL BUILDING REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS SERVICES WITH
RICK DANDAN (DBA LAKESIDE CONSULTANTS)

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 126

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-094

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO AN EXISTING CONTRACT
FOR PROFESSIONAL BUILDING REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS SERVICES WITH
RICK DANDAN (DBA LAKESIDE CONSULTANTS)

WHEREAS, the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, is a Home Rule

Unit pursuant to the Illinois Constitution of 1970; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties,
[llinois, have considered entering into a Contract with Rick Dandan (dba Lakeside Consultants),

a true and correct copy of such Contract being attached hereto and made a part hereof as
EXHIBIT 1; and

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois, have determined that it is in the best interests of said Village of Tinley Park that

said Contract be entered into by the Village of Tinley Park;

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, as follows:

Section 1: The Preambles hereto are hereby made a part of, and operative provisions

of, this Resolution as fully as if completely repeated at length herein.

Section 2: That this President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
hereby find that it is in the best interests of the Village of Tinley Park and its residents that the
aforesaid "Contract” be entered into and executed by said Village of Tinley Park, with said

Contract to be substantially in the form attached hereto and made a part hereof as EXHIBIT 1.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 127

Section 3: That the President and Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will
Counties, Illinois are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf of said Village of Tinley Park

the aforesaid Contract.

Section 4: That this Resolution shall take effect from and after its adoption and

approval.

PASSED THIS 29" day of September, 2020.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 29" day of September, 2020.

VILLAGE PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 128

STATE OF ILLINOIS
COUNTY OF COOK
COUNTY OF WILL

SS

N N N

CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of Resolution No. 2020-R-094, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO
AN EXISTING CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL BUILDING REVIEW AND
INSPECTIONS SERVICES WITH RICK DANDAN (DBA LAKESIDE CONSULTANTS),”
which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on
September 29, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of

the Village of Tinley Park this 29" day of September, 2020.

KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 129

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Building Inspection and Plan Review Services
Dated 9.22.2020

SERVICES PROVIDED

Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants} and any needed designee inspectors or plan reviewers on his end
will provide building permit plan review and inspection, and miscellaneous related administrative support
services including but not limited to potential attendance and representation at the local administrative
adjudication court and Building Committee for Illinois as an independent contractor and subject to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement. All inspection services and interaction with property and
business owners on bhehalf of the Village of Tinley Park under this Agreement will be conducted in a
professional and respectful manner.

Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants} or his designee shall dress in manner that represents the Village
of Tinley Park in a professional manner and shall have proper inspection equipment to conduct inspections
as required. Equipment shall include a clipboard, flashlight, tape measure, and other equipment as
determined to provide a quality inspection.

Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants) or his designee shall utilize the forms and checklist used by the
Village of Tinley Park and shall follow inspection protocol as outlined by the Community Development
Director Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants} or his designee shall utilize their personal vehicle to
conduct inspections.

Unless otherwise approved by the City's Community Development Director, Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside
Consultants) or his designee shall perform inspections and related code enforcement work for the Village
of Tinley Park during normal business hours Monday-Friday as needed and agreed upon by both parties.
Total number of hours or performed inspections/plan reviews in any given week will be as authorized by
the Community Development Director or Building Official.

Service provided under this Agreement shall be billed in accordance with the fee schedule attached as
Exhibit C.

TERM OF AGREEEMENT

This Agreement shall be in full force and effect upon execution by the parties. This Agreement may be
terminated at any time by either party for any reason by giving written notification to the other party.
Notification to the Village of Tinley Park shall be provided directly to the Community Development
Director.

INSURANCE

Rick Dandan {DBA Lakeside Consultants) or his designee shall, during the term hereof, maintain at its sole
cost and expense, comprehensive general liability insurance against claims for bodily injury, death, or
property damage occurring as a result of its employee’s actions in the course of this Agreement in the
amount of a minimum of $2,000,000 combined single limits. Said Insurance shall name the Village of
Tinley Park as an additional insured and shall include a provision for cancellation only upon 30 days prior

- e 3
Rick Dandan Building and Inspection Services Page 1



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 130

notice to the Village of Tinley Park. Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants) shall provide the Village of
Tinley Park with a Certificate of Insurance confirming compliance with these requirements.

tn addition, Rick Dandan {DBA Lakeside Consultants) shall provide the Village of Tiniey Park with an
executed copy of the Hold Harmless Agreement attached heretoas Exhibit B prior to performing any work
as an independent contractor for the Village of Tinley Park.

INDEPENDENTCONTRACTOR
Itis agreed that Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants) or his designee is an independentcontractor and

not an employee of the Village of Tinley Park and is not entitled to any employment benefits available to
employees by policies or laws, including but notlimited to the lllinois Worker's Compensation Act.

BILLING OF SERVICES
Rick Dandan {DBA Lakeside Consultants) shall provide a statement for services rendered each month. The

statementshall clearly state numberof hours, inspections, plan reviews and type of work performed.

MODIFICATIONS
This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties as to the matters contained herein, and

it shall not be altered, amended, or modified except by a written amendment executed by the duly
authorized agent of the Village of Tinley Park and Rick Dandan (DBA Lakeside Consultants).

ENFORCEABILITY
If any provision of the Agreement s held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, this Agreement

shall remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms, disregarding such unenforceable or
invalid provision.

Any failure of a party to enforce the party’s rights under any provision of this Agreement shall not be
construed or act as a waiver of said party’s subsequent right to enforce any of the provisions contained

herein.

Accepted By Ql £ ,A-—/ @d/ﬂ dm Accepted By
Print p\i U @ 1) d(xﬂ Print
Title P f if) C; ‘PC’JS 8 Title

[ OMEST

CoASY Je0tS

qQ-24- 20

Rick Dandan Building and Inspection Services Page 2



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 131

EXHIBIT A
Tinley Park Consulting Fee Schedule

Inspections:

Residential/Commercial. $40.00 per inspection (includes building,electric,hvac,energy,plumbing).
Residential Small Scale: $35.00 per inspection  (includes decks,porches,driveway,concrete,etc).

All Re-Inspections: $35.00 per inspection

Property Maintenance/Code Enforcement/Office Time $40.00 per hour

Plan/Code Review:

Residential Small Scale

(driveways, patios,etc) $40.00 per hour

Residential Garages* $75.00

Residential Interior Remodel* $125.00

Residential Additions* $225.00

Residential New Single Family $375.00

Commercial * Percentage of construction cost (0.0025%)
* Min. $150.00

Re-Submittals * Office Time, no extra charge.

- —— |
Rick Dandan Building and Inspection Services Page 3



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 132

Interoffice

Memo

Date: September 25, 2020

To: Village Board

From: David Niemeyer, Village Manager
cc: Pat Carr, Assistant Village Manager

Paul O’Grady, Village Attorney
Subject: Settlement Agreement 80 Ave train station

In 2010, the Village entered into a contract with Zcorp Services Company for the 80" Ave Train Station project.
There were several disputes over the quality of the construction and the Village had to make several
repairs/replacements, including replacing several staircases, railings and ramps and installing erosion control.
The company is no longer in business and the Village placed a claim on the contractor’s performance bond in
2016. The bonding company disputed the claim and after extended negotiations, the bonding company agreed to
pay the Village $175,000 to settle the dispute. The attached agreement settles the dispute.

¥

Life Amplified



AGENDA —929/2020 ML AGE-OETINLEY — Page | 133

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION
NO. 2020-R-095

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE
COMPANY REGARDING ISSUES RELATED TO THE CONSTRUCTION
OF THE 80TH AVENUE TRAIN STATION

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys
200 W. Adams, Suite 2125, Chicago, IL 60606



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VIL%&&%GgFO]EHIIIINI%S]?%KRK Page | 134

Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-R-095

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE
COMPANY REGARDING ISSUES RELATED TO THE CONSTRUCTION
OF THE 80TH AVENUE TRAIN STATION

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule unit,
and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population in excess of
25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said Section 6(a) of Article
VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining to its government and affairs,
including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur debt; and

WHEREAS, the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park believe and
hereby declare that it is in the best interest of the Village and its residents in order to avoid
uncertainties of litigation and without admitting any liability to authorize the Village President
and/or Village Manager to execute the Settlement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 1; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1: The foregoing recitals shall be and are hereby incorporated as findings of fact as if
said recitals were fully set forth herein.

SECTION 2: The President and Board of Trustees hereby authorize the Village President and/or
Village Manager to execute the Settlement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 1, subject to
review as to form by the Village Attorney.

SECTION 3: Any policy, resolution, or ordinance of the Village that conflicts with the provisions
of this Resolution shall be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 4: That the Village Clerk is hereby ordered and directed to publish this Resolution in
pamphlet form, and this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage,
approval, and publication as required by law.

PASSED THIS 29™ day of September, 2020.
AYES:

NAYS:
ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 29" day of September, 2020.

VILLAGE PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - %&%%Q%%I‘LLIN OIS VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 135

S )
COUNTY OF COOK ) SS
COUNTY OF WILL )
CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct
copy of Resolution No. 2020-R-095, “A RESOLUTION APPROVING A SETTLEMENT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK AND LIBERTY
MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY REGARDING ISSUES RELATED TO THE
CONSTRUCTION OF THE 80TH AVENUE TRAIN STATION,” which was adopted by the
President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park on September 29, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of

the Village of Tinley Park this 29" day of September, 2020.

VILLAGE CLERK



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 136

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT AND RELEASE

This Settlement Agreement and Release (“Agreement”) is entered into by and between
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company f/k/a Developers Surety and Indemnity Company (referred to
herein as “Developers”) and the Village of Tinley Park (“Tinley Park™). Developers and Tinley
Park may be collectively referred to as “Parties.”

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on or about November 15, 2010, Tinley Park entered into a contract with
ZCorp Services Company (“ZCorp”), for the construction of the public project known as Metra-
Tinley Park 80" Avenue Station (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, on or about November 15, 2010, Developers issued a Performance Bond and
a Payment Bond, bond number 771386P, on behalf of its principal, ZCorp, and for the benefit of
the owner and obligee, Tinley Park (the “Bonds”);

WHEREAS, the Project was substantially completed by November 21, 2012 however
unforeseen circumstances substantially increased ZCorp’s cost of completion and the balance
remaining to be paid to ZCorp for the Project was significantly less than the cost to complete.
Disputes arose over work in place and defective construction;

WHEREAS, Developers received a claim on the Bonds from Tinley Park relating to
ZCorp’s work on the Project (the “Bond Claim”); and

WHEREAS, the Parties, wishing to avoid the uncertainty and expense of litigation have
decided to enter into this Agreement to fully and finally resolve the specified issues addressed
herein.

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which is acknowledged by each of the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

1. The Recitals are made part of and incorporated into this Agreement.

2. Settlement Payments: Developers shall pay to Tinley Park the sum of one hundred
and seventy-five thousand dollars ($175,000.00) in full and final settlement for this matter (the
“Settlement Payment”). The Settlement Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of execution
of the Agreement, and shall be made payable by check to the Village of Tinley Park, sent to Tinley
Park’s attorney at the following address:

Thomas J. Condon, Jr.

Peterson, Johnson & Murray Chicago, LLC
200 West Adams St., Suite 2125

Chicago, IL 60606



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,...

3.

VILLAGE OF TINLEY...

Release by Tinley Park: In consideration for the promises set forth in this

Agreement, Tinley Park, for itself, and on behalf of, but not limited to, its former, present, and future
mayor, trustees, clerk, council member, principals, agents, employees, executives, employees and
all constituents, predecessors, successors, assigns, representatives and attorneys hereby release,
acquit and forever discharge Developers and, but not limited to, its respective officers, directors,
shareholders, employees, parent companies, sibling companies, affiliated companies, reinsurers,
successors, assigns, agents, consultants, heirs, beneficiaries and attorneys of and from any and all
claims, rights, demands and/or causes of action of any kind or nature that Tinley Park has raised or
could have raised relating in any way to the Bonds, the Bond Claim, and/or ZCorp’s work on the

Project.

4.

Notices. Any notices required to be given by the terms of this Agreement shall be

made via email and certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid to:

To Developers:

Michael J. Weber

Dinsmore & Shohl LLP

222 W. Adams St., Suite 3400
Chicago, IL 60606

(312) 775-1742
michael.weber@dinsmore.com

To Tinley Park:

(a)
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)

Thomas J. Condon, Jr.

Peterson, Johnson & Murray Chicago, LLC
200 West Adams St., Suite 2125

Chicago, IL 60606

(312) 724-8040

tcondon@pjmchicago.com

General Provisions:

This Agreement contains contractual obligations.

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be
fully effective as an original and all of which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument.

Facsimile and electronic signatures may be treated as originals for all
purposes.

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the
laws of the State of Illinois.

If any provision or term of this Agreement is deemed to be illegal or
unenforceable in any respect, such provision or term shall not affect any
other provision or term hereof, and this Agreement shall be construed as if
the provision or term had never been contained herein.

Page | 137


mailto:michael.weber@dinsmore.com
mailto:tcondon@pjmchicago.com

AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 138

§)) The Parties agree to cooperate fully to execute any and all supplementary
documents and to take all additional actions that may be necessary or
appropriate to give full force and effect to the basic terms, conditions, and
intent of this Agreement.

(2) The Parties agree to bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in all
matters that led to the entry of this Agreement.

(h) This Agreement shall not in any way be amended or modified without the
written consent of both Parties.

(1) The Parties acknowledge that they are and have been represented by counsel

in connection with the negotiation of this Agreement, that the provisions of
this Agreement and the legal effect thereof have been fully explained to
them, and that they have entered into this Agreement freely and voluntarily
and without coercion or undue influence.

() Each of the undersigned certifies that he/she is an officer and/or designated
authorized agent of the respective Party as indicated at the respective
signature lines, and is fully authorized to execute this Settlement Agreement
on behalf of said Party and to bind said Party hereto.

6. Final Resolution. Except as set forth in this Agreement, the Parties, covenant and
agree that the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement constitute the full, complete and
final resolution of any and all claims and disputes among the Parties, both known and unknown.

7. No Admission of Wrongdoing. This Agreement shall not be construed as an
admission of fault or liability on the part of any of the Parties. It is understood and agreed that the
terms of this Agreement have been made solely to accomplish an expeditious resolution of specific
issues and for no other purpose.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement between the
Parties solely with respect to specific issues set forth herein and fully supersedes any and all prior
agreements or understandings between the Parties hereto pertaining the specific issues herein.

9. Binding Nature of Agreement. The terms of this Agreement shall be binding upon,
inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by, the Parties hereto, and their respective successors,
administrators, executors, beneficiaries, and/or assigns.

10. No Third-Party Rights. Nothing in this Agreement is intended or shall be interpreted
to confer any rights, privileges or rights of action of any kind upon any person or entity not a party
to this Agreement, or to effectuate a release by the Parties of any claims or causes of action that
any Party has or may have against any person or entity not a Party to this Agreement.

11. Modification. This Agreement may not be altered, amended, changed, terminated,
or modified in any material respect without the express, written consent of all Parties hereto. No
waiver by any Party hereto of any breach or default hereunder shall be deemed a waiver of any other
or subsequent breach or default.



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 139

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed as of
the day and year first above written.

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY f{/k/a
DEVELOPERS SURETY AND INDEMNITY COMPANY

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK

Signature:

Printed Name:

Title:

Date:




AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 140

THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE
NO. 2020-0-060

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE
OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK BY THE ADDITION OF TITLE XI
CHAPTER 129L IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL CANNABIS RETAILERS’
OCCUPATION TAX

JACOB C. VANDENBERG, PRESIDENT
KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK

CYNTHIA A. BERG
WILLIAM P. BRADY
WILLIAM A. BRENNAN
DIANE M. GALANTE
MICHAEL W. GLOTZ
MICHAEL G. MUELLER
Board of Trustees

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the President and Board of Trustees of the Village of Tinley Park
Peterson, Johnson, & Murray Chicago, LLC, Village Attorneys

200 W. Adams, Suite 2125 Chicago, IL 60606



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 141

VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK
Cook County, Illinois
Will County, Illinois

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-0-060

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE
OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK BY THE ADDITION OF TITLE XI
CHAPTER 129L IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL CANNABIS RETAILERS’
OCCUPATION TAX

WHEREAS, Section 6(a) of Article VII of the 1970 Constitution of the State of Illinois
provides that any municipality which has a population of more than 25,000 is a home rule
unit, and the Village of Tinley Park, Cook and Will Counties, Illinois, with a population
in excess of 25,000 is, therefore, a home rule unit and, pursuant to the provisions of said
Section 6(a) of Article VII, may exercise any power and perform any function pertaining
to its government and affairs, including, but not limited to, the power to tax and to incur

debt; and

WHEREAS, the Village has the authority to adopt ordinances and to promulgate rules
and regulations that pertain to its government and affairs and that protect the public
health, safety and welfare of its citizens; and

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2019 the governor of the State of Illinois signed into law Public
Act 101-0027, establishing the Cannabis Regulation and Tax Act (hereinafter referred to
as “Act”); and

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Illinois
Municipal Cannabis Retailers’ Occupation Tax Law, 65 ILCS 5/8-11-23 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the Village amended the Zoning Ordinance through Ordinance 2020-O-
038, authorizing “Adult Use Cannabis Dispensing Organizations” starting January 1,
2020;



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 142

WHEREAS, this Ordinance is intended to impose the tax authorized by the Act
providing for a municipal cannabis retailers’ occupation tax which will be collected by
the Illinois Department of Revenue;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF
TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK, COOK AND WILL COUNTIES,
ILLINOIS, STATE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Recitals. The facts and statements contained in the preamble to this
Ordinance are found to be true and correct and are hereby adopted as part of this
Ordinance.

SECTION 2. Adoption of Tax. Title XI Chapter 129 of the Municipal Code of the
Village of Tinley Park shall be amended by the addition of Chapter 129L that will read as
follows:

Chapter 129L:
MUNICIPAL CANNABIS RETAILERS’ OCCUPATION TAX
1. Tax imposed; Rate.
A. A tax is hereby imposed upon all persons engaged in the business of selling
cannabis, other than cannabis purchased under the Compassionate Use of
Medical Cannabis Pilot Program Act, at retail in the Village at the rate of 3% of
the gross receipts from these sales made in the course of that business while this

Ordinance is in effect; and

B. The imposition of this tax is in accordance with the provisions of Sections 8-11-

23, of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-11-23).

2. llinois Department of Revenue to administer, collect and enforce.

A. The taxes hereby imposed, and all civil penalties that may be assessed as in
incident thereto, shall be collected and enforced by the Department of Revenue
of the State of Illinois in accordance with the provisions of 65 ILCS 5/8-11-1
and 65 ILCS 5/8-11-5. The Department of Revenue shall have full power to

administer and enforce the provisions of this Ordinance.

3



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 143

B. Any tax required to be collected pursuant to or as authorized by this Ordinance
and any such tax collected by such retailer and required to be remitted to the
Department shall constitute a debt owed by the retailer to the State. Retailers
may reimburse themselves for their seller's tax liability hereunder by separately
stating that tax as an additional charge, which charge may be stated in
combination, in a single amount, with any State tax that sellers are required to

collect.

SECTION 3. Clerk to file Ordinance with Illinois Department of Revenue.
The Village Clerk is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance with
the Illinois Department of Revenue on or before October 1, 2020.

SECTION 4. Effective Date.
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and
approval and publication as required by law, provided, however, that the tax
provided for herein shall take effect for all sales on or after the first day of January,

2021.

SECTION 5. Severability.
If any provision of this Ordinance, or the application of any provision of this
Ordinance, is held unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such occurrence shall not
affect other provisions of this Ordinance, or their application, that can be given effect
without the unconstitutional or invalid provision or its application. Each
unconstitutional or invalid provision, or application of such provision, is severable,

unless otherwise provided by this Ordinance.

SECTION 6. Publication in pamphlet form. Full force and effect.
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval,
and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. The Village Clerk is directed
to publish this Ordinance in pamphlet form.
4



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 144

PASSED THIS 29™ DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2020, PURSUANT TO A ROLL
CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:

AYES:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

APPROVED THIS 29" day of September, 2020.

Village President

ATTEST:

Village Clerk



AGENDA - 9/29/2020,... VILLAGE OF TINLEY... Page | 145

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) SS
COUNTY OF COOK )
COUNTY OF WILL

CERTIFICATE

I, KRISTIN A. THIRION, Village Clerk of the Village of Tinley Park, Counties of Cook
and Will and State of Illinois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and
correct copy of Ordinance No. 2020-0-060, "AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE
OF THE VILLAGE OF TINLEY PARK BY THE ADDITION OF TITLE XI
CHAPTER 129L IMPOSING A MUNICIPAL CANNABIS RETAILERS’
OCCUPATION TAX” which was adopted by the President and Board of Trustees of the
Village of Tinley Park on September 29, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal
of the Village of Tinley Park this 29" day of September, 2020.

KRISTIN A. THIRION, VILLAGE CLERK



STAFF
COMMENT




BOARD
COMMENT




PUBLIC
COMMENT




EXECUTIVE SESSION

ADJOURN TO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS:

A.

LITIGATION, WHEN AN ACTION AGAINST, AFFECTING OR
ON BEHALF OF THE PARTICULAR PUBLIC BODY HAS BEEN
FILED AND IS PENDING BEFORE A COURT OR
ADMINISTRATIVE TRIBUNAL, OR WHEN THE PUBLIC BODY
FINDS THAT AN ACTION IS PROBABLE OR IMMINENT, IN
WHICH CASE THE BASIS FOR THE FINDING SHALL BE
RECORDED AND ENTERED INTO THE MINUTES OF THE
CLOSED MEETING.

THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY FOR THE
USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY, INCLUDING MEETINGS HELD
FOR THE PURPOSE OF DISCUSSING WHETHER A
PARTICULAR PARCEL SHOULD BE ACQUIRED.




	092920 Meeting Notice
	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Agenda Page 6
	ITEM #2 - Approval of Minutes
	ITEM #3 - Trustee Brennan
	ITEM #4 - Trustee Glotz and Clerk Thirion
	ITEM #5 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #6 - Consent A
	ITEM #6 - Consent B
	ITEM #7 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #8 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #9 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #10 - Trustee Mueller
	ITEM #11 - Trustee Glotz
	ITEM #12 - Trustee Galante
	ITEM #13 - Staff Comment
	ITEM #14 - Board Comment
	ITEM #15 - Public Comment
	ITEM #16 - Executive Session



